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CORPORATE INFORMATION AT &%}
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CORPORATE INFORMATION AT &%}

Place of Incorporation

Hong Kong

Registered Office

21 Dai Fu Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate,
Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong

Share Registrar and Transfer
Office

Hongkong Managers and Secretaries Limited
Unit 3401-2, 34th Floor, AIA Tower,
183 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong

Internet Websites

Lam Soon Hong Kong Group

http://www.lamsoon.com

Haomama.com Club
Hong Kong
http://www.haomama.com
Mainland China

http://www.haomama.com.cn

Detergent Business
http://www.love2clean.com

Edible Oil Business

http://www.lamsoonoil.com

Flour Business
http://www.hkflourmills.com

Lam Soon e-Bidding
http://ebidding.lamsoon.com

Hong Leong Group
http://www.hongleong.com
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS AT IEE

Turnover (continuing operations) (HK$ million)
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS A ig=

Consolidated Results

s 3

Year ended 30 June
BEAA=+HILEE

(HK$ million) 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(BEEHET) =Ll TR —ERRF —BENF —ETLF
Continuing operations IHEEEER
Turnover —E 3 2,510 2,193 2,072 2,094 1,569
GP% ERZE 18% 20% 20% 16% 19%
Profit before taxation R A8 F 113 143 97 112 93
Taxation (charges)/credit BB (ZH) /WA (22) (21) (18) (11) 9
Profit for the year from AEEFELE

continuing operations EREEMNGER 91 122 79 101 102
Discontinued operation BRI 4EE %R
Profit for the year froma ZANEECKIEEE

discontinued operation EBREENSF - — — 6 8
Net gain on disposal of a HEBLKILEE

discontinued operation EKFR - — - 9 -
Profit for the year REEER 91 122 79 116 110
Non-controlling interests ~ FE#EpR#E - — — 2 —
Profit attributable to AAT

shareholders of the R FEE

Company i 91 122 79 118 110
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS A ig=

Consolidated Assets and Liabilities

GEEEREBE
At 30 June
WA=+AH
(HK$ million) 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(BEEET) Lo T —ZEHE —_BENFE —BELHF
Total assets HEE 2,082 1,812 1,682 1,738 1,712
Total liabilities HER (597) (413) (375) (466) (514)
Non-controlling
interests FEFERRELS (11) (11) (11) (17) (86)
Equity attributable to &2 F]
shareholders of the RERFEG
Company HEE 1,474 1,388 1,296 1,255 1,112

Key Financial Indicators

6 FEMRBER

Year ended 30 June

BERA=+HLEE

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
= SN 225 —EThE —TTN\EF _TTLE

Earnings per share (HK$) SRER| () 0.38 0.50 0.32 0.49 0.45
Dividend per share (HK$) ERIRE(ET) 0.16 0.16 0.15 0.15 0.14
Equity-debt ratio EXREELE 96:4 100:0 100:0 100:0 100:0

O
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT EE S FHREE

| am pleased to present this Annual Report for the financial year
ended 30 June 2011. This year we celebrate our Group’s 50th
Anniversary. We are grateful for greetings and congratulations
received from clients, business associates and the business
community at large. Mr. Gregory So, JP Secretary for Commerce
and Economic Development, Mr. Cliff Sun, Chairman of Hong
Kong Federation of Industries and Mr. Quek Leng Chan,
Executive Chairman of Hong Leong Group, our major shareholder
officiated at our celebration banquet on May 11, this year. It was
also our honour to receive the apothegm “FIEBER4LE"” from The
Honourable Donald Tsang, Chief Executive of Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China.

Achieving the Finest Purpose — “From Passion to
Recognition” is the theme of our celebration for our 50th
anniversary year. We have, over the fifty years, built a core
business of well-recognised leading brands and best products in
edible oils, wheat-flour and detergents. We offer more than 140
different types of finest flour ground from select wheat, finest
edible oils refined from natural raw materials, and finest cleaning
detergents meant for a healthy living environment. Our top
premium flour brands were selected as the official flour supplier
for the Beijing 2008 Olympic Games. Our edible oil was awarded
a National Technology Patent Certificate and appointed as the
Healthy Oil of World Heart Day 2010. Our Detergent was chosen
for the Expo 2010 Shanghai China.

RARAREZBE-Z——FANA=THILE
BEEZFH SFEFREAKEEZETAFRE
B BARLVEBHZIEF BXBAEREBRZ
NEXR BBEREERRRBARHKHRLTE
AFP#HE BBIERBSETFERMAULERK
SEEERREEEEHNTEIFERSTRLEE
FERMRSEEA+-RETHERBRE - X
EEFERERPEARANEE BERTHR
BITHRESRELEEABER — [FER
e

B OBHM RE - (%0 ERETHER
REME+AERENEE - RMHEBEE T
FEVUBBANRBENRAS WHRE
P2ARRENZOER RAEBHBBASED
BERNBBR140ZEBHEY - ARAME
ERMENBERERAHRARRETRESR
WEREZAR BANREZEEN REEER
£2008 L HREEMIEEMMHHER - REEW
ERAHFERRBEREMNBEFRES )N RIETE
AMROEB 2010 ER MR ] - RFANE
ZRAMAA 2010 E LBt EERERA -
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT EES X EHREE

O

Passion to Grow — Our businesses had gone through many
challenges over the half century. Our Group was established
in Hong Kong in 1961 and we first ventured into the Mainland
market in 1989. We became a member of the Hong Leong
Group in 1997, a significant milestone in our corporate
restructuring and expansion into China. Efforts made in the last
ten years resulted in Lam Soon’s rapid growth at the beginning
of the 21st Century. We have transformed from a small Hong
Kong food trader 50 years ago into an industry leader with a
national footprint. Besides fortifying our core markets in Hong
Kong and Southern China, we have enhanced our wheat-flour
manufacturing capacity in Eastern China, commissioned a new
production plant in 2010 in Northern China, and concluded our
investment for another plant in Western China this year. Our
sales and distribution network has expanded gradually in tandem
with our manufacturing plant investments into all these regions
for us to reach a much bigger customer base.

Financial Results

Turnover increased by 14% to HK$2.5 billion. The Group’s
net profit for the year to shareholders was HK$91 million as
compared to HK$122 million last year. Our basic earnings were
HK$0.38 per share.

We achieved sales growth through new investments in sales and
distribution activities in Eastern and Northern China. However,
higher sales did not translate into higher operating profit due to
rising commodity costs and control of selling prices.

HRNF — AEENEBEBEFELLR
BRAES - REER-AAN—FHEFBEL -
TR—ANAFEREERM TS - RfE
—hhEtFERREEEFERE  BELHRMAE
TEETEXEARBEAXBNERE - BE
THENE DT RERIEN T — AR AVRRE
BR-RMBELTFAN-—BEBER L NEE
HARBRREABENAR  EBRERERESR
HE - BRIBERMNEBREBROT S -
EATRAEZERNWENER - RAR-ZF-F
FHEELRIHEE  TRFRAEEAREES
—FAEERENRE - RMNEER 2 HAK
THELERENRESRESRAEZZS
B RAEEARESENTFH -

CYEEE 3

EXEE EFH14% Z B ¥ 2,500,000,000 7T ° A
SEZRREMLEFRHBE 91,000,000t @ £
F R A8 122,000,0007T c KEBNERE
REFBBEE0.38TT °

REBZBHERREL CHERD HEKE
HHREMBFGHEEER - A - ARBERK
AR EERSB BB - HERELLBERK
BERISHER -

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2011 | ZZE—— 5% HIE(FB)ERAT



CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT EES X EHREE

Financial Results (continued)

So far, the Group had financed all of its new investment projects
through internal operating cash. During this period of economic
uncertainty, we will continue to exercise prudent financial
management disciplines as we seek further investment and
acquisition opportunities to expand our business.

The directors are recommending a final dividend of HK$0.10
per share at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. Together
with the interim dividend of HK$0.06 per share already paid, the
total dividend for the year will amount to HK$0.16 per share as
compared to HK$0.16 total dividend per share for the previous
year.

Business Review

Our efforts and investments have been focused on expanding our
revenue base by growing in the new markets and through new
product launches. Total revenue in the new markets achieved
32% growth and sales of new products accounted for 4% of the
Group’s total turnover. Sales of our core brands, including Knife
and Red Lantern edible oil, Golden Statue and American Roses
flour, as well as AXE and Labour detergent, had increased by
14% during the year.

We are working on our long-term plan to increase our
manufacturing capacity in strategic locations, and expanding
our sales and distribution network beyond Hong Kong and
Southern China to grow our business nationwide. Our enhanced
supply services through wider distribution coverage and more
competitive product offerings of higher-grade quality will continue
to position us in the leading premium segments of the industry.

MIFEE¥EE w)

BAl - AREPUANEEESTRBEHR
BB BEREETHPHE  RMABREET
EEEHRAUNER  GEEVECRERKE
HELUmRER

EETENNEBET2RRBEETS LARRE
B MERBERHREEREB®E0.107T < HLIE
REERDIKE 2 PHKRESKRER0.06 T
REEHRBEREBEESEBRBEE0167T
EFNRBRBE016T -

EHOER

BPEIENRBRENEIEERIERT TS
FHEHER  UBEATEENKZER -
TMHENRREHRLIERERTEREEMAE
BAEHEENI% FAEEZOREBHEE &
EIeE R[4 E I AR T8 [EZH 8
BHURIFEIRBT IBREZRARREARAN
SHEIL M 14%

EMERBRRTE - DUBIMAKRE £ B
ENER TERMNHEERIHERAGRERE
ERRERUME  SEMANEBBRRER
HE - AEEEREFREZINOHEAERME
ERWERELCEHERYE  UH<SAEERE
EERWERLE -
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT EES X EHREE
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Business Review (continued)

In the process, we recognise the Group may suffer from short-
term profit set-backs but over the longer term, our strategy
would lead to a bigger, better business franchise for sustainable
growth and increased capital value.

Outlook

We see the dynamics of market opportunities and challenges to
continue as demonstrated by the high rate of China’s GDP and
CPI. China’s GDP continues to grow at 9.6% and CPI was up to
6.5% in July this year despite many measures imposed by the
government to cool down the economy. Some of the key cities,
such as Guangzhou, Shanghai, and Beijing have increased the
minimum wages by 20%. We believe that as personal income
grows so will the demand for better higher grade staple products
as the standard of living improves. This would be good for the
growth of our premium brand products.

However, rising labour cost puts pressure on profit margin on
the manufacturing sector in China. The difficult and challenging
global financial and economic environments are expected to
create uncertainty and volatility of commodity prices affecting
manufacturing costs of production. To address the expected
continued rise of commodity prices in the near term and to
secure the supply of quality raw materials, we shall continue our
prudent inventory management of selective buying at reasonable
costs and to maintain a high level of inventory to meet new
demands.

HFEEEE )

BLBEED  BMIZIFAEERSAZEY
HEAER - BREMS  HMANKBETRE
BRE ExEMNERLER  EFUBERRE
KIEMEAREE -

RE

TENEALEEREREEEYEEHSE
BRMERMERERE  BEBRFELZE
EEERER - PRBANEERENDFEEM
£06%  HEENERIARAFELREAZR
6.5%  BRETERET » WEM » Bkt
RNRETEDIEM20% - HMEE - BEEE
AW - BEEZENJIRGEEZKTR
AMAREN  AEENEEREERTEE

AR TERA EAHPEREENEFNER
B - BiERIRE RN AR R 7 m R E Ak
B AHSESEARERTRTIAPERERK
B EMPELEERS  FEHERERESRR

HEE AREESEREEFEEERA B
BUHUSERANE  YERBESFEEU
FESHTR ©
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT EES X EHREE

Outlook (continued)

Product safety is an increasing concern at all levels of society.
There are increasing demands for higher ethics for management,
and more scientific requirements and stringent regulations for
product quality control. New government regulations have been
updated more frequently to prohibit the use of additives and
harmful ingredients in food and household products. Incremental
costs and investments to address this health-safety aspect are
expected to increase for manufacturers to remain competitive
as an industry leader. We have always taken product safety
seriously and our management pays particular attention to its
compliance.

We are in China to build long term market competitive position
providing safe premium products as we increase our business
scale. We will continue to expand our production capacity in
Northern China and Western China. Our Qingzhou plant in
Shandong will increase its wheat processing capacity from 500
metric tons to 1,100 metric tons per day. In Western China, we
have completed the land acquisition at Qionglai City in May this
year, and we are ready to commence construction of the new
flourmill with 600 metric tons per day in the new financial year.
Our total wheat processing capacity will be increased to 1.5
million metric tons per year upon the completion of the Western
Plant by December 2012. The China National Association of
Grain Sector has confirmed our current ranking as number five in
the top fifty flourmill companies in China.

Complementing our capital investments in production capacity
and nationwide sales networks is our commitment to invest in
our people for achieving sustainable growth and building stronger
competitive advantages. We will continue to upgrade our
personnel in research and development, marketing, production
and quality control to keep improving ourselves as a producer of
leading brands and the best products.

FREE (&)

HERREOTEIERLZE HEEREER
MERBRER HEREERHNEENE L
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Appreciation

As we celebrate our Golden Jubilee, we express our appreciation
to the late Mr. Whang Tar Choung for his vision to establish Lam
Soon in 1961 and to give it a firm footing with brands like Knife,
Red Lantern and AXE which are now household names in Hong
Kong.

Our appreciation also goes to all our customers, suppliers
and bankers, many of whom have given us their support over
many years. We are grateful to our management and staff
for their dedication and hard work over the years, and to our
shareholders for their faith and belief in us to build and grow
our company bigger and better. It has been your efforts that
have enabled our Group to meet new challenges, create new
standards, acquire patents and win acclaims and market share.
With your support, we will maintain that leadership spirit, and
will continue our commitment to innovate and grow. Our mission
is to provide high quality, healthy and safe products to make
everyday life easier and enjoyable for all. We look forward to the
beginning of an even better, brighter future in the next 50 years.

KWEK Leng Hai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 August 2011
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS £E4 =

Honour and Awards 2282 EASTH

Brand Sik#
LSHK Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited was granted Judging Panel Award by Category (Food — Rice,
HIEE & Cooking QOil & Other) in Hong Kong Corporate Branding Award 2010 held by Ming Pao
FIE(ER)BRAREBREIN FBBERECEREER 2010 NFEERE (K - @aKRE
EmE5)
October 2010 2010410 A
Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Group was ranked in “China Top 50 in Wheat Flour
Enterprises 2011~
MIE(EB)EERE 2011 FEZE/NEHINT 508D
April 2011 201154 B
Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited was granted “The Excellence of Listed Enterprise Awards”
by Capital Weekly
MIE(EB)BRARE(EAEE)E
[ L R#E 2011 ]
August 2011 201158 B
Oil & Detergent “Knife” and “AXE” were awarded “Consumer’s Most Favourable
HAE & Hong Kong Brands 2011” by China Enterprise Reputation & Credibility
gz 4Rt Association (Overseas)

 —
TER FEEERERECEN CECEHERBN 201 EEETBREERDME]

September 2011 201149 A
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS £E4E

Honour and Awards 2552 B1A§TH

Brand @18

Oil & Flour

HAER

s

Shenzhen Lam Soon Edible Oils Company, Limited and Shekou Lam Soon Flour Mills

Company Limited both earn the names of
“Top 500 Enterprises in Guangdong 2010” and
“Top 100 Manufacturers in Guangdong 2010” - -

RYNEIEEEAERA A REORIBENERIAEE 2010 FEREEER TR M

(2010 FEREHIER T & IRE

July 2010 2010%7 A

18
Shenzhen Lam Soon Edible Oils Company, Limited and Shekou Lam Soon Flour Mills
Company Limited has been recognised as “2010 China Quality Credit Enterprise by China
Entry-Exit Inspection and Quarantine Association”
FYIEIEHEER AR RO MEIBRERER AR EPEH
HAERBBRGESEE2010FE2HELOEEN
S |
November 2010 2010 11 A
“Web Care Award” by Internet Professional Association
B\
B EHEABiIHEER EERERE TR
—mmmmm
www.lamsoon.com A= fRHE E—adE
www.haomama.com ABRE o3 &8 o3 o3 7P A i
www.hkflourmills.com ABERE HiE &8 Firg3 fR4E E—iE
www.haomama.com.cn * * * o3 o3 E—hiE
www.lamsoonoil.com ABERiE HidE * S48 fR4E *
www.love2clean.com ABERE HidE * firk3 fR4E *
* Not enrolled for the year MR G2 8
(),
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS £E4 =

Community Care #t[EFHIE

>

2
Sponsored Programmes & % /J\ ’?. 2¥ = g
e Sponsor HK$100,000 to The Boys™ & Girls” Clubs Association of Hong Kong
for charity purpose
BB 2 &S
e NBEBNERZS(HREE RS

BHEBRETFERZRE 19

Sponsorship to The Better Hong Kong Foundation

B EBAXRES S

The Community Chest of Hong Kong - Walk for Millions

FEAGS - 5ET

Participated in the Walk for Millions organised

by The Community Chest of Hong Kong for many years.

BEBFHAESHEEBLRSERNEEIT -
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS Z¥f5EIEA

Operation Review

During the first quarter of the financial year, commodity costs
had increased rapidly ensuing from the consequences of the fire
in Russia in July 2010. Wheat and soybean oil prices took the
lead going up by 50% and 30% respectively. During the second
half of the financial year, increases in wheat cost peaked at
70%, soybean oil peaked at 57%, and petroleum crude oil prices
peaked at 27%. We began to react cautiously to control sales to
reduce margin erosion. Following the rising CPI in September,
increase of retail prices was under regulatory control. It was
difficult and challenging to pass the increased costs to the trade
during the period.

Increasing domestic costs, including energy, delivery, and labor
costs, had added operating pressure to many businesses. In
Hong Kong the minimum hourly salary rate was implemented.

We continue to focus on our branded premium products to
minimize the short term impacts on margins. At the same time,
we had increased the number of sales offices in China to 26 to
enhance our local sales penetration and after-sale-services. New
product developments and innovative marketing initiatives were
deployed to improve our long term competitive positioning.

Food Segment

Food segment consists of our edible oil and flour businesses.
The segment achieved 15% sales growth to HK$2,161 million.
Operating profit for the segment was HK$119 million, which was

11% lower than that of the previous year.

Qur edible oil business was focused on development of a
healthier product portfolio. During the period, our Knife Brand
launched Omega 3 series to enrich its health quality benefit to
the younger generation. Knife High Oleic was developed and
won endorsement from Hong Kong College of Cardiology as
Recommended Healthy Oil of World Heart Day 2010 (50
H 2010 & JH). The healthy and premium equity of our brand
was further enhanced with our sponsorship of the Hong Kong
Cycling Team starting from June 2011. Our Red Lantern brand
came out with the new formula 4:1 to provide the benefits of
absorption of natural DHA and EPA during consumption. Our 4:1
formula received the national patent in Mainland China.

ZEFmER

R-ZE—ZFtH BERZENL BYF
RERREABREFEEESH NERETH
MBS BN 50% K% 30% « RAGHEET
¥E, NBERERLAT70% BT HERR
BEAST%  BHERES LHA27% - AEE
FEEZEHHEEUREE2EFBNEE o fEE
N EBEYERE LA ZEERAAZ
BB o BARIE M AN EIEREEE SR
R EPEMR o

R AEN - BEEN - EERTIEER
RYRBITRBREERD - ABEETE
RETE -

BMEEEINEEREERUREEF BN
T E - HUtER - HPPEMPEEENRS
BB ZE26[  UREAXBEESERE AR
EERE  WETERMBERAZNTSER
DEACAEERENB I

R

RmoNEERABRENEL - 2 BEE
15%HEB R ZE¥2,161,000,000 7T ° 5 =B
FI & ER BB 119,000,000 * BEEET
BR11% o

AREENERAMERIEE IHBEEER
HE R RAIMI DB R HEKRMIER
7 AEE-—RHESBE - KWHABTES
REmEE | TEFBLEENSRENAM
RUMB2010RERB] - AEERENEE
REBEFR  BR-_Z——F ABRREHSE
BEENRBEE -SSR AEBMZ[AE]
MR PR HE A2 N 38 A B8 IR UL DHA K EPA Z %
4:1EF - RBP4 1 BRAETBERBES
BIREMEF o
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Operation Review (continueq)
Food Segment (continued)

Our Flour business which had expanded its production capacity
in the previous two years in Eastern and Northern China
continued to realize sales growth during the past twelve months.
This was accomplished with our expanded distribution networks
and the consistency of our flour premium quality. In December
2010, our new plant in Jintan, Jiangsu Province received the
awards of Export-oriented Agricultural Subsidy Project and
Subsidy Fund (/MEEEEFRLIEE R #BIE €) and Established
Famous Brand Products (&l & & & m) from the government for
our continuous effort to improve quality and brand development.

During the year, we collaborated with the State Administration
of Grain (“SAG”) to launch China’s first Advanced Flour Milling
Vocational Training Programme in October 2010. A total of
14 millers from the Group had passed the examinations and
were certified by the SAG as China’s first batch of certified

professional millers.
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Operation Review (continueq)
Detergent Segment

Detergent segment achieved 12% sales growth to HK$341
million. During the financial year, our operating margins reduced
by HK$8 million largely due to the volatility of petroleum crude
oil prices which had increased from US$79 per barrel at the
beginning of the financial year to US$95 per barrel in June 2011.
Its highest price reached US$114 per barrel in February this
year.

We expanded the revenue base of our detergent segment
through our wider distribution networks into new markets and
through more innovative new products launched. Sales of our
new products accounted for 8% of the segment’s total sales. We
successfully launched AXE Jasmine Tea dishwashing detergent,
AXE hand soap, and Ripple dishwashing detergent during
the year. These products have attractive features to win new
consumers along the demand trends for better products thereby

further enhancing our premium positioning.

Procleanic, our institutional brand designed for commercial and
industrial applications, continued to gain robust growth in Hong
Kong, Macau, and Mainland China. Our clients included major
fast food chains, hotels, and property establishments.

Turnover — Detergent Segment (HK$ million)
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Financial Review
Group Results

For the year ended 30 June 2011, the Group’s turnover
increased by HK$317 million to HK$2,510 million. Owing to the
rapid increase in raw material costs, our margins decreased from
20% to 18%.

In order to support the growth in sales, the selling and
distribution expenses grew by HK$27 million or 12%, to HK$259
million. The increase was primarily attributable to the marketing
expenses and the additional costs for new market development
outside Southern China.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

At 30 June 2011, the Group had a net debt balance of HK$57
million (2010: net cash of HK$503 million). This was mainly
attributable to the increase in current assets.

At 30 June 2011, the Group had a cash balance of HK$171
million (2010: HK$569 million). About 70% of these funds were
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”), 15% in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”"), 12% in United States dollars (“USD”) and 3% in Macau
Pataca (“MOP”) respectively.

At 30 June 2011, the Group had HK$611 million committed bank
facilities (2010: HK$306 million) of which HK$228 million (2010:
HK$65 million) was utilized. All bank borrowings carried interest
at floating rates and were repayable within 1 year.

The Group centralises all the financing and treasury activities at
corporate level. There are stringent controls over the application
of financial and hedging instruments which can only be employed
to manage and mitigate the price risk of commodities for trade

purposes.
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Financial Review (continued)
Liquidity and Financial Resources (continued)

At 30 June 2011, the inventory turnover days were 145 days
(2010: 65 days). Higher level of raw materials was primarily due
to the Group’s prudent inventory management, ensuring the
supply of high quality raw materials and keeping sufficient stock
at reasonable cost to protect the margin. The trade receivable
turnover days remained at a healthy level of 23 days (2010: 21
days).

In view of the strong liquidity and financial position, management
believes the Group will have sufficient resources to fund its daily
operations and capital expenditure commitments.

Foreign Currency Exposure

The Group has operations in Mainland China and Hong Kong.
Local costs and revenue are primarily denominated in Renminbi
and Hong Kong dollars. All the Group’s borrowings were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales,
purchases and deposits that are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the entity to which they relate.
Details of the foreign currency exposure of the Group are set out
in note 5(d) to the financial statements.

Exchange gain for the year is set out in note 8 to the financial

statements.

Capital Expenditure

During the year, the Group invested a total sum of HK$61 million
on acquisition of equipment and land use right for building a new

plant.

Details of the capital expenditure commitments are set out in
note 35(a) to the financial statements.
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Financial Review (continued)
Contingent Liabilities

Details of the contingent liabilities are set out in note 36 to the

financial statements.
Human Resources and Training

As at 30 June 2011, there were approximately 1,600 employees
in the Group. Annual increment and year-end performance bonus
mechanism were incorporated in the Group’s remuneration policy
to retain, reward and motivate individuals for their contributions
to the Group. The Company also operates a Share Option
Scheme for granting of options to eligible employees. During the
year, 19,000,000 options were granted to the Group Managing
Director and certain eligible employees of the Group pursuant
to the Share Option Scheme. 850,000 options granted to
employees were lapsed during the year. Accordingly, the number
of outstanding options was 18,150,000 as at 30 June 2011.

Relation with Shareholders and Investors

The Company encourages two-way communication with its
stakeholders. Extensive information about the Group’s activities
is provided in the Annual and Interim Reports, which are sent to
shareholders. The Group also maintains a number of websites
to provide a wide range of information on the Group and its
businesses.

Relation with Community

During the year, the Group continued to support a wide spectrum
of community services targeting the needy in Hong Kong, the
Mainland China and beyond. The Group had supported the
activities organised by The Better Hong Kong Foundation and
had participated in the Community Chest Walk for Millions.

Bt F5EIRE )
HRERE

FARBBEZFBIHN T BEREMEI6 -

ANERREN

RZE-——FXRA=+H > AEBHNEEE
1,600 A c REBEFHMERAREFEFHE
BRFARBRBESE  BUBREAS - £E
REBBETHAEEMENER - XA ER
UERETE UEMBRETEERZE
8 Fi - RIEE RS 24 H 19,000,000
BREEEESHALEREMESE - HPEF
EE 850,000 RBRELC AR - AtR=F
——FXA=Z+TH HRTEZEREHE S
18,150,000 °

HRR R EERER

ARBEBMEANZEBEE CEANELRER - &
SENFRRTPHRE  HEKEEHNFSR
ER AFTEHRTRR AKETESZER
U REAKEREEBNEZESR -

B4t [ B A 1%

RER > AEFEESXF -RINWHEEST
EREDEE  PEAMKRIEMBEEFE
BEAT - AEEHEBRREFESHZHZ
BRHTUAXBAEBRAGEHET °

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2011 | ZZ2——F 5% HIE(FB)ERA T

31

®



DIRECTORS’ PROFILE EE/& 1

32

Kwek Leng Hai

Aged 58, is the Chairman of the Company since October
2006 and has been a Non-Executive Director of the Company
since appointment to the Board in 1997. Mr. Kwek is also the
Chairman of Board Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Kwek is a director and shareholder of Hong Leong Company
(Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM”), the ultimate holding company of
the Company. He is the President, CEO of Guoco Group Limited
(“GGL"), a Hong Kong listed subsidiary of HLCM. He also holds
directorships in key listed subsidiaries and associated companies
of GGL including Guocoland Limited and Guocoleisure Limited,
both listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited, and Hong Leong Bank Berhad listed on Bursa Malaysia.
He is also a director of Bank of Chengdu Co., Ltd.

Mr. Kwek qualified as a chartered accountant of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He is the brother-
in-law of Dr. Whang Sun Tze, a Non-Executive Director of the
Company.

Leung Wai Fung

Aged 55, Executive Director of the Company since July 2005.
Mr. Leung has been designated as the Group Managing Director
with effect from 1 September 2006.

Mr. Leung joined the Company in 1997 and had assumed the
positions of Group Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating
Officer of the Group’s Distribution Segment in Hong Kong. He
was appointed as Executive Director of the Board in June 2002.
Mr. Leung left the Company and assumed a senior management
position with a Hong Leong Group company in March 2004 and
rejoined the Company in July 2005.

Mr. Leung holds a Bachelor Degree in Business Administration
from Simon Fraser University and an Executive Master’s Degree
in Business Administration (EMBA) from Fudan University School
of Management. He has over 20 years of experience in the areas
of business management, strategic planning and development as
well as acquisitions and mergers.

He had worked in Hong Kong and overseas with multinationals,
including The East Asiatic (EAC), British Petroleum (BP),
Inchcape Pacific, Hiram Walker-Allied Vintners in the U.S.A. and
Canada, and Hostess Frito-Lay (snack food division of Pepsi-
Cola) in Canada. Before joining the Company in 1997, Mr. Leung

was the General Manager of Guoco Investments (China) Limited.
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Whang Sun Tze
Ph.D.

Aged 67, Non-Executive Director of the Company since
appointment to the Board in 1984.

Dr. Whang holds a Doctorate Degree in Chemical Engineering.
He is the brother-in-law of Mr. Kwek Leng Hai.

Lo Kwong Chi, Clement

Aged 66, Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
since 1993 and Non-Executive Director of the Company
since appointment to the Board in 1975. He is the Chairman
of the Board Audit Committee and a member of the Board

Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Lo is a solicitor by profession and was admitted to practice
both in Hong Kong and England in 1970.

Tan Lim Heng

Aged 63, Non-Executive Director of the Company since
appointment to the Board in 1997.

Mr. Tan is an executive director of GGL and is the managing
director of GuocoCapital Limited and GuocoCommodities
Limited, wholly-owned subsidiaries of GGL. Mr. Tan holds a
Bachelor of Science first class honours degree in engineering
from University of Surrey and a Master of Science degree in
management from Massachusetts Institute of Technology.
He had previously worked in Geneva in 1974 with the United
Nations Conference on Trade and Development. He had also
served in the Singapore Civil Service as a Colombo Plan Scholar
1975-1978 before coming to work in Hong Kong with a financial
services company and a major U.S. bank. Mr. Tan has extensive
experience in property investment, financial and investment

management services.
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Tsang Cho Tai

Aged 61, Non-Executive Director of the Company since
appointment to the Board in 1997. Mr. Tsang is also a member
of Board Audit Committee of the Company.

Mr. Tsang was re-designated as Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in 1999 and as Non-Executive Director
in 2004.

Mr. Tsang is also the chief financial officer of the GGL group.
Prior to that, he was an associate of an international firm of
accountants. He is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) as well as an associate
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales.

Ding Wai Chuen

Aged 51, Non-Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Ding
was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company in 2004 and re-designated as a Non-Executive Director
in September 2009. He also serves as an executive director of
GGL.

Mr. Ding is an associate member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and a fellow member of the
HKICPA. Mr. Ding is currently a council member of the HKICPA.

Mr. Ding has over 25 years of experience as a professional
accountant with international firms of accountants in England
and in Hong Kong and with the HKICPA. In 2007, Mr. Ding was
appointed by the Hong Kong SAR Government as a member of
the Financial Reporting Review Panel of the Financial Reporting
Council. Since 2002, Mr. Ding has been appointed by the
PRC Ministry of Finance as a member of the Advisory Group
of Foreign Experts for the development of PRC’s Independent
Auditing Standards. Mr. Ding is a member of Railway Objections

Hearing Panel.
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Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony

Aged 62, Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
since appointment to the Board in December 2008. He is a
member of the Board Audit Committee of the Company.

Mr. Lo is qualified as a chartered accountant with the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Ontario, Canada and a member of
the HKICPA. Mr. Lo has over 30 years of experience in banking,
finance and investments. He worked for a number of well-known

financial institutions as managing director.

Mr. Lo is an independent non-executive director and members
of the audit and nomination committees of the Taiwan Fund Inc,
which is listed on the New York Stock Exchange. Mr. Lo is also
an independent non-executive director and chairman of the audit
committee of Mecox Lane Limited, a company listed on Nasdaq
in the USA.

He also holds other directorships in a number of listed
companies in Hong Kong including independent non-executive
director and the audit committee chairman of IDT International
Limited; independent non-executive director, the audit committee
chairman and members of the remuneration and nomination
committees of Playmates Holdings Limited; independent non-
executive director, audit committee chairman and member of
the remuneration committee of Tristate Holdings Limited; and
independent non-executive director and member of the audit
committee of Convenient Retail Asia Limited.

Au Chee Ming

Aged 60, Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
since appointment to the Board in August 2009. He is a member
of the Board Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Au holds a Bachelor Degree in Commerce and Finance from
The University of Calgary, Canada. Mr. Au has over 30 years
of experience in banking and finance sectors. He worked for a
number of world-wide banks and financial institutions.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) has
adopted a Code of Corporate Governance Practices (the “CGP
Code”), which is based on the principles set out in Appendix
14 (the "HKEx Code”) to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”). Continuous efforts are made to review and
enhance the Group’s internal controls and procedures in light of
changes in regulations and developments in best practices.

The Company had complied throughout the financial year ended
30 June 2011 with the HKEx Code, save that non-executive
directors were not appointed for a specific term. However, they
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting pursuant to the articles of association of the
Company and the CGP Code. As such, the Company considers
that such provisions are sufficient to meet the intent of the
relevant provisions of the HKEx Code.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company had adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the code
of conduct governing directors’ securities transactions.

All directors of the Company during the year, following specific
enquiry by the Company, have confirmed that they have

complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year.

Board of Directors
Composition of the Board

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
hereof are set out in the Directors’ Report on page 44.

Board Meetings and Attendance
During the year, four board meetings were held. Apart from Mr.

LO Kai Yiu, Anthony who had attended three meetings, all other
directors had attended all four meetings.
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Board of Directors (continueq)
Operations of the Board

The Board determines the corporate mission and broad
strategies, monitors and controls operating and financial
performance and sets appropriate policies to manage risks in
pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives. Decisions involving
financial statements, dividend policy, material contracts and
major investments and divestments are reviewed and subject
to approval by the Board. Other main roles of the Board are to
ensure that adequate internal control systems and management
information systems are in place, including being in compliance
with every aspect of the provisions of applicable laws,
regulations, rules, directives and guidelines to create value for
its shareholders and to ensure that the Company has adequate
management to achieve the Company’s strategic objectives.

Independence of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors

The Company received confirmation of independence from each
of the independent non-executive directors (“INEDs”) for the year
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Up to and as at the
date of this report, the Company still considers that the INEDs
continue to be independent.

Relationship among the Members of the Board

The family relationships among the members of the Board are
disclosed under “Directors’ Profile” on pages 32 to 35 of this
annual report.

Chairman and Group Managing
Director

The roles of Chairman and Group Managing Director (“GMD”) are
segregated and are not held by the same person. Currently Mr.
KWEK Leng Hai is the Chairman and Mr. LEUNG Wai Fung is the
GMD of the Company.

The primary responsibility of the Chairman is to ensure effective
functioning of the Board, which focuses on the Group’s broad
strategic direction and macro oversight of the management.
The GMD is responsible for the management of the Company
in accordance with the strategies approved by the Board of
Directors.
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Directors’ Remuneration
Board Remuneration Committee (“BRC”)

The principal role of the BRC is to make recommendations to
the Board on the policy and structure for all remuneration of
directors and senior management, and to determine the specific
remuneration packages of the executive director and all senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payment, including any compensation payable for
loss or termination of their office or appointment, and making
recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of non-
executive directors. The BRC would also consider factors such
as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the directors, employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance-based
remuneration. The terms of reference of the BRC adopted by the
Board are available on the Company’s website (www.lamsoon.

com).

For the year, the BRC comprised Messrs. KWEK Leng Hai
(Chairman of the Company and the BRC), LO Kwong Chi,
Clement and AU Chee Ming. Mr. LO Kwong Chi, Clement and
Mr. AU Chee Ming are INEDs of the Company.

During the year, two BRC meetings were held, Messrs. KWEK
Leng Hai, LO Kwong Chi, Clement and Mr. AU Chee Ming
attended all two meetings. At these meetings, the remuneration
packages of the executive director and senior management for

the year were reviewed.

Nomination of Directors

The Board is responsible for the selection and recommendation
of candidates for directorship of the Company. Reference would
be made to the skills, experience, professional integrity and time
commitments of the proposed candidate, the Company’s needs
and other applicable statutory requirements. The Board would
also review the size, structure and composition of the Board.

No new director was appointed during the year.
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Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year, the external auditors of the Group charged
approximately HK$650,000 for annual audit service and there
was no non-audit service rendered by the external auditors.

Board Audit Committee (“BAC”)

The BAC oversees the financial reporting processes and
assesses the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
system of internal control. The BAC meets with the Company’s
external auditors and the internal auditors for their evaluations of
the internal control system. It also reviews interests in contracts
and connected transactions. The BAC reviews the financial
statements of the Company and the consolidated financial
statements of the Group and the auditors’ report thereon and
submits its views to the Board. The terms of reference of the
BAC are available on the Company’s website (www.lamsoon.
com).

For the year, the BAC comprised Messrs. LO Kwong Chi,
Clement (Chairman of the BAC), TSANG Cho Tai and LO Kai
Yiu, Anthony. Mr. LO Kwong Chi, Clement and Mr. LO Kai Yiu,
Anthony are INEDs of the Company.

During the year, four BAC meetings were held. Messrs. LO
Kwong Chi, Clement, TSANG Cho Tai and LO Kai Yiu, Anthony
attended all four meetings.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the BAC
during the year:

— reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group’s systems of internal control and enterprise risk

management;

— reviewed the consolidated financial statements and results
of the Group;

— reviewed the external auditors’ report thereon;

— reviewed the appropriateness of the Group’s accounting
policies;
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Board Audit Committee (“BAC”)

(continued)

— reviewed at various times the potential impact of the
generally accepted accounting principles in Hong Kong on
the Company’s accounts;

— reviewed the nature and scope of external audit and
approved the external audit fee; and

— reviewed adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experiences of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes.

A statement by the external auditors on their reporting
responsibilities is set out on page 58 to 59 of the annual report.

The directors of the Company have acknowledged their
responsibility for preparing the financial statements for the year.

Internal Controls

The internal control system is designed to facilitate the
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, safeguard assets
against unauthorised use and disposition, ensure the
maintenance of proper accounting records and the truth and
fairness of the financial statements, and ensure compliance with
relevant legislation and regulations. It provides reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss
and manages rather than eliminates risks associated with its
business activities.

The Board, recognising its responsibilities in ensuring sound
internal controls, has developed a risk management framework
for the Group to assist in:

— identifying the significant risks faced by the Group in the
operating environment as well as evaluating the impact of
such risks identified;

— developing the necessary measures for managing these
risks; and

— monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness and adequacy
of such measures.
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Internal Controls (continueq)

The Board has entrusted the BAC with the responsibility to
oversee the implementation of the risk management framework
of the Group. In discharging this responsibility, the BAC, assisted
by the Group Internal Audit Department:

— ensures that new and emerging risks relevant to the
Group are promptly identified by management;

— assesses the adequacy of action plans and control
systems developed to manage these risks; and

— monitors the implementation of the action plans and the
effectiveness and adequacy of the control systems.

These on-going processes have been in place, and reviewed
periodically by the BAC.

The controls built into the risk management framework are
intended to manage and not expected to eliminate all risks of
failure to achieve business objectives. These controls provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement of management and financial information or against

financial losses and fraud.

In the associated companies and jointly controlled companies,
the Board nominates representatives to sit as directors and
take a proactive stance in assessing the performance of the
entity with the goal of safeguarding the investment of the Group.
Where practical, the Group may request functional, financial and
operating information as well as assurance that such information
have been prepared in accordance with reporting standards and
have been derived from control environments acceptable to the
Group.

The Board, through the BAC, has conducted an annual review
on the Group’s internal control system and considers that it is
adequate and effective. The Board is satisfied that the Group has
fully complied with the provisions on internal controls as set out
in the CGP Code.
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The directors submit their annual report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2011.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out on pages 165 to
167.

Subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out on pages 165
to 167.

Financial Statements

The profit of the Group for the year, the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 30 June 2011 and the Group’s
cash flows and statement of changes in equity for the year
ended are set out in the financial statements on pages 60 to
164.

Dividends

The Directors are recommending to the shareholders for
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held
on Tuesday, 29 November 2011 a final dividend of HK$0.10 per
share. This, together with the interim dividend of HK$0.06 per
share paid on Tuesday, 15 March 2011, will amount to a total
dividend of HK$0.16 per share for the year (2010: HK$0.16).
Subject to shareholders’ approval, the final dividend will be
payable on Monday, 12 December 2011 to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members on Wednesday,
7 December 2011.
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Closure of Register of Members

The Register of Members will be closed from Thursday, 24
November 2011 to Tuesday, 29 November 2011 (both days
inclusive) during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order for the shareholders to be eligible to attend
and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company, all transfer of shares accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Share
Registrars and Transfer Office — Hongkong Managers and
Secretaries Limited (“HKMS”) at Unit 3401-2, 34th Floor, AIA
Tower, 183 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong, not later than
4:00 p.m. on Wednesday, 23 November 2011 for registration.

The Register of Members will also be closed from Monday, 5
December 2011 to Wednesday, 7 December 2011 (both days
inclusive) during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for the final dividend, all transfer
of shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with HKMS, not later than 4:00 p.m. on Friday, 2

December 2011 for registration.

Charitable Donations

Charitable donations made by the Group amounted to
HK$500,000 during the year (2010: HK$500,000).

Share Capital

As set out in Note 32(a) to the financial statements, there were
no movements in share capital during the year.

Reserves

Movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Movements in reserves of the Company during the year are set
out in Note 34(a) to the financial statements.

Fixed Assets

Movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in Note 17
to the financial statements.
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Directors

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report
are:

KWEK Leng Hai, Chairman*

LEUNG Wai Fung, Group Managing Director**
WHANG Sun Tze*

LO Kwong Chi, Clement”

TAN Lim Heng*

TSANG Cho Tai*

DING Wai Chuen*

LO Kai Yiu, Anthony*

AU Chee Ming"

**  Executive director

*

Non-executive director

" Independent non-executive director

In accordance with Article 78 of the Company’s articles of
association, Messrs. LO Kwong Chi, Clement, LO Kai Yiu,
Anthony and AU Chee Ming shall retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries, within one year without payment of

compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries, holding company
or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.
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Connected Transactions
Master Services Agreement

A master services agreement (the “Master Services Agreement”)
was entered into by the Company (together with its subsidiaries,
the “Group”) with Guoline Group Management Co. Limited
(*GGMC”) and GOMC Limited (*GOMC”) on 30 June 2008 for
provision of services by GGMC or GOMC (the “Service Provider”)
to the Company and/or its subsidiaries, which include, among
other things, overview of businesses and operations, investment
management and financial management disciplines, treasury
and risk management, key managerial recruitment and retention,
productivity and quality programmes and other operating
practices and procedures as well as planning and development
of management information systems.

The Master Services Agreement is for a term of three financial
years from 1 July 2008 to 30 June 2011.

The fees payable under the Master Services Agreement comprise
a monthly fee (the “Monthly Fee”) of HK$50,000 (or such other
amount as may be agreed from time to time between the Service
Providers and the Company) and an annual fee (the “Annual
Fee”) equal to 3 percent. of the annual profits before tax of the
Company and the subsidiaries as shown in the audited profit
and loss accounts of the individual companies for the relevant
financial year, subject to appropriate adjustments. The total
fee, being the sum of the Monthly Fee , and the Annual Fee, is
subject to an annual cap of HK$13,000,000 (the “Annual Cap”)

for each of the three financial years ending 30 June 2011.

GGMC and GOMC are indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of
Hong Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM”), the ultimate
holding company of the Company, and thus they are associates
of a connected person of the Company under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). HLCM is deemed to be
invested in shareholding in the Company. The transactions under
the Master Services Agreement constitute continuing connected

transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules.
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Connected Transactions (continued) REAR 5 =)

Master Services Agreement (continued) BRFE X ek (&)

The independent non-executive directors of the Company had AATBIFHTESERAFEERNBT R
reviewed the transactions under the Master Services Agreement FHBET2ZRG  WHER

during the year and confirmed that:

(1) the transactions under the Master Services Agreement for (1) RERRBEEHBBRAZRS
the year were entered into:

— in the ordinary and usual course of business of the — BAEBERER —RER .
Group;

— on terms no less favourable to the Group than the — Friz BRI T BRREBLE=
respective terms available from independent third ERME &S &
parties; and

— in accordance with the relevant agreement — DREBEEEXSNHRKRTE
governing them and on terms that are fair and T MXBBERBLAFSE I
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders HERDTARREERNZ

of the Company as a whole;

(2)  the aggregate service fees paid and payable by the 2 AAFREBBEHZ  RERES A

Group under the Master Services Agreement for the year REM 2R E AL A B 4,000,000
amounted to approximately HK$4 million which did not T WEEBBERATNKR-ZEZENELA
exceed the Annual Cap of HK$13 million as disclosed in MAZAMAMBENEE LRBE
the announcement of the Company dated 4 July 2008. 13,000,000 7T °

New master services agreement was entered into by the RZE——FXA=1TH > XATEEGGMCK

Company with GGMC and GOMC on 30 June 2011 for a term of GOMCEHIM 7T — 1 #iREEHE > N HA=

three financial years from 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2014. B HREE BB ——FtA—RHE=2
—mEARA=+H-

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2011 | ZZE—— 5% HIE(FB)ERAT



DIRECTORS’ REPORT EESHREE

Connected Transactions (continueq)
Share Option Scheme

The Company obtained shareholders’ approval on 18 April 2006
to modify the share option scheme of the Company (the “Share
Option Scheme”) to provide for the satisfaction of the exercise of
options through issue of new shares of the Company or transfer
of existing issued shares of the Company (“Existing Shares”) or
a combination of both. A trust for the Share Option Scheme (the
“Trust”) was established in July 2006 pursuant to a trust deed
(the “Trust Deed”) between the Company and a trustee of the
Trust (the “Trustee”) to acquire Existing Shares for the purpose
of the Share Option Scheme. The Company or its subsidiaries
will provide finances to the Trust from time to time to enable the
Trust to acquire such shares.

The Trust, whose beneficiaries include eligible participants of the
Share Option Scheme who may be directors and chief executive
of the Group, is deemed to be a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

The grant of options to the directors and chief executive of the
Group (who are connected persons of the Company under the
Listing Rules) pursuant to the Share Option Scheme and the
provision of finances to the Trust from time to time constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company had
reviewed such continuing connected transactions during the year
and confirmed that:

(1) during the year, 19,000,000 options were granted to the
Group Managing Director and certain eligible employees
of the Group pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.
850,000 options granted to employees were lapsed; and

2) during the year, the maximum subsisting amount of
the finances provided by the Group for the purchase of
Existing Shares was approximately HK$6,829,000 which
did not exceed the cap amount of HK$90 million as
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 10
March 2006. The provisions of such finances were made:

— in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;
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1) REAEFERAREBERETIREH
19,000,000 ER ETFTEBEE L
RERETEEKEE -BFEEW
850,000 REEMRERETEERNLRN ; &

2 REFEER EEREHZESEES
SUBERERMDHN BB 6,829,000
T WRIBYABBAARR-ZBER
F=ZATHHBZAGABEENFE L
PR 90,000,000 7T » FiiRftzE S :

- BEREERER—RER
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Connected Transactions (continueq)

Share Option Scheme (continued)
2) (continued)

— on normal commercial terms or on terms no
less favourable than terms available to or from
independent third parties; and

— in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditors were engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions regarding the master service agreement
and share option scheme as mentioned above in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditors
have issued an unqualified letter containing their findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group on pages 45 to 48 of this Annual Report
in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other transactions of
the Company which require disclosure in the annual report in

accordance with the Listing Rules.

Management Contracts

Except the Master Services Agreement disclosed in the section
of “Connected Transactions” above, no contract concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Group was entered into or subsisted
during the year.

FAEA 5 =)
BERRHEsTEI (&)
@ (4

— BRE-REERRIAMIEROE
RTBRUBILE=ERNSZ
1R R

- DDRBEBEXZNHBEERRE
T MXBKABLFEE A
HEARDRARRERAE -

RIE EHIRBIE 14A.381F » AD B2 R EEE
ZEREEBZBEZEEREI0005FEHBE
M ERETERRBRAUMZEZRE RS
ZEBGHMAGR B 2 EBHRPIE 74058
[EAREB LHRBIFTMISERER 5 NZEE
i AEEEERE T HERBRESTS
ZEHERERSETRE - XQFZREEE
BIE EHEBE 14A 3B KB HRE 2 BRE R
% BERHEFRSERASER EIEEZFE
BERGZBARERENEISEI8E o
AT 2 BB AR TR A% AT R 4 2 Bl AN o

BASFEEE S AL EE RS AR
5 B E A -

BRENTRAERS |—HMRBE2RB IR
S RAFERABET VR FEEMNEELASE
EREXEAETMNEEXB2EERTRIF
MEK -
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Directors’ Interests in Competing
Business

None of the directors is interested in any business apart from the
Group’s business, which is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Directors’ Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 30 June 2011, the directors of the Company have the
following interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”)) as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules:

EFENGPER 2 ER

BEEENEASEEBFEEIHERTH
BRHOEAREEER D EE AR -

EENKRG - HE KRG RE
F2Em

RZZB-——HXB=1H FEESRAQFHR
HEMBEQRR(ERRBSRPERA([EH
REEFRG DEXVEI EREARBERESZRHE
RPIEB2RMEMR 2 BT BMPAE 2K
7 BERAFZARKRS - HERO RES
ZESRREELTRAZ LW ARNESETRE
ZRENWBETFA(RETA DAMEARLF
REBBAXSMARAR (R 2 #s
LU

(A) The Company (A) &EAT
Approximate
percentage of
total issued
Number of share capital
shares/ of the Company
underlying ERAE
Nature of shares held BT
Name of director interest BERKB  Notes Total REBHEZ
EEfe e i S Jiopz3 @t Bmaaatt
KWEK Leng Hai Personal 2,300,000 2,300,000 0.95%
By s BA
LEUNG Wai Fung Personal 5,800,000 Note (a) 5,800,000 2.38%
RRE A Hiit (@)
WHANG Sun Tze Personal 27,123,743
BEtHE A
Corporate 19,326 Note (b) 27,143,069 11.15%
A B (b)
LO Kwong Chi, Clement  Personal 408,754 403,754 0.17%
BET A
TAN Lim Heng Personal 274,000 274,000 0.11%
BRARE A
DING Wai Chuen Personal 10,000 10,000 0.00%
TER A
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Directors’ Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

50

(continued)
(B) Associated corporations (B) HEtEAT
Approximate
percentage
of total issued
share capital
Number of of associated
shares/ corporation
Name of underlying 1GEE AT
associated Nature of shares held CETRE
corporation Name of director interest X1 Total it d
BEASEE Exptz e R BE @t wmaEatt
Hong Leong Company KWEK Leng Hai Personal 420,500 420,500 2.61%
(Malaysia) Berhad s fAA
Guoco Group Limited KWEK Leng Hai Personal 3,800,775 3,800,775 1.16%
BEEEBERAA B! A
TAN Lim Heng Personal 566,230 566,230 0.17%
BRAK A
TSANG Cho Tai Personal 1,000 1,000 0.00%
BH%R fBA
DING Wai Chuen Personal 5,000 5,000 0.00%
TE# A
LO Kai Yiu, Anthony Personal 6,067 6,067 0.00%
BRUE EPN
Guocoland Limited KWEK Leng Hai Personal 35,290,914 35,290,914 2.98%
EEERERRAR B! A
WHANG Sun Tze Family 66,600 66,600 0.01%
ErE e
TAN Lim Heng Personal 1,337,777 1,337,777 0.11%
R R 5PN
TSANG Cho Tai Personal 357,333 357,333 0.03%
gE%R 5PN
Hong Leong Bank Berhad KWEK Leng Hai Personal 3,955,700 3,955,700 0.26%
B8 5PN
WHANG Sun Tze Family 129,000 129,000 0.01%
BEtE EY
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Directors’ Interests in Shares, EENEM HERBRE
Underlying Shares and Debentures  #2Z2##% @)

(continued)
(B) Associated corporations (continued) (B) HEtEAT
Approximate
percentage
of total issued
share capital
Number of of associated
shares/ corporation
Name of underlying EHE AT
associated Nature of shares held CRITRE
corporation Name of director interest LTy Total BE
BEATER EEftE e )t S @t BmaEastt
Hong Leong Financial Group KWEK Leng Hai Personal 2,316,800 2,316,800 0.22%
Berhad B! A
WHANG Sun Tze Family 534,092 534,092 0.05%
ErE EY
TAN Lim Heng Personal 245,700 245,700 0.02%
BRpk fBA
Hong Leong Industries Berhad ~ KWEK Leng Hai Personal 190,000 190,000 0.06%
B8 A
WHANG Sun Tze Family 105,600 105,600 0.05%
EfE EY
Guocoland (Malaysia) Berhad ~ KWEK Leng Hai Personal 226,800 226,800 0.03%
EICAY
B! A
TAN Lim Heng Personal 326,010 326,010 0.05%
B R EPN
Hume Industries (Malaysia) Sdn  WHANG Sun Tze Family 12,667 12,667 0.01%
Bhd (formerly known as Hume &.L# E
Industries (Malaysia) Berhad)
Hong Leong Capital Berhad KWEK Leng Hai Personal 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.41%
(formerly known as HLG HSiE A
Capital Berhad)
GuocoLeisure Limited TAN Lim Heng Personal 950,000 950,000 0.07%
B R EPN
Malaysian Pacific KWEK Leng Hai Personal 71,250 71,250 0.04%
Industries Berhad S A
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Directors’ Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

(continued)

(B) Associated corporations (continued)

Notes:

(a) The interests of Mr. LEUNG Wai Fung represent the
interests in 200,000 ordinary shares of the Company
and 5,600,000 underlying shares in respect of the share
options granted by the Company exercisable within 30
months following the notification of entitlement to confirm
the vesting and the number of options exercisable in
accordance with the terms of grants.

(b) The interests disclosed represent the corporate interests
of Dr. WHANG Sun Tze in 18,457 ordinary shares and
869 ordinary shares in the Company held by SGR
Investment Company, Limited (“SGR”) and T.C. Whang &
Company (Private) Limited (“T.C. & Co.”) respectively. Dr.
WHANG Sun Tze holds 95.41% and 59.52% interests in
SGR and T.C. & Co. respectively.

All the interests disclosed in sections (A) and (B) above were long
positions in the ordinary shares of the Company or its associated
corporations.

Save as disclosed herein, none of the directors of the Company
had any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

¢,

EERKG - HER D RE
HF 2R =)

t

(a) REBEEEBEZEZEARSE
A F200,000 AN AEBR K
5,600,000 R RIEAR A TR F AT L
BREEERD  EZERESE
BHRIABRECRBREETITHE
MIERESE % RERTZHRRA
BAEAHMET=TEARTE-

(b) PRAIEEREKELEBE L EBSCGR
Investment Company, Limited
(T'SGRJ) R T.C. Whang & Company
(Private) Limited ([T.C. & Co.1)%
BIFBEARAT 18,457 BB K 869
BREBRzER - E LT EESGR
RT.C. & Co. 7 Bl & H95.41% &k
59.52% Z R o

FRERERA R BBAKEZEZERER
AARFHEBEQNT 2 HFREBRRN

BRAXFRBEEN  BEECARITESIRA
DAREEMHE X (REZSRBERD
EXVBZER)EBEARBR S RPERAE
B2FMEMR 2 ELEMIPAE RN - B
BRAPZXRRN  HERORESZRRE
BETFURAS A AR RBRFT 2 ELR
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Share Options

The Company’s share option scheme (“Share Option Scheme”)
was adopted by the shareholders on 23 May 2003 and amended
and approved by the shareholders at the extraordinary general
meeting on 18 April 2006 (“Date of Approval”). The amendments
to the rules of the Share Option Scheme on the Date of Approval
by the shareholders was to, among others, allow grant of options
over newly issued shares and/or transfer of existing shares by
the Trust of the Company and to align the rules under Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to motivate the
employees and directors of the Group and the employees of
associated companies (“Eligible Employee”) and to allow them to
participate in the growth of the Company.

The total number of shares which may be issued and/or
transferred by the Trust upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company at the
Date of Approval of the Share Option Scheme. The maximum
entitlement for any Eligible Employee in respect of the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
options granted and to be granted in any 12 months period does
not exceed 1% of the shares in issue.

The option price per share upon exercise of any share option will
be determined by the directors upon the grant of share option. It
will not be less than the greatest of (a) the average closing price
of a share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the day of offer of such a share option; (b) the closing price of
a share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet
on the day of offer of such a share option, which must be a
business day; and (c) the nominal value of a share.

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of
the share option within 21 days inclusive of, and from the date of
making such offer.

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10

years commencing on 23 May 2003.

Rehx 2

AATzBRESE((BRETE DR
SERAZT=ZHERRMERR-ZZREF
mA+NE(#HERBRDRRRGHIAE LB
IRERHLAEIERT - RHALEBH - BEBBIREST IR
AlzZRETCERR2itE  (AhEE) &
HARHSRAQRAHBITROR, REBHE
ATEIRARD ZBERE - URREEWRA
E17 EERBELER -

ZEREFHEENBEEAZEEMESLL
g RAzRBE(AEREE]  ERET
SEADNFZEBR -

RIBBRESET FTREZMBBREETE
B ARk REBAETEEZRNDE
B EHAGEBEHBRESEIMERHALT
ERITROBEZ10% - AEM+ =185 HH
EAEEREERTEECRERETREZE
REZEERITRETRITROZBE  &HZT
SEBEETRDZ1% °

RITEEABRE SRROIABEHESS
REHKER - EEETIR(UKSERE)
QEEREZBREZANAEERAB
ZEBERRERFERZERROFIRTE
OEHZBEREER (BAREXR) BRIz
BRRERTEARZERROUTER )BR
HEE e

MEHAHET -+t —BRR  BRROBRKRE
AXNREBE 1T -

BRESBERHTE BH-ZFZT=FHA
“tH=HEBERK-
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Share Options (continueq)

As at 1 July 2010, there were no outstanding option pursuant to
the Share Option Scheme.

During the year, 19,000,000 options were granted to the Group
Managing Director and certain eligible employees of the Group
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, particulars of which are
as follows:

BBRE

R-B—BELA—A  REMBEHBEHY
RATIE 2 B -

REAFER REEBEREFERLESH
19,000,000 R 2 BB ETFEEEZTHAKER
ETEERES HBWT :

Exercise

No. of price

Date of grant Grantees options per share

BHEH BIRA fERxERE BRITHEE

HK$

B
26 August 2010 LEUNG Wai Fung (Group Managing Director) 5,600,000 6.86 Note
—E-BF REE(REESHLE) iita

NA=+7H
Other employees of the Group 183,400,000 6.86 Note
SEHMES et
Total B E : 19,000,000
Note: Hfat -

The vesting of the Options is subject to fulfilment of certain prescribed
performance targets and contribution criteria being met by the Grantees
during the performance periods for the financial years 2010/2011
to 2013/2014. At the end of the relevant performance period, the
Board Remuneration Committee of the Company shall determine at its
discretion, the extent of achievement of the performance targets and
contribution criteria set out for that period, and decide on the vesting of
the Options and the number of Shares comprised in the vested Options.
Thereafter, the Grantees shall be notified of the vesting of the Options
(“Date of Notification”) and shall have an exercise period of up to 30
months following the Date of Notification to exercise the vested Options
in accordance with the terms of the grant.

During the year, 850,000 options granted to employees were
lapsed. Save as disclosed herein, no other options were vested,
exercised, lapsed or cancelled during the year. Accordingly,
the number of outstanding options was 18,150,000 at 30 June
2011.

EEBREDREE-_ZT-T /-E-—FE_F
—Z /B -NEPRFEZREPERNERAER
ETHRNRREGEREMAERE -RAEFEXRE™
ERE EBEFHEESERZEZPERFTTRZ
BERREEREM ATBREZEBREEERE
RESE2ROHE - BRAKEEN(THNEEH )
FHBREZRE TURBMSEHEH=1TEA
HATERRN - RER T 2ERITERS 2 BRE -

RAEER 850,000 BIRFET ZHBBREX
WMo RAXFIFEEEN REAFEALEELM
BREERIBE 76 AMIHBUE -
I R=FB——FXB=1H  REERES
Bl ARITHEZBRERHE 518,150,000 °
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Share Options (continueq)

Save for above, certain other subsidiaries of Hong Leong
Company (Malaysia) Berhad maintain share option schemes
or plans which subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year, under which eligible directors of the Company
may be granted share options for acquisition of shares of
respective companies concerned. No person, being a director of
the Company during the year, held shares acquired in pursuance
of certain aforesaid share option schemes or plans.

Apart from above, at no time during the year was the Company,
its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholders’ and
Other Persons’ Interests in Shares

As at 30 June 2011, the following shareholders (other than
directors of the Company whose interests or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as disclosed
above) had interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO:

BBRE

B k£ 3 Fr it & b > Hong Leong Company
(Malaysia) Berhad & FHEMHBARERIR
B EERTAEERE RN RDRE
EtEIR SR Bt XAREEKRESTE
RABEREAGAROZROAEE REAEFE
AN BEGARQATNESZALIEEREEST
PR HREBETER T RBAZRS ©

Br EXCPRILE SN RAFER  AQF - £
RADTE BB H[E R M B D B AR
BEXDEAREZTNT  UREALFTES
AHEWBARAREMEMEE 2RO RNES
EEN® -

FRRRZFHhEm

RZF——FXA=1+A REZFHRPEHK
Bl 3R EMB 2B BMAPHE T
AL (RRABRESHBERQAZBROREER
KA ZRBRDREERGD 2 EEBRINBER
RARBREBERAT 2 X B ROSEBRRD
2

Approximate

Number of percentage

shares held Notes of interest

BHAZRHEE Htat HEZBaHE

Hong Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM”) 150,726,659 (A)+(B) 61.94%

QUEK Leng Chan 150,726,659 (A)+(B) 61.94%
SR

HL Holdings Sdn Bhd (“HLH”) 150,726,659 (A)+(B) 61.94%

Hong Leong Investment Holdings Pte Limited (“HLIH”) 150,726,659 (A)+(B) 61.94%

Davos Investment Holdings Private Limited (“Davos”) 150,726,659 (A)+(B) 61.94%

KWEK Leng Kee 150,726,659 (A)+(B) 61.94%

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2011 | ZZ2——F 5% HIE(FB)ERA T

55



DIRECTORS’ REPORT EESHREE

56

Substantial Shareholders’ and
Other Persons’ Interests in Shares

(continued)

Notes:

(A) The interests comprised (i) 140,008,659 ordinary shares in
the Company held by GuoLine International Limited (“GIL"); (i)
1,393,000 ordinary shares in the Company held by Richly Choice
Development (PTC) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company; and (i) 9,325,000 underlying shares of the Company
of other unlisted derivatives held by Oceanease Limited.

(B) GIL was a wholly-owned subsidiary of GuoLine Capital Assets
Limited (“GCA”) which in turn was a wholly-owned subsidiary of
HLCM. Oceanease Limited was a wholly-owned subsidiary of
GuocoEquity Assets Limited which in turn was a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Guoco Group Limited which in turn was 71.48%
owned by GuoLine Overseas Limited (“GOL”). GOL was a wholly-
owned subsidiary of GCA. By virtue of Section 316(2) of the
SFO, HLCM was 48.96% owned by Mr. QUEK Leng Chan as to
2.424% under his personal name and 46.534% via HLH which
was wholly-owned by him. HLCM was held as to 34.38% by
HLIH. Mr. KWEK Leng Kee held 41.92% interest in Davos which
in turn held 33.59% interest in HLIH.

All the interests disclosed under this section were long positions
in the ordinary shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed herein, no other person (other than directors
of the Company) has an interest or a short position in the shares
and underlying shares as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of
the Company’s Listed Shares

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
shares.

FERRZFKER =)

BifaE -

(A) i B = B () GuolLine International
Limited ([ GIL) 8 7 2= 2 5] 140,008,659
R = 8 IR =2 # 2% (i) Richly Choice
Development (PTC) Limited * X AT Z2E
M AR > FHEMNARAEF 1,393,000 8K &}
IR ZEZ 5 R (i) Oceanease Limited RAZR
A H A I £ 674 T A 9,325,000 A% 48 BE A%
2R o

(B) GIL % Guoline Capital Assets Limited ([GCAJ)
Z2EMBAR #EAHCMZZEM
B X 7  Oceanease Limited BB RAE
EERARZZEMBLAR  #EREEE
EERATZZEK B AT » I HGuoline
Overseas Limited ([GOLJ) # B 71.48% °
GOLAGCAZZEMBATR - IRIEFF R
& {5 5l 38316(2) & # & * HLCM 2 48.96%
BEaARSBREEURABERTEF2424%
RIEEHLHEE 46.534% » #ERMMEERE
ZAaE e HLIHEF B HLCM 34.38% Z#EZ ©
KWEK Leng Kee 54546 Davos 41.92% 2
IR A€ Davos BI#FA HLIH 33.59% Z RRHE ©

BB IEEEERBEALAFRE
BRI

BRAXFMEEN  REZZRBEMHEHE
336RME MR 2 F L MATRC &% - WHEH M A
T(FRRAEEHRMNEEA 2 ARG R BER
Az KRR AR 2 B o

fBE s HESBOAATZ
EHEES

REAFER  ARAREEAHELDHRER
B HEFRBEAQTZEMEmES -
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Major Customers and Suppliers

Total sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
less than 30% of the Group’s turnover for the year.

Total purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s purchases for the
year.

Sufficiency of Public Float

At all times during the year, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules, based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors.

Auditors

Messrs. PKF will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. A resolution will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting to appoint Messrs. KPMG
as the Company’s Auditors.

By Order of the Board
KWEK Leng Hai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 August 2011

FEERRUERN

AEEETRANEBLUTFWHEERLER
SEAFEHEEINI0% e

AEBEAERANBELUHEBNBERGS
SEAFEBEREINI0% °

RAZABFIKE
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PKF

Accountants &
business advisers

26/F, Citicorp Centre
18 Whitfield Road
Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF LAM SOON (HONG KONG) LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Lam
Soon (Hong Kong) Limited set out on pages 60 to 164, which
comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 30 June 2011, and the consolidated income
statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any

other person for the contents of this report.

RERBR(EB)STAIEBA

B
BIERIE T\

BEE®T LT /E

BIAZBMRERFIE(FE)RRATZE
B3R
(REBAMELZBRE )

R EE (AT R &) B F&IIHREE 60
Z164EHIE(EB)BERAT(TEXR ) HEKE
BUBERER  BESHBRREBER=-F——
FARA=THNGEEH BN KK D TR
MREBEZALFENRERER  HRE2
HUHER REEZZDRNGESRENRE
®URTESTHEGAERAMERE -

ESRMUBRRAKEN
B

EXAEERBEEESHMOASHEMANEBY
BHREZARBBARKIGERREEM QT
W RZEFEVBRR - EERAR/MLENR
B UEASMBERRNVES T FEER
HRFF S EE ER T BB B KA ERIR AL ©
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BANEEERBEMCERTFERYZS
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B IRERZBRREE o Rt 25 A1
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EEMEMALE ESRBEFEE -
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Auditor’s Responsibility (continueq)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 30 June 2011 and of the profit and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in

accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PKF
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 August 2011
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT Z& KR

For the year ended 30 June 2011

BIZE2011F6 HA30HIEE
2011 2010
—F——% —E-FF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
KraE BEFr BT T
Turnover B 7 2,509,698 2,193,316
Cost of sales SHE R (2,066,618) (1,745,905)
Gross profit EF 443,080 447 411
Other income HAth g A 8 41,649 24,771
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEER (258,503) (232,231)
Administrative expenses ITHEHA (105,533) (97,462)
Other operating expenses Hth&&E&EH (3,383) (923)
Operating profit R EA 117,310 141,566
Finance costs A& R A 9 (2,076) (624)
Share of (loss)/profit of a jointly FE AL HE[F1 42 5B B2 1Y
controlled entity (E518), &R 22 (2,236) 2,020
Profit before taxation R A R 10 112,998 142,962
Taxation HEZH 12(b) (21,923) (20,842)
Profit for the year AE R 91,075 122,120
Attributable to: HERN
Equity shareholders of the YNNI
Company 91,075 122,120
Non-controlling interests FERER - —
Profit for the year R 5 F 91,075 122,120
Earnings per share (HK$) sBRERNET) 16
Basic PN 0.38 0.50
Diluted e N/A N/A
Proposed final dividend Rk RERE 15 24,335 24,335

The notes on pages 68 to 164 form part of these financial FINEESE 164 B2 B EMT AR BHREK 2
statements. — &4 ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME #&2HEkER

For the year ended 30 June 2011

BiZ 201146530 HILFE
2011 2010
—E——f —E-=ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
Poffor theyear . orors 122,120
Other comprehensive income AEHMPERER BRER
for the year (after tax and BENERAER)
reclassification adjustments):
Change in fair value of available- AHEENMBEEEAR
for-sale financial assets EEZEH 1 130
Transfer to profit or loss on HEANHEENTKERE
disposal of available-for-sale HAER
financial assets = (193)
Exchange differences arising EENEB NI KRR
on translation of financial MEEZELEZRE
statements of foreign
operations 30,860 6,225
Other comprehensive income AEHMEPERE  BREE
fortheyear,netoftax 30861 6,162
Total comprehensive income AEZHEINRBLEE
for the year 121,936 128,282
Attributable to: BEBR
Equity shareholders RATRR
of the Company 121,936 128,282
Non-controlling interests FERER - —
Total comprehensive income AEZHEINRBEE
for the year 121,936 128,282

The notes on pages 68 to 164 form part of these financial FINEESE 164 B2 B EMT AR BREK 2
statements. — &4 ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION Z&MEikRFT

At 30 June 2011
R20114#6F30H
2011 2010
—ET——5 —E-ZF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Biat BEFIT B F T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREEE
Fixed assets BEEE 17(a) 612,575 595,752
Leasehold land HE i 18 88,514 77,876
Intangible assets EBFEE 19 2,508 2,598
Interests in associates BE N R ER 21 - —
Interest in a jointly controlled HE S ERE
entity 3 22 52,097 54,333
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHENTEEE 23 521 551
Deferred tax assets ELEBIBREE 13(a) 119 1,398
756,334 732,508
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Inventories =7E 24(a) 821,278 312,302
Debtors, deposits and R - Ze R
prepayments B 25 323,161 189,591
Amount due from a jointly FE Uy 3 =) 422 o) B
controlled entity I8 22 10,241 8,659
Cash and cash equivalents BeRRELEH 26 170,579 568,789
1,325,259 1,079,341
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Bank loans RITERX 27 228,000 65,459
Creditors, deposits received and TR - EliRE
accruals M ESTE R 28 345,736 324,695
Derivative financial instruments TEEMIA 29 2,311 —
Tax payable FEAT B 19,848 15,582
Other current liabilities HiReas 30 282 6,388
596,177 412,124
NET CURRENT ASSETS BREEE 729,082 667,217
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT #EERTHER
LIABILITIES 1,485,416 1,399,725
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERHBERE
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEEE 13(a) - 11
Other non-current liabilities HEmIERBEaE 37 421 627
421 638
NET ASSETS FEE 1,484,995 1,399,087
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B HE
Share capital &N 32(a) 243,354 243,354
Reserves f#1E 1,230,790 1,144,882
Equity attributable to shareholders AN TR R
of the Company FE{ERER 1,474,144 1,388,236
Non-controlling interests FFERER 10,851 10,851
TOTAL EQUITY BB 1,484,995 1,399,087

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on KhEEeN _2——S N \AZ+hBiER

29 August 2011. RRET)E
LEUNG Wai Fung R {&ug WHANG Sun Tze HEL#
DIRECTOR EE DIRECTOR EE

The notes on pages 68 to 164 form part of these financial FINEESE 164 B2 B EMTARMBRE 2
statements. — &4 ©
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION BA iR R TR

At 30 June 2011
R20114¥6HF30H
2011 2010
—E——% —E-FF
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
Kzt EEFIT BT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EFHEE
Fixed assets BE&EE 17(b) 1,033 888
Investments in subsidiaries MEB QR fER 20 1,255,022 1,253,796
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR T B 2~ B FIE 20 1,355,819 1,245,233
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHENTHERE 23 14 44
2,611,888 2,499,961
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Debtors, deposits and YIRS - #E2 Rk
prepayments FEATRR 25 620 850
Amount due from a jointly FE U 2t B 12 5 (R B
controlled entity FIE 22 3,000 1,000
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBEeEHE 26 6,815 151,003
10,435 152,853
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBERE
Bank loans RITER 27 - 2,500
Creditors, deposits received and EBAER - BWRER
accruals EstE A 28 12,750 15,054
12,750 17,554
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ BRE(ER)BE
ASSETS (2,315) 135,299
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT (E&EERHH
LIABILITIES =L 2,609,573 2,635,260
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERHER
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEATB B A R FRIE 20 1,565,483 1,550,809
NET ASSETS FEE 1,044,090 1,084,451
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B RiHEE
Share capital &N 32(a) 243,354 243,354
Reserves & 34(a) 800,736 841,097
TOTAL EQUITY A 1,044,090 1,084,451

63

CHESERN-2——F/ A=+ NARAER
TS -

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
29 August 2011.

LEUNG Wai Fung (&l
DIRECTOR EE

WHANG Sun Tze =.E#
DIRECTOR EE

JIREEBE 164 H2 BEMERRMBIRER 2
—&B4D °

The notes on pages 68 to 164 form part of these financial
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY &S 8E%R

64

For the year ended 30 June 2011

BiE20114¥6 530 HILFEZE
Attributable to the shareholders of the Company
BERAATRE
Investment Share Non-
Share Share  Surplus revaluation ESOP option Exchange  General ~ Revenue controlling
capital  premium  reserves  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reseve  reserve interests
REEl BIRRE
k% BiiaR  EBEE fff  PEEE BRERE ERRE -BEE  GhEE FikiEs
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 |LilEXUN  HKS'000
E¥TT  BEFT BT EEFn ERTn BETn BETn BEFL EEFL 2T
At 1 July 2010 “5-FEth-R 243354 429428 28721 17 (6,829) - 56491 50000 592,053 1,388,236 10,851 1,399,087
Proft for the year KERR - - - - - - - - 905 91,075 - 91075
Change i fair value of avallable-for- TR MHENEEEE
sale financial assets MEEZES - - - 1 - - - - - 1 - 1
Exchange differences arising on RERASHN
transletion of financiel statements ~ AEHEMELZ
of foreign operations EREE - - - - - - 30860 - - 30860 - 30,860
Total comprehensive income for the year KE2TNHAE - - - 1 - - 30860 - 91075 121,036 - 12193%
Equity settled share-based transactions  RALENNRHAZH
x5 - - - - - 2,685 - - - 2,685 - 2,685
Released on lapsed of share option ~~ BRESNARE - - - - - (117) - - 17 - - -
2009/10 finel cvidend paid f-2%n/-2fF
*HRE - - - - - - - - 1% (24196) (24,196)
Current year interim dividend paic AREERHRE - - - - - - - - (14517)  (14517) - (14517)
At 30 June 2011 “E--EXBZ1R 243354 429428 23721 18 (6,829) 2,568 87,351 50000 644,532 1,474,144 10,851 1,484,995

The notes on pages 68 to 164 form part of these financial

statements.

JIREEBE 164 H2 B EMERSTMBIRER 2
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY & #EHEH%
For the year ended 30 June 2011
BiE20114¥6 530 HILFE
Attributable to the shareholders of the Company
BRNELIRR
Investment Share Non-
Share Share Surplus  revaluation ESOP option  Exchange ~ General  Revenue controlling
captal  premium  reseves  reseve  reserve  resenve  feseve  feserve  reserve el interests
REER BIERE
Bx  ROEE EBRE BB PEBE BRERE ENGBE  -BRE  VEGE | FERER
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKB0O0 — HKSO00  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000 IZISIAR  HKS$'000
BEFn BETR BETL BETr BETr BETn BETn BEFn BEFa | in BETr
At 1 July 2009 ZEENELR-B Wk 49423 BT 80 (6829 - 50266 50000 506227 1296248 10851 1307099
Profit for the year Eg - - - - - - - - 210 1210 - 210
Change in far value of avaiable- T ENRRER
for-sale financial assets MEEZEY - - - 130 - - - - - 130 - 130
Transfer to profit or loss on HETHEENHE
disposal of available-for-sale EEE R
financial assets - - - (193) - - - - - (193 - (193)
Exchange differences arising ER
on tranglaton of financia HEREMELL
statements of foreign EREE
Operations - - - - - - 6,225 - - 6,226 - 6,225
Total comprehensive income REXENEAS
for the year - - - (63) - - 6,205 - 12120 128282 - 128282
2008/09 final dividend paid =221 /ENE
RERE - - - - - - - - @) -
Current year interim dividend paic AREERHRE - - - - - - - - (14517 (14517) - (14517)
At 30 June 2010 “E-ZERAZTH W/ 49423 BT 7 (6829 - 56491 50000 592053 1388236 10851  1:399,87

The notes on pages 68 to 164 form part of these financial

statements.

— &340 ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS Z&IR&RER

66

For the year ended 30 June 2011

BE2011F6/30 HILFE
2011 2010
—F——% —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT B F T
CASH FLOWS FROM EEETEW
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReRE
Operating profit PP 117,310 141,566
Adjustments for: P
Depreciation and amortisation ERE#H 54,212 47,990
Provision for doubtful debts RIRIRER - 252
Write-down of inventories FERE 7,752 253
Fair value loss on derivative financial TESRMIAENQYF
instruments BEER 3,383 —
Reversal of provision for doubtful debts RIFREERR (943) —
Interest income BT A (4,519) (4,299)
Gain on disposal of fixed assets HEBEEERE (8,174) (8,157)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of available-for- HETHEEN
sale financial assets MR EEER (&) 11 (227)
(Decrease)/increase in short-term EHEERAHCRD)
employee benefit N (6,132) 92
Equity settled share-based payment BRRAEEWR S
expenses BEBENRS 2,685 —
Operating profit before working capital EEESHEANEE
changes & A 165,585 177,470
Increase in inventories FEMIZ N (489,375) (125,341)
(Increase)/decrease in amount due from R HEESEERIEN
a jointly controlled entity (1Bm), W (1,582) 1,802
(Increase)/decrease in debtors, deposits ~ EUERF * IRERFAEN
and prepayments (#&m),md (149,983) 24,029
Increase in creditors, deposits received EAERR - Blize R ER
and accruals B Ry 5,888 23,931
Cash (used in)/generated from operations &% (FiAR),/FiEL
WRE (469,467) 101,891
Tax paid 2RHE
Hong Kong profits tax paid EfEBRER (2,436) (3,047)
Overseas tax paid 2EINEIE (14,097) (13,186)
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED BELEN
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES e (A MEsE (486,000) 85,658

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2011 | ZZ——F &3}
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS Z&IR&RER

For the year ended 30 June 2011

BZ20114#6H30HILFE
2011 2010
—T——% —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT BT T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFHN
ACTIVITIES H&ReE
Interest received EWRIE 4,519 4,299
Purchase of fixed assets and BEEEEER
leasehold land HE L (60,780) (171,088)
Purchase of intangible assets BEREEE = (497)
Amount received on liquidation of BRI ARG
associates - 1,382
Dividend income from a jointly W £ [3] 428 1 {E £
controlled entity BRE - 6,000
Net proceeds from disposal of HERHEENEK
available-for-sale financial assets EENFIE S5 20 267
Net proceeds from disposal of HEBEEENE
fixed assets FRIEFEE 11,422 10,646
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING BREEHNIRERAFE
ACTIVITIES (44,819) (148,991)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RLE SN
ACTIVITIES H&ReE
Drawdown of bank loans RITERAIE I 162,038 24,732
Decrease in obligations under MEREEEN
finance leases oA (221) (160)
Interest paid FHFIE (2,076) (290)
Dividends paid THEER (38,734) (36,294)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/ REEHMIRERE(FR)
(USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES e 121,007 (12,012)
DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH HERREEHEN
EQUIVALENTS "L (409,812) (75,345)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EVIRE
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR RIE&%EHE
“eg 568,789 639,844
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EREHN
RATE CHANGES Ba 11,602 4,290
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FEREER
AT THE END OF THE YEAR HE%ESR 170,579 568,789

The notes on pages 68 to 164 form part of these financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAFiRFRMIsE

68

For the year ended 30 June 2011

BZ20116H30HILFEZE
1. General Information

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited (the “Company”) is a

limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The

registered office and the principal place of business of the

Company is located at 21 Dai Fu Street, Tai Po Industrial

Estate, Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong. During the

year, the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred

to as the “Group”) were principally engaged in the

manufacturing and sales of flour products, edible oil and

household and institutional cleaning products.

Significant Accounting Policies

(a)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period of
the Group and the Company. The Group has not
applied any new standard or interpretation that is
not yet effective for the current accounting period.
The application of these new HKFRSs will not have
material impact on the financial statements of the
Group.

— R
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A RARIERBZAM -

EEETBR
(a) E=rEH

HEMBRECREST B
NEFEMZAAEBRE B
BEEA(LERBEERAER
ZAE R E R ELER - BB
B EARREBREBEEAR
SRR REBRTKRMZH
EMfmE - WEMBRETTS
BEBBMARZMBERLARES L
MR EHRA D 2BERAKE
R TXHIBAEBMEMNZE
ZEEBREE -

BEETMASCHEME TRA
SERARBDAEHFEERE
2R AT R AR AN B 3T I RIS FT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %R R sE

For the year ended 30 June 2011
EE2011F6 30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2011 comprise the Group and
the Group’s interests in associates and a jointly
controlled entity.

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis except that the following assets and liabilities
are stated at their fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out below:

— Available-for-sale financial assets (see note

20);

— Certain fixed assets (see note 2(f)); and

— Derivative financial instruments (see note

2(1).

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.

(b)

2. EETFTER =

MBRERNEE

HE-2——FXA=T+ALF
E2RAMKREEFEAEEN
REEBEEBE QAR -KLRE
ZHIEER 2 B o

AL EPBRERMRAZAE
BEEDBEEMRAE  HEUTUE
DNABEMEZEERI :

- AHHEENTBEER
MEE203)) ;

— TE€m I BE(RK
2(t)) °

RRFEERMBRELEL 28
BREEFEEEEFELHE - 4
ARBREFESTHRNER
MEE - BE WAREXZE
EEHE - ZEMITREBRRRU
BEECBRREETERTESE
ZZEAMEREMRE - EE
RBRAREREMRREEEZE
EREERAEZHBEE - &
BERNSBERINZSMhET -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %R R sE

70

For the year ended 30 June 2011
BiF20116 530 H1LFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

statements (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects

both current and future periods.

2. EEEHEER®

(b)

MRRERNEE

R REBBRRESERT - W
SHEETREERT > MZBRTR
EXREFHEREI NS T
B EEEZMERER B
EITHERMRRNETHEY
T8 ASEFEETRRER
BV R AR R B R o

FREEECRARBYBRE

(c)

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 4.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it
is probable that the future economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follow:

(i) Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are
delivered at the customers’ premises which
is taken to be the point in time when the
customer has accepted the goods and the
related risks and rewards of ownership.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts.

ZRIBFFTEHE I BBRBERX
FEZAE UREETEEN
fhat - CRMEE4 T -

() WrAEESR

W AR E W E =R AT Y E B2
BETUFNE EEBEREZRA
BERAREEREN T ST E
WAFI R AR - IRASRET 5

BEEFBRAER

() HEELR

BWARENEREF 2%
EEEFEMAEMRE
BERZHEBRRNER)
KR - WACTHKRES
I TS RERRIE

s ER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %R R sE

For the year ended 30 June 2011
BiE20114¥6 530 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(c)

(d)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(i) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term.

(iii)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues

using the effective interest method.

(iv) Income from management services

Income from management services is
recognised at the time when the services
are provided.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates the fair value was determined.

(c)

(d)

2. EEEHEER®

W A 552
(i) HKEHEZHBMA

(iii)

(iv)

RBELHEE  BRzA
SWASREERRE
ZHBRNEREREER

N
=
it ©

FEHA

BRAIBEHER -

EERFMA

EERBUARRHEER
ARFE SRR o

IE‘RE

FRZINERZ TR H A 2N
ERBRE - LMNERENZE
EERBERIRZIIEERER
B ERERTEEER -

DB EMATTEZIERERE
EREERXS A ZIEERR
o UMERENI A REE
IRz FEWEERBBERERE
DNAREBEERZIIMNSERRE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAFiRFRMIsE
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For the year ended 30 June 2011
BiE20114¥6 530 HILFEZE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(d)

(e)

Translation of foreign currencies
(continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars (HK$) at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Items
presented in the statement of financial position,
including goodwill arising on consolidation of
foreign operations acquired on or after 1 January
2005, are translated into HK$ at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.
Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign
operation acquired before 1 January 2005 is
translated at the foreign exchange rate that applied
at the date of acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to
that foreign operation is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance
of, the Group’s various lines of business and

geographical locations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAFiRFRMIsE

For the year ended 30 June 2011
BiE20114¥6 530 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(e)

(f)

Segment reporting (continued)

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated in the statement of financial
position at cost or valuation less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. The cost of
an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its present working condition and location for its
intended use. Expenditure incurred after a fixed
asset has been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that
the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the
future economic benefits expected to be obtained
from the use of the fixed asset, the expenditure is
capitalised as an additional cost of the fixed asset.
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For the year ended 30 June 2011
BiE20114¥6 530 HILFEZE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(f)

Fixed assets (continued)

Construction in progress is stated at cost less
impairment losses (See note 2 (p)). Cost comprises
direct costs of construction and exchange
differences capitalised during the periods of
construction and installation. Capitalisation of these
costs ceases and the construction in progress is
transferred to fixed assets when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the assets for their
intended use are completed. No depreciation is
provided for in respect of construction in progress
until it is completed and ready for its intended use.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
or valuation of items of fixed assets, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-
line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Buildings and leasehold 1%/:% — 33'/,%

improvements

Plant, equipment, furniture and 5% — 33'/,%
motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of fixed assets have
different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between
the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Both the useful life of an asset and its residual

value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of fixed assets are determined
as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item
and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of

retirement or disposal.

2. EEEHEER®
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %R R sE

For the year ended 30 June 2011
EE2011F6 30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)
(g) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the
Group

Assets that are held by the Group under
leases which transfer to the Group
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases.

2. EEEHEER®

(9)

HE&E

MRAEEL-EHZH(BE -
B -—RIRZ)BERE R
HEAEERE AR -LEBEE
ENERE  UBalN-—FRZE
% BEBRzHEaRSHE -
BERRAGBENEEZHFL
Ah - MAEERZHRESIR
HEAERRR -

(i) FEEHESEZHHE

HRAKEUEERFEZ
EE WHEEEMAREZ
A0 RERRERER
EAXEE AHCEER
ENEAUREHER
B mAETEEHARE
Z A8 AREB o BB A0 (2] 3R 68
BEXREH o ERE
EHE -

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2011 | ZZ2——F 5% HIE(FB)ERA T

75
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For the year ended 30 June 2011
BiE20114¥6 530 HILFEZE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(9)

Leased assets (continued)

(ii)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of
assets under finance leases, the amounts
representing the fair value of the leased
asset, or, if lower, the present value of
the minimum lease payments, of such
assets are included in fixed assets and
the corresponding liabilities, net of finance
charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at
rates which write off the cost or valuation
of the assets over the term of the relevant
lease or, where it is likely the Group will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the
asset, as set out in note 2(f). Impairment
losses are accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policy as set out in
note 2(p). Finance charges implicit in the
lease payments are charged to profit or
loss over the period of the leases so as to
produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of charge on the remaining balance of
the obligations for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they

are incurred.

2. EEEHEER®
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %R R sE

For the year ended 30 June 2011
EE2011F6 30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(9)

(h)

Leased assets (continued)

(iii)  Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets
held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they

are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-

line basis over the period of the lease term.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

2. EEEHEER®
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %R R sE

For the year ended 30 June 2011
BiE20114¥6 530 HILFEZE

2. Significant Accounting Policies 2. EEEiHEE =)

(continued)

(h) Borrowing costs (continued) (hy fEERE
The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of EEEREENHRIREBERAR
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when HMBEER  UREZEERA
expenditure for the asset is being incurred, RERZMENEETIFETEH
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities B BB EERRNERL
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its EAEGEREERE—ZMD - &
intended use or sale are in process. Capitalisation BEEREERAREREFNSE
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when B KRB EERE TIERPE S TR
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare B BEREAERAFKEEDS
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are #RIE

interrupted or complete.

()  Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (i) MBATIRIEERER
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. MEBAR I ANEBEH &8 -
Control exists when the Group has the power to EREEEEEEZLE TR
govern the financial and operating policies of an RBEBRUGEEEERPEER
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. @ HRABEHEE o RFTME
In assessing control, potential voting rights that HER BT FTEIBER
presently are exercisable are taken into account. ERECKERE -

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into RHEBRABEZEREREREH
the consolidated financial statements from the date EAHEEREEREMER
that control commences until the date that control & HEEREHERLAL &
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions BARFR2EHEIFRER
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group HMERRGMELEZEMAER
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing A RERSE M EREF
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised ZHIEE  EELEBRBME2ZER
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are T RERABRBMEEZRE
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains BEE SREREREFER
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of 2RI o

impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAFiRFRMIsE

For the year ended 30 June 2011
BiE20114¥6 530 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(i)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the
Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition
of a financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to
the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the
equity shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity
to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or

loss is recognised.

2. EEEHEER®
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For the year ended 30 June 2011
BiF20116 530 H1LFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(i)

()

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (see note 2(l)) or, where appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or jointly controlled entity (see note 2())).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(p)).

Associates and jointly controlled entities

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the
Company has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which
operates under a contractual arrangement between
the Group or the Company and other parties,
where the contractual arrangement establishes that
the Group or the Company and one or more of the
other parties share joint control over the economic
activity of the entity.

2. EEEHEER®
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAFiRFRMIsE

For the year ended 30 June 2011
BiE20114¥6 530 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

)

Associates and jointly controlled entities
(continued)

An investment in an associate or a jointly controlled
entity is accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements under the equity method and is initially
recorded at cost and adjusted for any excess of the
Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of
the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost
of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment
is adjusted for the post acquisition change in the
Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment (see note
2(0) and (p)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost,
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax
results of the investees and any impairment losses
for the year are recognised in the consolidated
income statement, whereas the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition post tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate or the jointly controlled
entity, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with
the Group’s long-term interests that in substance
form part of the Group’s net investment in the

associate or the jointly controlled entity.
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For the year ended 30 June 2011
BiF20116 530 H1LFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

()

Associates and jointly controlled entities
(continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates
and jointly controlled entity are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the investee,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which
case they are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

When the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over
a jointly controlled entity, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at
the date when significant influence or joint control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (see note 2(l)) or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in

an associate (see note 2(j)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
interests in associates and jointly controlled entity
are stated at cost less impairment losses (see note
2(p)).

2. EEEHEER®
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAFiRFRMIsE

For the year ended 30 June 2011
BiE20114¥6 530 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(k)

U]

Debtors, deposits and prepayments

Debtors, deposits and prepayments are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 2(p)), except where the
receivables are interest-free loans made to related
parties without any fixed repayment terms or the
effect of discounting will be immaterial . In such
cases, the debtors, deposits and prepayments are
stated at cost less impairment losses for doubtful
debts (see note 2(p)).

Available-for-sale financial assets

At initial recognition and the end of each reporting
period subsequent to initial recognition, available-
for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value. Changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the investment revaluation
reserve, until the investment is disposed of or
determined to be impaired (see note 2(p)), at
which time, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in equity is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss.

When the fair value of unlisted securities cannot
be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot
be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such securities are stated at cost less any
impairment losses (see note 2(p)).
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For the year ended 30 June 2011
EFE2011F6 30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(m)

(n)

(o)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.

Creditors, deposits received and accruals

Creditors, deposits received and accruals
are initially recognised at fair value and are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree;
over (i) the Group’s interests in the net fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities
measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain
on a bargain purchase.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAFiRFRMIsE

For the year ended 30 June 2011
BiE20114¥6 530 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(o) Goodwill (continued)

(p)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment
(see note 2(p)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit, an associate
or a jointly controlled entity during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is
included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables

Investments in equity securities (other
than investments in subsidiaries: see
note 2(p)(ii)) and other current and non-
current receivables that are stated at
cost or amortised cost or are classified
as available-for-sale financial assets are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about

one or more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;
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For the year ended 30 June 2011
BiE20114¥6 530 HILFEZE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(p)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables

(continued)

— it becoming probable that the debtor

will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an

adverse effect on the debtor; and

a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of an investment in an

equity instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment
loss is determined and recognised as

follows:

For interests in associates and jointly
controlled entities (including those
recognised using the equity method
(see note 2(j)), the impairment
loss is measured by comparing
the recoverable amount of the
investment with its carrying amount
in accordance with note 2(p)(i). The
impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount in accordance
with note 2(p)(ii)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAFiRFRMIsE

For the year ended 30 June 2011

BZ20114#6H30HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(p) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity

securities and other receivables

(continued)

For unquoted equity securities
carried at cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the financial
asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar
financial asset where the effect of
discounting is material. Impairment
losses for equity securities carried at
cost are not reversed.

For trade and other current
receivables and other financial
assets carried at amortised cost,
the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made
collectively where financial assets
carried at amortised cost share
similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have
not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for
financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based
on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.
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For the year ended 30 June 2011

BZ20114#6H30HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(p) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables
(continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount
of an impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of
an impairment loss shall not result
in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment

loss been recognised in prior years.

For available-for-sale financial
assets, the cumulative loss that has
been recognised in the investment
revaluation reserve is reclassified
to profit or loss. The amount of the
cumulative loss that is recognised
in profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net
of any principal repayment and
amortization) and current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that
asset previously recognised in profit
or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in
profit or loss in respect of available-
for-sale financial assets are not
reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value
of such assets is recognised in other

comprehensive income.

2. EEEFHEER®

(p) HERE

() REEFREHRMEK
ReRkag 8 ()

EREBEERR
Lo MR AE
B ELRLE B 1R 7R
REBENSHE
2 AREBERS
RO - BIE
BEzEETEE
HZEEMNREE
ARBRZEER
EFRAZBER
R (L 185 48 1 7 E 69
FRMEE °

- BAUHEENRE
BEEMS  BER
BEEMHEEPRR
MEFBEERD
HrBEEP - EEB
PR R
B WE AR GE
MBREMAESEE
BREEE) ER
BHAXREENE
BUWREZEE
DEERSTER
HETRERIE

EREEREIME
AHHENTEE
ENRERBE T
BrEBEEEE-F
BEREELNE
ERBEEMHN L
o BEEMEE
WD o

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2011 | ZZE—— 5% HIE(FB)ERAT



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %R R sE

For the year ended 30 June 2011

BZ20114#6H30HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(p) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity

securities and other receivables

(continued)

Impairment losses are written off
against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses for
doubtful debts are recorded using an
allowance account. When the Group
is satisfied that recovery is remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against trade debtors
directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to
that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in
profit or loss.
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For the year ended 30 June 2011
BiF20116 530 H1LFE

2. EEEHEER®

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)
(p) Impairment of assets (continued) () EERE
(i)  Impairment of other assets (i) BMEERE

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, except
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or
may have decreased:

— property, plant and equipment;

— construction in progress;

— pre-paid interests in leasehold land
and classified as being held under an
operating lease;

— intangible assets;

— investments in subsidiaries; and

— goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In
addition, for goodwill, intangible assets that
are not yet available for use and intangible
assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually
whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %R R sE

For the year ended 30 June 2011
EE2011F6 30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(p)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset
is the greater of its fair values less
costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value
of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating

unit).

2. EEEFEER®
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %R R sE

For the year ended 30 June 2011
BiF20116 530 H1LFE

2. EETITEE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

92

(continued)
(p) Impairment of assets (continued) () BERE
(i)  Impairment of other assets (continued) (i) RMEENREE)
Recognition of impairment losses - ERREEE
An impairment loss is recognised in EEERHBR
profit or loss if the carrying amount SHEEEUNERE
of an asset, or the cash-generating EREEATWREE

unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and
then, to reduce the carrying amount
of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs to sell,

or value in use, if determinable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %R R sE

For the year ended 30 June 2011
EE2011F6 30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(p)

(a)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)

— Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in
respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of impairment losses is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to

profit or loss in the year in which the

reversals are recognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

Cost is determined on a first-in, first-out basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
cost comprises direct materials, direct labour and
an attributable proportion of production overheads.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAFiRFRMIsE

94

For the year ended 30 June 2011
BiE20114¥6 530 HILFEZE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(a)

(r)

(s)

Inventories (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as an expense
in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recongised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution

retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present

values.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf¥3R RMisE

For the year ended 30 June 2011
BiE20114¥6 530 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(s)

Employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in share
option reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the Black-
Scholes model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the share
options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the
share options, the total estimated fair value
of the options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability

that the share options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of
share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share option reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of share options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the share
option reserve) except where forfeiture is
only due to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the share option reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it is
transferred to the share premium account)
or the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained profits).

2. EEEHEER®

(s)

EBEwHM &)
(i) LIRGBEREZH
RYIEECEREAARE

EERIABEERAK M
EEPHBREREITAE
- D ABESEA
HhR — SFEHEK
BRARERTHTE &
EERRTBEBREZMK
R BEEEANEHEBY
R TR EZEZE
BRE  AF2AEBEER
BERBHA#S AR
I EZEERERBHH

At REEREZHE
AEBBHAELE -
BRIEFREEIHNEEE
BRZER  FASHEE
FRANZEAIAEEZ
ARAERT B Rz W
RPH®RFHA WS
REMREFHEREZ -
BRABZHNBEEER
BHFHBEE  LURBRET
RTERENERHE
([0 B 9 8 iR 1 £ 15 1E AR
EREE) BEREEEE
HERARQNTRMDTER
BEOEMRERTERE
THEE - RRSHEEBR
RRFEER BEEEBR
AT 8 (B A RS
BRF) AEIREZ
B E S (A RE
) e

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2011 | ZZ2——F 5% HIE(FB)ERA T

95



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %R R sE

96

For the year ended 30 June 2011
BiF20116 530 H1LFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(s)

t)

(u)

Employee benefits (continued)

(iii)  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when,
and only when, the Group demonstrably
commits itself to terminate employment or
to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal
plan which is without realistic probability of
withdrawal.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value. At the end of each reporting
period the fair value is remeasured. The gain or
loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditures expected to
settle the obligation.
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(u)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %R R sE

For the year ended 30 June 2011
EE2011F6 30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(u)

(v)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

(continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of

economic benefit is remote.

Income tax

Income tax charges represent the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax charges.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reported in the profit or loss because it excludes
items of income and expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years, and it further excludes
income statement items that are not taxable and
deductible.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf¥3R RMisE

For the year ended 30 June 2011
BiE20114¥6 530 HILFEZE

2. Significant Accounting Policies 2. EE&HE¥ @

(continued)

(v) Income tax (continued) (v) Fr@®i#&)
Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or ELEREESHRMBERERTPEE
recoverable on differences between the carrying MEBENRESEEEANGE
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial FERBURFIM AR E 2 BHY =
statements and the corresponding tax bases FFTEE TR EA S AT U E B
used in the computation of taxable profit, and HoREMEBERALEESBERE
is accounted for using the balance sheet liability BiERE - —RBERT - TERE
method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally AR EREEENIELERIE
recognised for all taxable temporary differences, BEHTER MELEHEEE
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the Al R BE1E R R FER PR T B A
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will ERE RN EREEZE2NRE
be available against which deductible temporary A AFUERR  MREREE
difference can be utilised. Such assets and ERHBER(REFE)  IET
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary FEERFHEIRETEMNHR
difference arises from goodwill (or negative Z(BRTLEAM)PHNEMEE
goodwill) or from the initial recognition (other than MEENNHRERATEEN B
in a business combination) of other assets and ZERLESEEENEGETTH
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the o

taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable RMBARMEBE ARRERH
temporary differences arising on investments in B EEEREENERRY
subsidiaries and associates, and interest in a jointly RMEZESRAAELEHRES
controlled entity, except where the Group is able to B BAREEENIEHEL TR
control the reversal of the temporary difference and MEENEE REHMEERE
it is probable that the temporary difference will not ARBRBEATEFSEENER
reverse in the foreseeable future. BIEEHIS o

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is EEHBEEENREEENRSE
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and HERETRT - BRBEREHAR
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable RERBGEF - BliZTREEAN
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to B FO R % 010 2 2 SRR IR AE L
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. HEE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %R R sE

For the year ended 30 June 2011
EE2011F6 30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(v)

(w)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred
tax is charged or credited in the profit or loss,
except when it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the deferred tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a
party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to
control the Group or exercise significant
influence over the Group in making financial
and operating policy decisions, or has joint
control over the Group;

(if) the Group and the party are subject to

common control;

(iii) the party is an associate of the Group or
a joint venture in which the Group is a

venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent, or a close family member of such an
individual, or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such

individuals;

(v)

(w)
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EFE2011F6 30 HILFE
2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)
(w) Related parties (continued)

(v) the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the
control, joint control or significant influence
of such individuals; or

(Vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
Group or of any entity that is a related party
of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that individual in their dealings
with the entity.

Possible Impact of Amendments,
New Standards and
Interpretations Issued but not
yet effective for the annual
accounting year ended 30 June
2011

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued the following amendments, new
standards and interpretations which are not yet effective
for the accounting year ended 30 June 2011 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period. The Group is in the process of making
an assessment of what the impact of these amendments,
new standards and new interpretations is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial
position except for HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which
may have an impact on the Group’s results and financial
position arising from changes in the Group’s classification

and measurement of financial instruments.

2. EEEFEER®
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EUMBRERM A BBGFEAD
BEEMTIIR-ZE——F A A=1H
B ARERZHET ~ BEFTHNEARE
B o AEERBEMBBREPRAZE
]~ EIETTHERIRRE

AEELRERMAEMESEMERRE
B2 HE] ~ BEATHEARRE - A&
35, I R f5 ()RR AR B L3R AT~ ARAERT
MEARRBEHASEATETRNY
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EAFENSE eRIA EREREE
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BiZ 201146530 HILFE
3. Possible Impact of Amendments, 3.

New Standards and

Interpretations Issued but not
yet effective for the annual
accounting year ended 30 June

201 1 (continued)

HKAS 24 (Revised), Related Party Disclosures
Amendments to HK(IFRIC) - INT14, HKAS19
- The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum
Funding Requirements and their Interaction
- Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement
Improvements to HKFRSs 2010
Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments:
Disclosures - Transfer of Financial Assets
Amendments to HKAS12, Income Taxes
HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments
HKFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements
HKFRS 11, Joint Arrangements
HKFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
HKFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement

HKAS 27 (2011), Separate Financial Statements

HKAS 28 (2011), Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures

|
i

8F F — 7~ A
E+EEE§+$T§§SE
ﬁ_ﬂﬂfﬂ*ﬂiﬁﬁzi HIR
EESTHER R ZEE

it
H}
=
&
m\n

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
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EBEERE I (BTX)
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REREZE
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—E-BEYEEEUBRSEN

BEMBRELNELRETF)

EMIA  KE - SREEEY

BRETENSE T RBHTR) - HEH

BEMBRSENENS  SMIA

BEMBREEANETS  FAUBRR

BEMBRELNET % KELH

BEMBRELAET 8 REMER

ZEERE

BEMBRELANET =5 A VEME

BREHENE TR (ZB2——FEET)

BREHENE TR (22— —FEE)

1 January 2011
—Z—%-A-H

1 January 2011
—Z2—%-H-H

1 January 2011

—T——%—H—H
1 July 2011
—T——FtH—-H

1 January 2012
—Z-——§-f-H

1 January 2013
—2-—=%-H-H

1 January 2013
—2-=%-H-H

1 January 2013
—2-=%-H-H

1 January 2013
—T-=F—-H—H

1 January 2013
—E—=%-H-H

1 January 2013
—T-=F—-A—H

1 January 2013
—£-—=%-H-H
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BiZ 201146530 HILFE
4. Accounting Estimates and

Judgement

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting

policies, management makes various estimates based on

past experiences, expectations of the future and other

information. The key sources of estimation uncertainty

that may significantly affect the amounts recognised in the

financial statements are disclosed below:

(a)

(b)

Depreciation of fixed assets

Fixed assets are depreciated on a straight line
basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking
into account of their estimated residual value. The
determination of the useful lives and residual value

involve management’s estimation.

The Group assesses annually the residual value
and the useful life of the fixed assets and if the
expectation differs from the original estimate, such
a difference may impact the depreciation for the

year.

Impairment of fixed assets, goodwill and other
non-current assets

Determining whether fixed assets, goodwill and
other non-current assets are impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which the fixed assets, goodwill
and other non-current assets have been allocated.
The calculation of value in use requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating units and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present
value.

Eatfhat RFER

st FHEE 2 EERIR

RERAEESTHTHER  EEESER
BBENER BERNBIRAGE
#o EHARBMGE o e RHREMED
FERRATREE B RR AR BE
TREAZE  ETUKRE :

(a)

(b)

EZEEENE

BlEEEEMBREMGERGER
% LESFERATERFH
STENE - AEAFHRRNGE
BERRESREZBMNMEET

rEBEFHSTEETEEN
HepEERAEHFY  HEHY
MEANEETAE - BEAEZRY
BYERFENE -

BZEEE HE  URRAMFR
BEERE

REBEEE - BE - URHAM
FRBEERRREAMGTEE
BE B2 URHMIERDE
EFfPENASEEEMNER
BE FEEAEEREFER
SEAETRBREREEEEN
HMARRBEEREMAERENS
BITHEER o
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BiZ 201146530 HILFE
4. Accounting Estimates and 4,

Judgement (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
(c) Income taxes

At 30 June 2011 and 2010, deferred tax assets
of HK$470,000 and HK$579,000 in relation to
unused tax losses were recognised respectively as
set out in note 13(a). No deferred tax asset was
recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses
of HK$291,381,000 (2010: HK$337,638,000) and
temporary differences of HK$157,166,000 (2010:
HK$188,157,000) arising from impairment of
certain fixed assets and leasehold lands provided
on 31 December 2001 due to the unpredictability
of future taxable profit streams. The realisability of
the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether
sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases
where the actual future profits generated are less
or more than expected, a material reversal or
further recognition of deferred tax assets may arise,
which would be recognised in the profit or loss
for the period in which such a reversal or further

recognition takes place.

5. Financial Instruments 5.

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.
The Group is also exposed to equity risk arising from
its equity investments in other entities. These risks are
limited by the Group’s financial management policies and

practices described below.

EaT T RFVER =)

HEF A EEMZEERE(E)
(c) Frig#

RZZB——FR-Z—ZFXA
=+H8 > RAMREEIEZEE
ERELERBEED N ABYE
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TREFEFTARERNBS > HTE
7 18 55 18 78 15 291,381,000 ¢
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ELHETREMEELEBY
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RELER - EEHREEETE
HEAEEHRIEFHEHF
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ERREB GRS ZHRFER -
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ZHE 2 ERTER o
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BiE201146 830 HILFE

5. Financial Instruments (ontinued)

(a)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
debtors, deposits and prepayments. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures to
these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis. Credits are offered to customers following
financial assessments and established payment
records where applicable. Collaterals over
properties are obtained from certain customers.
Credit limits are set for all customers and these
are exceeded only with the approval of senior
company officers. Customers considered to be
with credit risk are traded on a cash basis. General
credit terms are payment by the end of the month
following the month in which sales took place.
Regular review and follow up actions are carried
out on overdue amounts to minimise the Group’s
exposure to credit risk. An ageing analysis of
the debtors is prepared on a regular basis and
is closely monitored to minimise any credit risk
associated with these debtors. The Group has
no significant concentrations of credit risk in view
of its large number of customers. The maximum
exposure to credit risk without taking account of
any collateral held is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the statement of
financial position after deducting any impairment
allowance. The Group does not provide any
guarantee which would expose the Group to credit
risk. Further quantitative disclosures in respect of
the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
debtors, deposits and prepayments are set out in
note 25.

5. & TR =

(a)

fSE B
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R BRERBENR - BEEEFT
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BiE20114¥6 530 HILFE

5. Financial Instruments (ontinued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

The Group closely monitors its liquidity and
financial resources to ensure that a healthy
financial position is maintained such that cash
infows from operating activities together with un-
drawn committed banking facilities are sufficient to
meet the requirements for loan repayments, daily
operational needs, capital expenditure, as well as
potential business expansion and development.

The Group reviews its strategy from time to time
to ensure that cost-efficient funding is available to
cater for the unique operating environment of each
subsidiary.

The following table details the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the Group’s and the Company’s non-
derivative financial liabilities which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
end of the reporting period) and the earliest date
the Group and the Company can be required to
pay:

5. & TR =

(b)

ENE & B

AEEEZEVNERERBES M
HER - UERESERNOTE
MR EREREEBHRESI
A BREABANRITHERAE
B RURANEEENR - HEE
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B OESHBLRBIFNEE
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. - ) = -
5. Financial Instruments (ontinued) 5. €T =
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) HREEREEE
Group
458
010
“E-%%
Total Total
contractual thi Morethan  More than contractual Within More than More than
undiscounted fyearbut  2years but undiscounted 1 year Tyearbut  2yearshut
cash flow within within cash flow oron within within
Camying  &UEER 2years 5 years Camyng  AHAKE demand 2 years 5 years
amount BenE 1ENLE 2R amourt BekE  1EARA 1EMLR  ofMiR
Faf ] § ) SENR BEE 8 384 25N SEHR
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000
i BT g BET B SR BETT B
Bank loans GEES 28,000 28,185 28,185 - - 65,459 66,208 66,208 - -
Crecitors, deposit received it Bl
and aconuls RERER W51 METH 5T = = 30469 304695 304695 - -
Derivative financial instruments f44RIE 2311 2311 2311 - - - - - - -
Obligations nder finance leases HEREEE 691 691 20 24 180 Ll Ll %45 2 3
576,738 576,923 576,502 241 180 391,026 391,774 391,148 2 304
1 06 Company
¥4§
010
CE-%E
Total Total
contractual More than ~ More than contractual Within More than More than
undiscounted {yearbut  2years but undiscounted 1 year Tyearbut  2yearshut
cash flow within within cash flow oron within within
Camying ~ BHERE 2years 5 years Caryng  GHEHE demand 2 years 5 years
amount ReiE 1EHER  2FNLR amourt Bt 1ERRE 1ENLR OENMER
Fae ] 2R SENR BEE 4 384 2EHR SEHR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS 000
i BT 2 7 A oA oA A o
Bark loans EoE - - - - - 2500 2501 2501 - -
Crecitors, deposit received EfER Chat
and accnals LERER 12,750 12,750 12,750 = = 15,054 15,054 15,054 - -
Amounts due to subsidlaries EftHBL AR 1,565,483 1,565,483 1,565,483 - - 1,660,809 1,550,809 1,550,809 - -
157823 157828 15782 = -SRI 1%L 13683 - -
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5. Financial Instruments (ontinueq)
(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
bank loans and bank deposits.

(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate
profile of the Group’s and the Company’s
interest earning financial assets and interest
bearing financial liabilities at the end of the
reporting period:

5.

Effective

interest

rate p.a

BIRFEH =

Fixed rate financial T8

assets: MBEE :
Time deposits EHFR
Variable rate 28
financial assets/ MBEE
(liabilities): (&) :
Cash at banks IRITIFRK
Bank loans IRITER

2T H @
(c) FIZFEEAE

REENFRE R EZERERT
ERRBRITER

()  FIEKER

TRAJNRBERRSTE
BRARATEEEERS

BEENFIRER
Group
FEE
2011 2010
—F——FK —E-ZF
Effective 107
interest
rate p.a
B FEFIE
% HK$°000 % HK$'000
BT BT
2.48 41,876 0.73 212,684
0.74 128,703 0.88 356,105
0.95 (228,000) 2.63 (65,459)
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5. Financial Instruments (continueq)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(i) Interest rate profile (continued)

5. €T H =

(c) FIZ=mEpEH)

2011
—g——%

Effective
interest
rate p.a

BRENZE
%

Fixed rate financial
assets:
Time deposits

Variable rate
financial assets/
(liabilities):

Cash at banks
(Note)
Bank loans

Note:

(ii) Sensitivity analysis

Effective interest rate of cash at banks is

At 30 June 2011, it is estimated that general
increase/decrease ranging from 10 to 54
basis points (2010: 25 to 54 basis points)
in interest rates, with all other variables

held constant, would increase/decrease the

Group’s profit after tax and revenue reserve
by approximately HK$466,000 (2010:

HK$2,211,000).

(i)  FIELFR(E)
Company
AATF
2010
—E-—TfF
Effective
interest
rate p.a
BIREFIZE
HK$’000 % HK$'000
BT BT T

6,815

(ii)

0.25 134,080

0.0002 16,923
0.65 (2,500)

Bfar . AERATE R A
YD o

HEBESHT

R-ZE——FXA=+
B 585 fERE2ELEA
S THEI0OEMEF(=F
—BE I 25F54BF )
EHMMESHET TS
WERT ZREBZR
FERR R = 515
o,/ @ 2 # 7% ¥ 466,000
(T —ZF: B
2,211,0007T) °
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5. Financial Instruments (ontinued)

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk (continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit
after tax (and retained profits) and other
components of consolidated equity that
would arise assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied
to re-measure those financial instruments
held by the Group which expose the Group
to fair value interest rate risk at the end
of the reporting period. In respect of the
exposure to cash flow interest rate risk
arising from floating rate non-derivative
instruments held by the Group at the end
of the reporting period, the impact on the
Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits)
and other components of consolidated
equity is estimated as an annualised impact
on interest expense or income of such a
change in interest rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2010.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through sales, purchases, deposits, and
borrowings that are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the operations
in which they relate. The currencies giving rise to
this risk are primarily United States dollars (“USD”)
and Renminbi (“RMB”). As HK$ is pegged to
USD, the Group considers the risk of movements
in exchange rates between HK$ and USD to be
insignificant for transactions denominated in USD
which are entered into by entities with a functional

currency of HK$.

5. 2 TH=
(c) FIZ=EPpEE)
(i)  BEEANTE)

BLE SR E 2 738 R R
MERBRERZB AR
EREEBCEAREN
EXEERBENESHE
TR(BHEERH KA
EAnBENXEAR)
SEWBRBRFBAR
BAB URGEERDD
ARENE LRSS
B HRAKEEHRET
BHELTETIR  FIEE
BRAAEENRSREEE
BREL R ADE (FRE R
IRE  UHBFE X
FWANFELEERTT
fhe ZE—FFUR—
BEEDH o

(d) ENERE

AEEARHUREEQTANY
REEBLNEBENHE - &
B -ROTIFERAREENIER
o SMERBEERBETRA
R# - BRBITEIRTTHE - &
rEBEPEIRBLERRE
BRBEREZE - BLLLUEBED
REEBNEBERARZEARZ T
SEEERNIMNERR
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5. Financial Instruments (ontinued) 5. @I R
(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) BEREE)
(i) Exposure to currency risk (i) REZIMNEREE

THRIAEERARFAR
HRAEELAWEER
SN EHTENCERE
EREEREZ ZIER

The following table details the Group’s and
the Company’s exposure at the end of the
reporting period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated

MRAE MDA o
in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.
Group
350
2011 2010
—F-f ~3-2%
HK$'000  RMB’000 HK$'000  RMB'000 USD’000
BEFT ARETT BETL AREFT  Enfx
110
Debtors, deposits and FEWRERR
prepayments REREMT 73 - 369 151 - 94
Cash and cash BeRBe
equivalents 8 401 507 2,566 18,801 - 18,888
Creditors, deposits RS
received and accruals ek
B ER (116) - (241) (185) - (239)
Company
AAT
2010
—E-ZF
usD
EpL
000
FT
Cash and cash equivalents BRERRESEEE 13 17,684
Creditors, deposits received R » BUIRE
and accruals RESTER (239) (239)
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5. Financial Instruments (ontined) 5. £RIT R«
(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) EERMEE)
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) HREEDNT

The following table indicates the TRINHEHRRERER
approximate changes in the Group’s profit BERZENMEEERDE
after tax (and revenue reserve) in response WEE R ELE » &K
to reasonably possible changes in the B2 BRFEEF (R K
foreign exchange rates to which the Group nREB)BEENELE
has significant exposure at the end of the B o

reporting period.

Group
XEE
2011 2010
=8 —E-%F
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in profit in profit

111

Increase/ after Increase/ after
(decrease) tax and (decrease) tax and
in foreign revenue in foreign revenue
exchange reserve exchange reserve
rates BR# AR rates BRE R
MEER Rz kb NEEER  RRBERE
E7/(Fik)  #/(RY) PSydQy- VAV

% HK$’000 % HK$'000

BEFIT BEFT

usb ES 0.42 88 0.31 452
(0.42) (88) (0.31) (452)

RMB ARY 3.82 23 - -
(3.82) (23) - -
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5. Financial Instruments (ontinued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the group
entities’ profit after tax and equity measured
in the respective functional currencies,
translated into HK$ at the exchange rate
ruling at the end of the reporting date for
presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had
been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk
at the end of the reporting date, including
inter-company payables and receivables
within the Group which are denominated
in a currency other than the functional
currencies of the lender or the borrower.
The analysis excludes differences that would
result from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations into the
Group’s presentation currency. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2010.

(e) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes

arising from investments in equity securities. As the

carrying amount of such investments is insignificant

compared to the total assets of the Group, the

management considers the exposure to equity

price risk to be insignificant.

5. 2 TH=
(d) EXmEbEE)
(i) BEERIE)

LRz DS REER
FEEBERUAEBEMRE
ERTEZBRREENH
BiE BERBITZER
BRERBELUEZ R A
AR -

RBED B RERR
BEANEFHEREE
REREEZ S A EEE
HEREAREESRT
B GEAEEA ML
EHARERAZ DR
M BUSN 2 B BT PR
HREWE o 5 T aE
GEL RPN PN
HBRERRERS 2
Pl TAEE £ =
B—BE 2R
EESSTIRE

(e) MEREMR

FEEZIREFFRENRE
SHTE ANEAEFRENEKE
ERHAEENEERELTE
K EEERB/AEEAZ R
BRI FREE -
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5. Financial Instruments (ontinued)

(f) Fair value

(i) Financial instruments carried at fair

value

The following table presents the carrying

value of financial instruments measured at

fair value at the end of the reporting period

across the three levels of the fair value
hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7, Financial
Instruments: Disclosures, with the fair value

of each financial instrument categorized

in its entirety based on the lowest level of

input that is significant to that fair value

measurement. The levels are defined as

follows:

Level 1 (highest level): fair values
measure using quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for

identical financial instruments

Level 2: fair values measured using
quoted prices in active markets
for similar financial instruments, or
using valuation techniques in which
all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market
data

Level 3 (lowest level): fair values
measured using valuation techniques
in which any significant input is not

based on observable market data

5. £ TR
) REE

() HAREETEZLHT
=

TRIERBRIZARE
BIERENEHMIE  ZR
EAMBHREENE L
o 2RIA: HE W
FE UHEZUBEIAN
AREBEFZEEARER
BEDINRB=ZHR - BEW
EZWT :

- B-R(&ER):
REHARESHTA
RIER™ 5 2 RE
(REFE)FTER
RIEE -

- B REEM
ERMTAMNERT
% 2 RIE - HARE
RERMFERR
BE mEBMGE
g o PR 8% 2
NABEEEEXRE
EZREWMARE
WRAEMSEER
B -

- BERE&EER)
RBEERMTE
DMREE MEEE
CRERERULE NS
BZAREELE

FEzEMEA
HEFERTHE
mIEHE -
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For the year ended 30 June 2011

BiZ 201146530 HILFE
5. Financial Instruments (oniinued) 5. &I Hw
()  Fair value (continued) () AnEEE
(i) Financial instruments carried at fair (i) LUXAREEIEZEHMT
value (continued) R (&)
2011 The Group and the Company
-5 EEEREAT
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
- EZHR E=HR
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
EBEFIT - EBETT - EETT
Assets EE

I_r
il
? I
9t
3
[

Listed equity securities,

at market value 14 - -
Liabilities afiE
Derivative financial instruments T4 €@ T A (2,311) - -
2010 The Group and the Company
—E-EF AEBRAQT
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

£ g B
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BEFTT  BETT  BETT

Assets B
Listed equity securities, tHhESEmE
at market value 44 — —

(i)  Financial instruments carried at other (i) HFELUXAEEIRZE

than fair value AT A

All financial instruments are carried at RIE——FRZE—Z

amounts not materially different from their FRA=1TH FIESH

fair values as at 30 June 2011 and 2010. TANKRAEEEQAAE

BEYESREE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %R R sE

For the year ended 30 June 2011
EE2011F6 30 HILFE

5. Financial Instruments (ontinued)

(f)

Fair value (continued)

(iii)

Significant financial assets and
liabilities

All significant financial assets and liabilities
are carried at amounts not materially
different from their fair values as at 30 June
2010 and 2011. The carrying amounts of
non-trade balances with holding companies
and fellow subsidiaries approximate the
fair values due to the relatively short-
term maturity of these financial assets and
liabilities.

Segment Reporting

The Group’s businesses are presented in the following

segments in a manner consistent with the way in which

information is reported internally to the Group’s most

senior executive management for the purposes of

resource allocation and performance assessment:

Food: the manufacture and sale of a broad range of food

products including flour and edible oils.

Detergent: the manufacture and sale of household and

institutional cleaning products.

5. 2T H@
) AREED

(i) EXLHEEREEF

RZB——FR=Z-F
FARAA=+A FIEEKX
CREEREBENKREE
BER-ZE—ZEFER=-ZF
——FXA=+HHEAR
BEEILTEEAEZE -BHR
ERARREBZRKMB LR
MWIEE 5N FHEY
gE Eit EESmE
EREENIREEBEEAR
EEES -

6. NEEFE
REBEKRTH DI - BEEEER

HARERRGEAEERSEITREEA
SEERIERZZAANAESE -

B HERIE-RIER  BFEE
MERMM -

BERm: RERIHEXARIERE
BRm e
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For the year ended 30 June 2011
EFE2011F6 30 HILFE

6. Segment Reporting (continueq)

(a)

Segments results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s most senior executive
management monitor the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment

on the following bases:

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
“profit from operations”. To arrive at “profit from
operations”, the Group’s earnings are further
adjusted for items not specifically attributed
to individual segments, such as head office or

corporate administration costs.

Segment assets include all tangible assets,
intangible assets and current assets with the
exception of interests in associates, interest in a
jointly controlled entity, deferred tax assets and
other corporate assets. Segment liabilities include
all trade creditors and accruals attributable to the
manufacturing and sales activities of the individual
segments, bank loans managed directly by the
segments, and other current liabilities with the
exception of deferred tax liabilities and other

corporate liabilities.

6.

PEPEE =)

(a)

SEpEE EERERE
BAEIBREARE S HE2E
RREMS  AEERSEBTH
EEBEAERBETISEEZEESE
EHREDPH2EE - EERA
&

RARBEDBER 2RTAES
[EEEN]- BT HHIEER
R AEB 2 BRI R R E
BRER DAz EE (MR RQFE
HEATHAAR)EHE -

o

PHMEERREEHENEE - &
FEERRBDEE  HEBHEQT
i HAEEGEEELS BT
REEERAMEEEERD -
THEEEEEHER S 2L
ERFEETHREZEZENR
REESHER 2 HEEEEZ
RITER  UREMRBEE
HEER AR ERAtEXEE
BRIM o
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For the year ended 30 June 2011
EE2011F6 30 HILFE

6. Segment Reporting (continueq)

(a)

Segments results, assets and liabilities

(continued)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable

6. DEBEFE =)

SMESE  HAERERA)

(a)

AERSETHREEAESRHEZE

segments as provided to the Group’s most senior EREDIBERWT -
executive management is set out below.
2011 2010
—E——F “EZ-EF
Segment Segment
Food Detergent Total Food  Detergent Total
-1 g4 B PRt X BERAR BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  BETT  EETT A iav L av
Revenue from external BAMRE P
customers and REERSE
reportable segment 2B 2,161,351 341,259 2,502,610 1,882,915 304,437 2,187,352
Reportable segment  EfE
profit from BEPHZ
operations FSyey 119,125 37,748 156,873 134,107 45,922 180,029
Interest income FEWA 3,514 900 4,414 2,449 945 3,394
Finance costs A& A (2,062) (14) (2,076) (591) - (591)
Depreciation and FE
amortisation for ER
the year 5 (47,856) (1,519)  (49,375)  (43,755) (1,816)  (45,571)
Other material profit ~ EftEE
or loss items: BRER
— Exchange gain - ERkR 22,339 934 23,273 3,237 165 3,402
— Provision for - RER
doubtful debts 1 - - = (172) (80) (252)
— Reversal of - RER
provision for £
doubtful debts Bm 681 262 943 — — -
Income tax charge PESH (4,897) (18,975) (18,872) (5,464) (10,346) (15,810)
Reportable segment  EfE#R%E
assets AM2EE 1,864,287 194,274 2,058,561 1,411,160 172,540 1,583,700
Reportable segment ~ Eeif%
liabilities AUz EfE  (596,796)  (68,295)  (665,091)  (352,149)  (64,998)  (417,147)
Additions to non- R
current segment kY
assets during ABERD
the year B 55,517 4,549 60,066 168,782 2,305 171,087
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BIZE2011F6 HA30HIEE
6. Segment Reporting continued) 6. TEER @

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment (b) FEBREDEBUAN- B
revenue, profit or loss, assets and BEREBEZAGER
liabilities

2011 2010
—g——% —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT B F T
Revenue 9N
Reportable segment revenue EEREDEBZUWA 2,502,610 2,187,352
Service and rental income R#ERBESWA 7,088 5,964
Consolidated turnover REEHE 2,509,698 2,193,316
Profit i Fl
Reportable segment profit from — EAERE 522 K&
operations T Al 156,873 180,029
Share of (loss)/profit of a jointly  FE{L 1t [5]32% &1 {E B2
controlled entity (E58), =R (2,236) 2,020
Finance costs LR (2,076) (624)
Unallocated exchange RoBmZESR
(loss)/gain (F518) W= (66) 2,844
Unallocated head office and AOB2BATR
corporate expenses TEEH (39,497) (41,307)
Consolidated profit before mERB AR
taxation 112,998 142,962
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets EEREDHZEE 2,058,561 1,583,700
Elimination of inter-segment DEBE W Z
receivables K 35 (88,679) (29,445)
1,969,882 1,554,255
Interest in a jointly controlled HEEFERE
entity R 52,097 54,333
Amount due from a jointly PR H EE S E R
controlled entity FRIE 10,241 8,659
Deferred tax assets ELERIEEE 119 1,398
Unallocated head office and AOWMZBNAR
corporate assets TEEE 49,254 193,204
Consolidated total assets REBEE 2,081,593 1,811,849
Liabilities I=LE
Reportable segment liabilities EEREIB2EE (665,091) (417,147)
Elimination of inter-segment DEBRE A TR Z
payables K EH 88,679 29,445
(576,412) (387,702)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEERE - (11)
Unallocated head office and AOWM2BRAR
corporate liabilities TEEE (20,186) (25,049)
Consolidated total liabilities meRas (596,598) (412,762)
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BiZ 201146530 HILFE
6. Segment Reporting (continueq)

(c) Geographical information

The following table sets out information about
the geographical location of (i) the reportable
segment’s revenue from external customers and (ii)
the Group’s fixed assets, leasehold land, intangible
assets, interest in associates and interest in a
jointly controlled entity (“specified non-current
assets”). The geographical location of customers is
pased on the location at which the services were
provided or the goods delivered. The geographical
location of the fixed assets and leasehold land is
based on the physical location of the assets, in the
case of goodwill, the location of the operation to
which they are allocated, in the case of interest in
associates and interest in a jointly controlled entity,
the location of operations.

6.

2011

—F——%

Hong Kong

PRC

BE  PEXRE
HK$’000  HK$’000
BYTT ABETT

Reportable segment's  EERELHE
revenue from external  HMREF 2

customers A 526,996 1,975,614

Specified non-current  EEFFRBEE
assets 85,027

During the year 2011 and 2010, there was no
major customer accounting for more than 10% of
the total turnover of the Group.

Turnover

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out on pages
165 to 167.

Turnover represents the net invoiced value of goods
supplied to external customers as well as service and
rental income. An analysis of the Group’s turnover is set
out below:

670,667

nEPEE @)
(c) HWESEHE

TRESIAY IRV EE R B ()
BEREIMAIREF 2K
A RAEEEEEE - HE
Tt BPEE  BEQAFER
RAREGEEED((FEEFR
BEE])  FFNABHELR
BRBEUNEWEE 2T
BE BEEEREELHOAR
BiEERAMAEMME - B8
BYFT R e THAR I E W 0 B 2 &Y
EEMEME BEAAERR
HAEZEHEEESNIBHESR
REEBHBME

2010
=
118 Hong Kong PRC Total
&3 BE  HEAE Ch

GLEYINE  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
e ERTT EETT ERTRT

2,502,610 464,638 1,722,714 2,187,352

755,694 88,825 641,734 730,559

—E-—FNCZE-ZTEEFR
AEBRENRE-—EFEF(hEE
EEZMN10% o

LR
ARAR-MEERRAT  HWEA

AN EEEKRFINEI6EEE 167
H o

EXERARETHIIEFPNERNESR
FEMBRBRBASWA - REBBNEE
BOMUWT -

2011 2010

—F——F —EB-2F

HK$’000 HK$'000

BEFor BT T

Sales of goods HEER 2,502,610 2,187,352
Service and rental income RERBESUWA 7,088 5,964
2,509,698 2,193,316

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2011 | ZZ——F £

mIE (F#8)BRAF

119



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BAFiRFRMIsE

For the year ended 30 June 2011
EFE2011F6 30 HILFE

8. Other Income

8. HulkA

2011 2010
—ET——% —E-ZF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BETIT BT
Management fee income BFEBRA 2,690 2,690
Sales of scrapped materials HERER 1,483 2,349
Gain on disposal of fixed assets HEBEEERS 8,174 8,157
Gain on disposal of available-for- HEHH SN
sales financial assets BERE - 227
Interest income FE WA 4,519 4,299
Exchange gain INEEBE 5 U 5 23,207 6,246
Reversal of provision for doubtful RIRREERD
debts 943 -
Miscellaneous Hith 633 803
120 41,649 24,771
9. Finance Costs 9. RIERAE
2011 2010
—E——F —E-ZF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BETIT BETFT
Interest on bank loans and REFRE2IHNEE
overdrafts wholly repayable within  Z#RITERRK
five years EXRE 2,076 624
The Group’s effective borrowing interest rate for the year EEAEENEREEFTFEEH1.3%

was approximately 1.3% (2010: 1.4%) per annum. (ZE—FF 11.4%) °
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For the year ended 30 June 2011
EE2011F6 30 HILFE

10. Profit Before Taxation

10. B % A i F

Profit before taxation is arrived at

after charging/(crediting):

Staff costs (including directors’

remuneration — note 17)
— Wages, salaries and

allowances

— Equity settled share-based
payment expenses (hote 33)
— Defined contribution retirement

plans

Auditors’ remuneration

Depreciation of fixed assets

Amortisation of leasehold land

Amortisation of intangible assets

Net exchange gain

Provision for doubtful debts

Reversal of provision for doubtful

debts

Operating lease rental of properties

Cost of inventories (note 24(b))

Net proceeds from disposal of fixed

assets

Less: Carrying value of fixed assets

Gain on disposal of fixed assets

Rental income less outgoings

BRBE AR
2R (FFA)

BRI (BIEESHE
— BEE11)
—I5- -FHek
p=4:
— URGOEEREE
S E R (B2 33)
— EFEMHIER
Bk
AN &
EEEENE
RS T ey
B EEHE
RN R U S
RIRRERE

RIRAREMHRE

HEHEMENESER

FERA(HaE 24(b))

HEEEEENMERIA
R

A BEEEREE

HEEE & E WS

& WA R X

2011 2010
—T——%F —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$°000
BETIT BT T
158,946 161,642
2,685 -
14,942 11,812
176,573 173,454
1,046 995
51,698 45,570
2,403 2,341

111 79
(23,207) (6,246)

- 252

(943) -
4,077 2,914
2,066,618 1,745,905
(11,422) (10,646)
3,248 2,489
(8,174) (8,157)
(7,088) (5,964)
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For the year ended 30 June 2011
EFE2011F6 30 HILFE

(a)

11. Directors’ and Senior 1M1. EERBRITHAE
Executives’ Emoluments i =
The directors’ emoluments of the Company and its (a) REBFEBEQARAKRAE—BART—
subsidiaries calculated in accordance with Section BREEZARABTRENB AT
161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are EEMELENT
as follows:
Group
A58
Housing
Retirement henefits
Basic salary/ schemeses and  Share-based
Directors’ fee contributions ~ allowances payments
e/ Bonus  EH#ER  EEEA DY
E£20k 4 SRR REg  BEzE
HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETr BEFn BEFL BETT BETT
Executive director BiTES
LEUNG Wai Fung P 2,201 174 206 73 839 4,219
Non-executive directors ~ FEH{TES
WHANG Sun Tze BELE 200 - - - - 200
KWEK Leng Hai EIEy < 260 - - - - 260
TAN Lim Heng B 200 - - - - 200
TSANG Cho Tai EEES 260 - - - - 260
DING Wai Chuen (Note(i) TERME() 200 - - - - 200
Independent non-executive B FHTEE
directors
LO Kwong Chi, Clement BB+ 300 - - - - 300
LO Kai Yiu, Anthony (Notefi))  EERB(Hz i) 260 - - - - 260
AU Chee Ming (Note(ii) BRI (B (i) 220 - - - - 220
Year ended F-5
30 June 2011 ~AZTELEE 4127 174 206 778 839 6,119
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For the year ended 30 June 2011

EE2011F6 30 HILFE
11. Directors’ and Senior 1M1. EERBRITHAE
Executives’ Emoluments (continueq) AT
(a) (continued) (a) (&)
Group
148
Housing
Retirement benefits
Basic salary/ schemeses and  Share-based
Directors' fee contributions ~ allowances payments
e/ Bonus EIER EERA WA
EE20k izl HE |58 REk  EE2AH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFr  ERTT BRTn BRTL BRTx
Executive director yiEs
LEUNG Wai Fung R 2,004 1073 200 742 - 4,019
Non-executive directors ~ JEHTEE 123
WHANG Sun Tze ELE 180 - - - - 180
KWEK Leng Hai ey 220 - - - - 220
TAN Lim Heng AR 180 - - - - 180
TSANG Cho Tai EREES 230 - - - - 230
DING Wai Chusn (Notsfj) TREWH ) 191 - - - - 191

Independent non-executive  BAFHTEE

directors
LO Kwong Chi, Clement EES 265 - - - - 265
LO Kai Yiu, Anthony (Notefi)) ~ EERRIB(MEE (i) 202 - - - - 222
AU Chee Ming (Noteii) R (7 (i) 165 - - - - 165
Year ended —E-%F

30 June 2010 NAZTHLEE 3,657 1,073 200 742 - 5,672

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2011 | —ZZ=—— %43 ®E|E(FE) BRAT



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %R R sE

124

For the year ended 30 June 2011
EFE2011F6 30 HILFE

11. Directors’ and Senior
Executives’ Emoluments (continueq)

%MM

(@) (continued) (a)

Notes:

(i) Mr. DING Wai Chuen was re-designated as non-
executive director on 1 September 2009.

(if) Mr. LO Kai Yiu Anthony was appointed as
member of board audit committee on 1
September 2009.

(iii) Mr. Au Chee Ming was appointed as independent
non-executive director of the Company on 26
August 2009 and was appointed as member
board remuneration committee on 1 September
20009.

(iv) Basic salary/directors’ fees — The amounts paid
and payable to non-executive directors are
directors’ fees. The amount paid and payable to
executive director was basic salaries.

(v) Bonuses paid/payable for the year were
performance related.

(vi) There was no arrangement under which a director
had waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.

(b) The five highest paid individuals (b)

The five highest paid individuals included one
(2010: one) director, details of whose remuneration
are set out above. The remaining employees’
emoluments are analysed as follows:

B2
&)

(#&)

Hyat -

()

(i)

(il)

(iv)

(vi)

AEm

m}

MITBRAS

TEZELER-ZZAFN
A—BXERFHTES -

BRBEENR-ZZNFH
A-EERZERESSH
BEESERE -

EBEBEENR=ZZZNFN
At ABHEAQABY
FHITES RZBEAF
hWE-—HEZEARESSH
WEESEME -

BN/ ERzHE EEHE
T — FYTESUESESE
FARE - BTESUHE
77 S ER

REEZEN ENAIEAD
BREEETE -

VETLIEEHEREZK
RUMEME R -

BRAMES

TEREWRANEERE—RE

H(=2-

BE:—%) Hew

HREIREX - R T RENH
EHBWT

2011 2010
—F——FK —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT
Salaries, bonus, housing benefits e A BEEA
and share-based payments RUBRDAER 2
ISEN 8,318 7,589
Retirement schemes contributions B4R & 52K 165 150
8,483 7,739
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For the year ended 30 June 2011
BiFE2011 630 H1LFE

11. Directors’ and Senior
Executives’ Emoluments (continueq)

(b)

The five highest paid individuals (continued)

The number of employees whose remuneration fell
within the following bands was:

%Ilﬂlﬁ

(b)

B2
&)

BITHAE

ﬁ.lll}

AEESBANES (&)

MeBTIRENESEHE W
T

2010
HK$ B —E-FF
1,500,001 — 2,000,000 1,500,001 — 2,000,000 3 3
2,000,001 — 2,500,000 2,000,001 — 2,500,000 1

4 4

The remuneration of certain individuals represents
remuneration received in respect of services
rendered to the Company and its Hong Kong and
overseas subsidiaries.

12. Taxation

(a)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at
the rate of 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) on the respective
estimated assessable profits of the companies
within the Group operating in Hong Kong during
the year.

Overseas taxation represents income tax charge on
the estimated taxable profits of certain subsidiaries
operating in Mainland China, calculated at the rates
prevailing in the respective regions.

Certain subsidiaries operating in Mainland China
have been exempted from PRC income tax with
effect from 1 January 2008.

Other subsidiaries operating in Mainland China are
subject to income tax rates ranging from 22% to
25% (2010: 12.5% to 25%).

ETRENHMESRARERBALQ
ARARABRERBRBIWEL
AN E -

12. BilA

(a)

EEBEENEE AR ZFEH
EHETRBEF AT RERBR
FlIZFEER165% (=B —FF :
16.5%) 512 ©

BOIBBERERTFEAELEE S
T B B B Ah wT FERRBUE A 2
ZMER 2B RFENB IR
4o

TEIAREEE 2 ETHEARH
—EENF-A-REEHRTD
BIFR1SHE o

REBEREEECHMHER
A FAMBHRER2%E
25% (= & — & F 1 125% %
25%)
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For the year ended 30 June 2011

BiZ 201146530 HILFE
12. Taxation (continued) 12. **,IE (#&)
(b)  The income tax charge represents the sum of the (b) FISBXHARENBRAREL
tax currently payable and deferred taxation charges BIRMBH - HARMT
as follows:
2011 2010
—ET——% —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BT
Current tax: REHIE :
Hong Kong taxation BHERE 5,977 5,409
(Over)/under-provision in respect LRI FEZ (B5),
of prior years TREE (1,113) 1,687
4,864 7,09
Overseas taxation FNELE 15,453 13,355
126 Under-provision in respect of DA FEZTREE
prior years 338 255
15,791 18,610
Deferred taxation (note 13(a)): IRFERSIE (Kt 13(a)) -
_Currentyear AEE 1,268 136
21,923 20,842

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2011 | =2 ——FF3f ®FEIE(FB)BRAT



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B4 %R R sE

For the year ended 30 June 2011
EE2011F6 30 HILFE

12. Taxation (continued)

(c)

(d)

12. #IE =)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to

the profit before taxation per consolidated income

statement as follows:

(c)

R A W s & T BRBE A R B AR R
E2BBEZ HAHMOT :

2011 2010
—ET——% —E-ZF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BETIT BT T
Profit before taxation BRI A E T 112,998 142,962
Notional tax on profit before RERAR
taxation, calculated at the rates BB R E
applicable to profits in the RBLADE R 2
countries concerned BIE 24,694 27,477
Tax effect of non-deductible B £ A HRAYBE X
expenses ZHEE 8,046 2,052
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue ~ EERBIUL A KIF IS
% (8,879) (12,124)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not K F MR AN FEERIE
recognised EEzHRETE 2,039 9,282
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses 1 AR LLAT & E A F LA
not previously recognised R EER 2B
24 (3,387) (7,018)
Tax effect of loss/(profit) FEAL R HI{E R
attributable to a jointly controlled B CER) =z
entity B sE 369 (333)
(Over)/under-provision in prior years LARTEE = (HB%8),
TREE (775) 1,942
Others Hith (184) (436)
Tax charge for the year REEMEBHEH 21,923 20,842
Tax effects relating to the components of (d) Ht2EWEHBEE

other comprehensive income

The net tax effects relating to the components of

other comprehensive income were insignificant for

disclosure purpose for the years 2011 and 2010.

E-B-——R-B-BEE B
Bt 2 T R 28 04 AR 240 9B
AWFRE  HREBEMELF
EP S
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For the year ended 30 June 2011

EFE2011F6 30 HILFE
13. Deferred Taxation 13. IEXEHIE
(@ Group (a) #KH
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities EHREMBMR R R PERMNIEL
recognised in the consolidated statement of BiE(EE) BERANRETEE
financial position and the movements thereon RUARIFE 2 ZEBMT

during the current and prior years are as follows:

Accelerated

tax Tax
depreciation Provisions losses Total
mERBRE B HEEE &3

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BBTT

At 1 July 2009 “EENFLA-A 252 (1,288) (487) (1,523)
Charged/(credited) to income RUERAZE/ (GTA)
statement (note 12(b)) (B 120) 327 (99) (92) 136
128
At 30 June 2010 —¥-F%5A=1H 579 (1,387) (579) (1,387)
At 1 July 2010 “E-TEtE-A 579 (1,387) (579) (1,387)
Charged/(credited) to income RiERAZE/ (F1A)
statement (note 12(b)) (B 120) (109) 1,268 109 1,268
At 30 June 2011 —¥-—-%5A=1H 470 (119) (470) (119)
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax DTHEER EE R DT DB
balances for financial reporting purposes: HIREFIRAA -
2011 2010
—FT——% —E-ZF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BT
Deferred tax liabilities BEFIEAE = (1)
Deferred tax assets ELEBIBEE 119 1,398

119 1,387

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2011 | =2 ——FF3f ®FEIE(FB)BRAT



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf¥3R RMisE

For the year ended 30 June 2011
BiE20114¥6 530 HILFE

13. Deferred Taxation (continueq)

(a)

Group (continued)

The Group is liable to withholding tax on dividends
to be distributed from subsidiaries in the Mainland
China in respect of their profits generated on or
after 1 January 2008. At 30 June 2011, temporary
differences relating to the undistributed profits
of the Group’s subsidiaries in the Mainland
China amounted to HK$255,030,000 (2010:
HK$184,572,000). Deferred tax liabilities have not
been recognised in respect of the tax that would
be payable on the distribution of these retained
profits as the Company controls the dividend policy
of these subsidiaries and it has been determined
that it is probable that profits will not be distributed
by these subsidiaries in the foreseeable future.

At 30 June 2011, the Group had unused tax losses
of HK$294,230,000 (2010: HK$341,149,000)
available for offset against future taxable profits.
A deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of HK$2,849,000 (2010: HK$3,511,000)
for such losses. No deferred tax assets have
been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$291,381,000 (2010: HK$337,638,000) due to
the unpredictability of future taxable profit streams.
Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
HK$15,433,000 (2010: HK$6,279,000) that will
expire within five years. Other losses can be carried
forward indefinitely.

At 30 June 2011, the Group had temporary
differences of HK$157,166,000 (2010:
HK$188,157,000) arising from impairment of
certain fixed assets and leasehold lands provided
on 31 December 2001. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of these temporary
differences due to the unpredictability of taxable
profits streams against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised in the
foreseeable future.

Temporary differences arising in connection with
interests in associates and a jointly controlled entity
are insignificant.

13. BEHIE =)

(a)

ARE(E)

TEBEFEBEALSE ZHBL
AEMPIK=ZENF—A—
H B P18 0 FM S 0 B Fi o
RZZBE——FXA=1+H BH8
AEBATBEBEAZHE QR
AOBMABHEBEEMEESB
¥ 255,030,000( = & — & F ©
184,572,000) o AL = H
ZEMBRARNBRERXK B
RERTRRRZEMB QAR
AT E D IREA - EHikd R
Th D IR 5% 5 R 5 B FE A 2 0 4R
ERIELEHIEEE -

RZEBE——FXA=1+H K&
B 78 #204,230,000 5 (= &
— Z & B %341,149,000 7T )
H9 AT R 3R 0 R 2R FE SR FLR R AY
BKEE BEPRzBERRT
B 2,849,000 TL(ZE—F4F :
FB#E 3,511,000 7T) WIELER IEE
= o &R 8 % 291,381,000 7T
(ZZ—ZF : B¥ 337,638,000
T)MAEKINERE BHRR
EAHMAAFERME > AR
REBRAELEHEEE - 5
S REROBBERPEEE
15,433,000 t(ZZE—FF . B
#6,279,000 T) ME B R EF
A I HR o EL{th 55 18 7T LA PR B ith
EEBHE o

R-ZEE-F+-A=+—8>
AEEAELETEEEEREE S
WERERE  ZSRBER=-Z
——FR"A=Z+HAKEEE4L
7 #157,166,000 (= & — &
& . 78 #188,157,0007T ) W &
REEE BEARKEFNHIRT
JEEM IULTERZE=RER
ELERIBEE o

HEEE N R ML EZ I ERER
HENERMEERETREKR -
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For the year ended 30 June 2011
EFE2011F6 30 HILFE

13. Deferred Taxation (continued)
(b) Company
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
recognised in the statement of financial position

and the movements thereon during the current and
prior years are as follows:

(b)

Accelerated

13. IBEHIIE o)

A2A5F

7B R 5 R R R A ESE BUR
(H7E) BEREAFERLLA
FENEENT :

tax
depreciation Tax losses Total
MEHIEZINE BirsEsiE a5
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BT BT BT
At 1 July 2009 —EZNFtA—H 108 (108) =
Charged/(credited) to RERAZE,
income statement (5t A) (31) 31 -
At 30 June 2010 —E-FFRA=+H 77 (77) —
At 1 July 2010 —E-ZFtH—H 77 77) =
Charged/(credited) to ~ RUWZmETAZE”
income statement (5t A) 34 (34) -
At 30 June 2011 —E——%xA=+H 111 (111) -

14. Profit Attributable to
Shareholders of the Company

Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company
included a loss of HK$4,111,000 (2010: profit of
HK$456,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

14. ZAEIRREG 2T

AABRREGEZNCEIEFTERELD
A BHRRABEE 4111000 9EE (=
F—FF | HBHBEE456,0007T) °
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BiZ 201146530 HILFE
. n
15. Dividends 15. I8
2011 2010
—B——F —E-FF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BT
2010: Final dividend of HK$0.10 —E-TF . FRENKRE
per share paid during the year BRESRB® IO (=
(2009: HK$0.09 per share) ZNE GRBE0.097T)
24,217 21,777
2011: Interim dividend of HK$0.06 —Z——%F : FRETHH
per share paid during the year BRESRBE 06T (=ZF
(2010: HK$0.06 per share) —ZF . §REB¥0.067T)
14,517 14,517
38,734 36,294
2011: Final dividend proposed after —&——%F : HIREBERE >
the end of the reporting period REBREFROIOT(ZE 131
of HK$0.10 per share (2010: —ZF  §RB%0.107T)
HK$0.10 per share) 24,335 24,335
The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting MARBRRE ZRPIRE > WRERE
period has not been recognised as liabilities at the end of Ry BEEEB -

the reporting period.
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For the year ended 30 June 2011
EFE2011F6 30 HILFE

16. Earnings Per Share
(a) Basic (a)

The calculation of basic earnings per share is
based on the profit attributable to shareholders
of the Company of HK$91,075,000 (2010:
HK$122,120,000) for the year and the weighted
average of 241,961,000 (2010: 241,961,000)
ordinary shares in issue during the year, calculated

as follows:

16. Bix& 7

BEX

EREXRBITDIREAATRRE
FE {5 3% R 78 %5 91,075,000 7T (=
F — T F: B ¥122,120,000
TIRRAFERNCBITER
B =2 N ¥ F 13 #241,961,000
B(= & — & F : 241,961,000
IR) - HEWT :

2010
—E-FF
‘000
7:
Issued ordinary shares at FORFERSHIT
beginning and end of year ZER 243,354 243,354
Shares repurchased in prior DaiEEOEsEEBR
years (note 32) (BtaE32) (1,393) (1,393)
Weighted average number of FEZEBRINE
ordinary shares for the year FEE 241,961 241,961
(b) Diluted (b) H#5F

Diluted earnings per share for the years ended
30 June 2011 and 2010 were not presented as
there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares
outstanding at 30 June 2011 and 2010.

MRAE=E-—FR-F-FF
<BEtRREABERHER
HER Bl BE-T——
FR-F-BFAASTALF
£ EREFIRSRBERF o
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For the year ended 30 June 2011
EE2011F6 30 HILFE

17. Fixed Assets

17. BIE & E

(a) Group (a) F&H
Medium term
leasehold Medium term
buildings leasehold Plant,
in Hong Kong buildings equipment,
and leasehold outside furniture and
improvements Hong Kong  Construction  motor vehicles
FEPHEY iEohe in progress BE ki
BERER R fRIR ERRAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Cost or valuation: A {E M -
At 1 Jduly 2010 ZE-ZEtR-A 20,453 731,271 4,999 698,727 1,455,450
Exchange adjustments EjiE - 22,332 424 29,620 52,376
Additions 25 113 4,082 34,982 11,569 50,946
Transferred from construction ~ EBERIR
in progress - 9,354 (17,751) 8,397 -
Disposals HE - (7,159) - (4,277) (11,436)
At 30 June 2011 “%--£53B=+H 20,566 760,080 22,654 744,036 1,547,336
Representing: ik :
Cost AAE 9,701 760,080 22,654 744,036 1,536,471
Valuation — 2000 i - Z2%5% 10,865 - - - 10,865
At 30 June 2011 “%--£5B=+H 20,566 760,080 22,654 744,036 1,547,336
Accumulated depreciation: ~ BiiiE:
At 1 July 2010 ZE-ZEt+A-A 7,833 291,912 - 417,871 717,616
Exchange adjustments EjiE - 15,085 - 16,468 31,553
Charge for the year KEENE 1520 21,392 - 28,786 51,608
Written back on disposals HERER - (5,230) - (2,958) (8,188)
At 30 June 2011 “%--£53B=+H 9,353 323,159 - 460,167 792,679
Impairment: HE:
At 1 July 2010 and “%-%5tB-Bk
o Sanemtt S-ERAZtE - tew - - e
Net book value: REFE:
At 30 June 2011 Z%--55xB=+H 11,213 294,839 22,654 283,869 612,575
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BIZE2011F6 HA30HIEE
- P
17. Fixed Assets (continued) 17. E}Eéé(%)
(@) Group (continued) (a) AEEBEE)
Medium term
leasehold ~ Medium term

buildings leasehold Plant,

in Hong Kong buildings equipment,

and leasehold outside furniture and

improvements HongKong  Construction  motor vehicles

FEPHEY o L in progress BE R

BFREE ey HEIR ERRRE

HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK$'000

BEFL BEFT BETT BEFL

Cost or valuation: BAES fME :
At 1 Jduly 2009 “EENELA-R 20,073 622,716 74,816 608,620 1,326,225
Exchange adjustments Ejigg - 3,941 627 6,714 11,282
Additions B 380 50,077 31,129 56,804 138,390
Transferred from ERGEIR
Construction in progress - 61,668 (101,579) 39,905 -
i & _ _
134 Disposals HE (7.131) (13,316) (20,447)
At 30 June 2010 ZF-%57A=1H 20,453 731,211 4,999 698,727 1,455,450
Representing: fi%:

Cost HAE 9,588 731,271 4,999 698,727 1,444,585
Valuation — 2000 i - 2858 10,865 - - - 10,865
At 30 June 2010 ZF-%5~A=1H 20,453 731,211 4,999 698,727 1,455,450

Accumulated depreciation: ~ BH{FE:

At 1 July 2009 ZEENELA-R 6,314 275,349 - 401,172 682,835

Exchange adjustments ERa2 - 3,486 - 3,683 7,169

Charge for the year KEERE 1519 18,283 - 25,768 45,570

Written back on disposals HEARE - (5,206) - (12,752) (17,958)

At 30 June 2010 “F-BE7A=1H 7,833 291,912 - 47,87 717,616
Impairment: e

At 1 July 2009 and “ESnEtR-BR
L Wnentd -RERRZIE - tew - - e
Net book value: FREFE

At 30 June 2010 “F-EE7A=+A 12,620 207,077 4,999 280,856 595,752
At 30 June 2011, the net book value of fixed R-ZBE——FXA=1+H  U@E
assets held under finance leases amounted to HEBENRE CEERMEEAB
HK$1,163,000 (2010: HK$1,022,000) 1,163,000 c(ZE —FF: B ¥

1,022,000 7¢) °
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BiE20114¥6 530 HILFE
17. Fixed Assets (continued) 17. EEE’E({E}
(b) Company (b) &*FAF
Office
equipment,
furniture and
motor vehicles
MAERME -
R R RE
HK$’000
BETT
Cost: RAE :
At 1 July 2010 —E-SF+H—H 9,905
Additions 1R 598
Disposals e (8)
_At30June2011 —¥-——%7xA=tB 10,495
Accumulated depreciation: EiHiRE -
At 1 July 2010 —E2—-EF+H—H 9,017 135
Charge for the year NEFEIRE 453
Written back on disposals =% (8)
At 30 June 2011 —E——%7A=+H 9,462
Net book value: ARTEFE -
At 30 June 2011 —E——%f£5H=+H 1,033
Cost: RAE :
At 1 July 2009 —EENANFELA—H 9,904
Additions frabrS 189
Disposals e (188)
At80June2010 —F-®FXA=tR 9,905
Accumulated depreciation: ZEiHinE
At 1 July 2009 —EEAELA—AH 8,747
Charge for the year NEFERE 454
Written back on disposals =% B E (184)
_At80Jdune2010 —F-FFXA=fE 9017
Net book value: ARERE :
At 30 June 2010 —E-BEXA=1H 888
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BiZ 201146530 HILFE
1=
18. Leasehold Land 18. HE 1 b
Group
AEE
2011 2010
—E——f —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000
EETiT JBEFT
At beginning of year iR 80,337 48,115
Exchange difference ERAE 3,263 1,264
Additions BN 9,912 33,299
Amortisation ey (2,403) (2,341)
At end of year AR 91,109 80,337
Current portion (included in debtors, REIEE S (BE
deposits and prepayments REWERR - ZE2 Kk
— note 25) TR — ML 25) (2,595) (2,461)
136 N
Non-current portion IERENEE D 88,514 77,876
The Group’s leasehold land comprises: AEBEZHE T hEIE
Group
AR
2011 2010
—ET——% —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
B TIT BT T
Leasehold land in Hong Kong: BEZHELH
Medium-term lease HRHEIFA A 13,542 13,920

Leasehold land outside Hong Kong: @Mz iHE L1t :
Medium-term lease FREAFRZD 77,567 66,417

91,109 80,337
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EE2011F6 30 HILFE

19. Intangible Assets

19. BLEE

Group
XEEH
Goodwill Trademarks Total
meE i1 a5
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT
Cost or valuation: RAEfEE :
At 1 July 2010 —E2-TF+H—H 14,714 39,311 54,025
Exchange difference E R — 21 21
At 30 June 2011 —®¥——F5xA=+H 14,714 39,332 54,046
Representing: K% :
Cost RAE 14,714 37,332 52,046
At directors’ valuation BEER-NEtZEEEN
in 1972 L& — 2,000 2,000
At 30 June 2011 —F——&FRA=+H 14,714 39,332 54,046
Accumulated amortisation: ZEsti# :
At 1 July 2010 —E-ZFtH—H — 38,888 38,888
Charge for the year IREFE — 111 111
_At30June20tt —®--%AA=tE - ssee 38,900
Impairment: WiE :
_At30June20tt —®——%7AS+E 12889 -. . 12,539
Net book value: BRERE :
At 30 June 2011 —F——&FRA=+H 2,175 333 2,508
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BZ20114#6H30HILFE
19. Intangible Assets (ontinueq 19. BILEE =
Group
XEEH
Goodwill Trademarks Total
meE i1 &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT
Cost or valuation: R ES G -
At 1 July 2009 —EENFtA—H 14,714 38,809 53,523
Exchange difference BN — 5 5
Additions R - 497 497
At 30 June 2010 —E-FFXA=+H 14,714 39,311 54,025
Representing: &K :
Cost BAME 14,714 37,311 52,025
138 At directors’ valuation EEN—-NLt=FFEH
in 1972 1B - 2,000 2,000
At 30 June 2010 —E-TEXA=1+AH 14,714 39,311 54,025
Accumulated ZatiEiss -
amortisation:
At 1 July 2009 —EFTAFLA—H — 38,809 38,809
Charge for the year RE — 79 79
_At30June2010 =%-%¥FxA=tH - 38888 38,888
Impairment: WiE :
_At30June2010 =—¥-¥FKXA=+H 12530 — . 12,539
Net book value: BRTFE :
At 30 June 2010 —E-FFXA=+H 2,175 423 2,598
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EE2011F6 30 HILFE

19.

20.

Intangible Assets (continued)

Impairment test for cash-generating units
containing goodwill

The carrying amount of goodwill is allocated to edible oil
operations. The recoverable amount of the respective
cash—generating unit (CGU) is determined based on
a value in use calculation. This calculation uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management. The key assumptions for the value in
use calculation are those relating to the discount rate,
forecast growth rates and the expected changes to selling
prices and direct costs during the period. The discount
rate used for the value in use calculation is based on the
prevailing bank’s borrowing rate offered by major financial
institutions which reflects the current market assessment
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
CGU. The growth rates are based on industry growth
forecasts. Changes in selling prices and direct costs
are based on past practices and expectations of future
changes in the market.

Interest in Subsidiaries

190. B EE«»

BEMEBZHSELEMZBER
&l

BEZRESEIMERMDE - HE
BEELENNTERESHEIREEN
BESE ZEEEAZRESREENR
REEREEBHENYHAETE - 5
EEREENNIERKRA/ATER B
RE -HAEBHREERANERE
o stEEAEENTRERERRER
EREBRMAZBRTERNREEMZ
MEREURRTE B ERKEER
kZzREEEEM 2 BERMZBRITH
fl o MRERERNEREATE - EE
REERANNECRRBEENRAS
MISARRBLMEE -

20. Mt B A B ER

Company
¥ /NS

2011 2010
—T——5 —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
B Fr BT T
Unlisted shares, at cost I LRI RAE 1,458,242 1,457,016
Impairment loss HEEE (203,220) (203,220)
Investment in subsidiaries MBARKRE 1,255,022 1,253,796
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEURE B A R FRIE 1,355,819 1,245,233
2,610,841 2,499,029
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAS I B 2~ B FE (1,565,483) (1,550,809)
1,045,358 948,220

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are interest-free,
unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment.

Details of the subsidiaries are listed on pages 165 to 167.

Y EAMBLABRBLHARE - &
ERRRBREERERK °

EMBRARNERFEIINEISEESR
167H °
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For the year ended 30 June 2011
BiF20116 530 H1LFE

21. Interests in Associates

21. BiE AT

Share of net assets EEFEE

Company
EAT
2011 2010

—F——F —E-ZF

HK$’000 HK$'000
BETFT VBT T

The associates were liquidated during the year ended 30
June 2011.

Details of the associates were as follows:

ZEBERTACRBEZZT——F XA
=tHFEERBRE -

BEQTNERFINT

Place of
incorporation and Percentage of
Name of company Operation equity holding Principal activities
AT &8 = EE BRiERAEESE EEEH
Group Company
AEH AATF
Omeron Profits Limited*  British Virgin Islands 50 — liquidated
KBERRES (R ::3
Tepac Profits Limited* British Virgin Islands 50 — liguidated
REBERRES [EhF-

* Companies not audited by PKF

Financial position

ZERNBFAREREBR(FB)ST
2 T2

AR5

2011 2010

—EB——% —E-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Total assets HMEE = —
Total liabilities FES =R = —
Net assets FEE — -

Net assets attributable to the Group BEBRAREEZ FEE

Results

During the year, there was no (2010: no) turnover nor
profit or loss attributable to the Group.

3
RAFER ZEZLALE(ZE-F

F R HESEEREENHER
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EE2011F6 30 HILFE

22. Interest in a Jointly Controlled
Entity

Group
%@

2011
—F——%
HK$’000
BETT

22, HEEFHERER

Company
FA7

2010 2011 2010
—E-TF Bl gl —T-FF
HK$'000 BRLLEXNIE  HK$'000

BETT Bciked

EETT

Share of net assets BiEFEE 52,097 54,333 = —
Amount due from a jointly FEUR 2t [E 16 E B8

controlled entity EE] 10,241 8,659 3,000 1,000
The amount due from the jointly controlled entity is ZERHLRZERERERERSE - EIKA

interest-free, unsecured and repayable on demand.

Details of the jointly controlled entity are as follows:

Percentage of

REZERAEEE -

HEZEFEENENFIWT

Place of equity holding
incorporation/ indirectly
Name of company operation BIERXHEIEHE  Principal activities
AT &8 AR ey BNE XEEH
Evergreen Oils & Fats Cayman Islands/ 50 Blending and distribution of edible oils,
Limited* (“Evergreen”) Hong Kong vegetable fats, and shortenings
RERMBBERAFR HMERE & BRERDHEEM - EYEHRAZH
* Company not audited by PKF * ZEATRFBAAERER(EB) ST

A= AT ER
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EFE2011F6 30 HILFE

22. Interest in a Jointly Controlled 22, HEEFHIERHELS -

Entlty (continued)
Summarised financial information in respect of the BEERNAERB 2 HLBE4ER 2 BEE
Group’s jointly controlled entity is set out below: BFEZHAT :
Financial position BAFSAR R
2011 2010
—FT——=% —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEFor JBEEF T
Non-current assets FRBEE 14,953 15,776
Current assets REEE 256,943 236,083
Total assets BEE 271,896 251,859
149 Current liabilities REEE (167,702) (141,762)
Non-current liabilities FERBAR = (1,431)
Total liabilities FES=Ri (167,702) (143,193)
Net assets FEE 104,194 108,666
Net assets attributable to the Group BBEBRAEBZFEE 52,097 54,333
Results E 3
2011 2010
—'——= —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT IT BT T
Turnover B 709,948 686,422
(Loss)/profit for the year KEE(BR),EH (4,472) 4,040
(Loss)/profit for the year BERAEBZAREE
attributable to the Group (E518), %R (2,236) 2,020
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EE2011F6 30 HILFE

22. Interest in a Jointly Controlled

Entlty (continued)

Results (continued)

22,

On 25 February 2009, the Group entered into a
Supplemental Agreement with Hop Hing Group. Pursuant

to the Supplemental Agreement, the edible oil joint venture

company, Evergreen, will continue until 31 December
2023 unless terminated on 31 December 2013 or 31
December 2018 by either party giving notice in writing of

not less than twelve months but not more than twenty-

four months prior to the date of termination.

23. Available-for-sale Financial
Assets

HEEHEEER e

Riga)

R-ZBZAFE_A-+HAB  FEEHE
EHEEFAANE RBZERH
B RAAAREZEHER REREE
RARNEEHEEEZ T _=

TZA=+—H  BREFEAM—FREKL
BHAZETRTPRTEAERZR
“tTHEANEEBMA R—ZT—=F
+TZA=Et+-HR=ZE-NE+=A

=+—H&KILEE -

23. Ot ENMBEE
Group Company
%0 e

2011
—F—F
HK$°000
BETT

2010 2011 2010
—g-v5 RN —g-g5
HK$’'000 HK$°000 HK$’000
s WETEZ M EmT

Listed equity securities, at _EHiE%
market value miE
— in Hong Kong — BB 14 15 14 15
— outside Hong Kong — /o - 29 - 29
14 44 14 44
Unlisted equity securities, FEETHsE%
at cost A 24,262 24,262 24,262 24,262
Impairment loss BIERS1E (24,262) (24,262) (24,262) (24,262)
Club debentures, at cost EREHRA 787 787 = —
Impairment loss R{EEE (280) (280) = -
L ...o.807 507 - — T
521 551 14 44
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EFE2011F6 30 HILFE

24. Inventories 24. B8
(@) Inventories in consolidated statement of (@) MNEEUMBRARZEES
financial position comprise: 5

Group
FEE
2011 2010
—E——% —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Raw materials R 638,475 191,756
Work in progress ¥ B G 25,282 18,664
Finished goods B M 136,918 92,254
Inventories in transit EEER 7,802 —
Packing materials aE=3 12,439 9,013
Spare parts B 362 615
144
821,278 312,302
(b) The analysis of amount of inventories (b) HRAIZIHZHEEE£BESN

recognised as an expense is as follows: mF :
2011 2010
—F——% —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$’000
EEFr BT T
Carrying amount of inventories sold &HEFE 2 REE 2,058,866 1,745,652
Write-down of inventories EFERE 7,752 253
2,066,618 1,745,905
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BiFE2011 630 H1LFE
25. Debtors, Deposits and 25. FEWARTR » IR RFEM
Prepayments =
All of the debtors, deposits and prepayments are expected FEEWED 24 RAEMZYEME
to be recovered within one year. —ERKE o
Group Company
FEEH AAT
2011 2010 2011 2010
SR gkl —T——F kgl
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
EBETFTT BT T EETFTT BEFT
Total trade debtors EWE SRR EEE 163,014 130,800 - —
Less: Allowance for doubtful — jaf - REZHEfE
debts (note 25 (b)) (BtaE250)) (464) (1,884) - —

162,550 128,916 - -

Other debtors, deposits and HMEWERR - &K

prepayments FEIRR 158,016 58,214 620 850
Current portion of leasehold HELH — FEMID
land (note 18) (Ktat 18) 2,595 2,461 - -
323,161 189,591 620 850
(a) Aging Analysis (a) BREASHT
The aging of trade debtors (net of allowance for FEWE 2RI (NBRRERER)
doubtful debts) as of the end of the reporting AHIK ZBRES DA T ¢

period is as follows:

Group Company
FKE AAT

2011 2010 2011 2010
-5 XTI -3 ELET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
#err WETEI M ez W3-

0 - 3 months ZZ={@AA 157,466 128,147 - —
4 — 6 months ZE7<1E8 A 3,230 769 - —
Over 6 months ~EB U E 1,854 — - —
Total trade debtors FEWE 5 RMEEE 162,550 128,916 - —
The Group’s credit policy is set out in note 5(a). REBZEEBERIHNKIEES @) ©
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For the year ended 30 June 2011
EFE2011F6 30 HILFE

25. Debtors, Deposits and

25. FEWLARSR - & R TR

Prepayments (continued) X

(b) Impairment of trade debtors (b) FEWEIRMZBEESE
Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are ERESZERRVBEESE  —R
recorded using an allowance account unless the SEBRBREFTS - WAE
Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount ERABESEITRENEED
is remote, in which case the impairment loss is EOERERT > HEREERE
written off against trade debtors directly (see note SEHEDRERE ZER(RMH
2(p) (). FZ2(p)() °
The movements in the allowance for doubtful AEGFEFERZRBEIBARD
debts during the year, including both specific and DR BREBSHMT -

collective loss components, are as follows:

Group Company
F%H F45

2011 2010 2011 2010
Lo T -FE el e CE-TE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BHEFIT BT T EEFr BT T

At beginning of year F4 (1,884) (1,902) - —
Impairment loss R

recognised RIEEE - (297) - —
Reversal of impairment RiE

loss RIEEE 943 45 - -
Uncollectible amounts i &8

written off L 504 295 - -
Exchange adjustments (R (27) (25) - —
At end of year FR (464) (1,884) = —
At 30 June 2011, specific allowance for RZZE——FXA=1+H %BTE
doubtful debt amounted to HK$464,000 (2010: FRERBE ST A B 464,000
HK$1,884,000). T(ZZ—ZFF : B% 1,884,000

JT) °
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BiFE2011 630 H1LFE

25. Debtors, Deposits and
Prepayments (ontinued)

(c) Trade debtors that are not impaired
The aging analysis of trade debtors that are neither

individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired are as follows:

25. FEWLARSR - & R TR

X&)

(c) RAFREBGEZEKES
AR

T EER N EREBHEIRBE
HEEBNERE SRR AR

DT :
Group Company
G £48]

2011 2010 2011 2010
g%
HK$°000
BEFT

—g——5 (RIS
HK$’000 HK$'000
ey BTS2

2%
HK$’000
BT

Neither past due nor *?“/H‘H&;Fﬂz;ﬁmﬁ

impaired Rl 158,861 125,481 - —
Past due for less than Zﬂiﬂ&‘ﬁﬁ‘

3 months =f@A 2,643 3,435 - —
Past due for more than BRMZR=MEA

3 months but less than BORT=1EA

12 months 1,046 — - —

162,550 128,916 - —

Trade debtors that were neither past due nor
impaired relate to a wide range of customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Trade debtors that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers that
have a good track record with the Group. Based
on past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

R BB R AL (B 4 2 PR
% BT EE KT E
MBS o

1B 8B A 1E R B 25 8 2 BB W AR
B BRZEEAKEERFE
RRBENEF - HUEEER - A
REFEERWES RPN E
EEEREEFTIELRAET
2B TRR/RBEAXNEATER
e - REBRAEBRUEER
FEEMEAM -
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For the year ended 30 June 2011
BiF20116 530 H1LFE

26. Cash and Cash Equivalents

26. IR RIS ZEEE

Group Company
A%E #47

2011 2010 2011 2010
—F——%
HK$°000
ERTFT

—F——%
HK$°000
BT

—E-%F
HK$’000
BT

—E-EF
HK$’000
BT T

Cash on hand and at banks  BE&RIBITHER 128,703 356,105 6,815 16,923
Time deposits TEHEFEX 41,876 212,684 - 134,080
170,579 568,789 6,815 151,003

Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June 2011 which are
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of the Group entities are mainly denominated
in USD.

Cash at banks carries interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposits rates. Time deposits are matured
within three months and earn interest at the respective
short term deposit rates.

27. Bank Loans

Effective

interest rate

HERAE

BRI
loans RITER

Unsecured bank
0.95% — 0.96%

228,000

RZZ2——FXA=+H  ¥FAEEMRE
EFBNIREEE/REANREREE
ERFTERUETREMN -

RITEFIRBESARTERNRAE
ZEBANERNAE - EMERDIR=
BRAEE WiZEEZEPERAE
BRERAIE. o

27. IRITER

Group Company
A%HE #48]

2011 2010 2011 2010
g%
HK$°000
BBFT

—z-%
HK$'000
AT

—z-25
HK$’000
BBFT

—F——F
HK$’000

BT

65,459 - 2,500

The borrowings are repayable on demand or within one
year.

The Group’s bank loans are denominated in HK$ and
RMB.

The Group’s bank loans carry variable rate of interest of
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (HIBOR) plus 0.75%
(2010: HIBOR plus 0.43% to RMB basic rate plus 0.5%)
per annum.

ERERERA—FAME -

FREAEEZRITEREUNBERAR
WRE -

FEBZRTERDIBANRER
NFEBRITRFEFEMEFRZEO0.75%
(ZZ-ZF  FRRBRTRARFKEMEF
ME0.43% ZFEARRITARBER
RZEMO0.5%)5HE °
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For the year ended 30 June 2011
EE2011F6 30 HILFE

28. Creditors, Deposits Received

29.

and Accruals

The aging analysis of trade creditors is as follows:

28. FE{TERE: - EWIRER

FENESRIREDMAOT

Group Company
*5E AT

2011 2010 2011 2010
ST——F RN - —F Bkl td
CLEN  HK$'000 WELENIN  HK$'000
zwrr Wit x7r Biiic

0 - 3 months EE={EA 232,909 195,289 = -
4 — 6 months mZ 7~ E8H 2,785 833 - -
Over 6 months ~EB M E - 1,375 = —
Total trade creditors ERE SRR 235,694 197,497 = —

Other creditors, deposits HMEMAERR » B
received and accruals BEREFTEA 110,042 127,198 12,750 15,054
345,736 324,695 12,750 15,054

Creditors, deposits received and accruals which are
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of the group entities are mainly denominated in

USD.

Derivative Financial
Instruments

FAEEERIENNEEEREMN
BNEN  EREREREFEATER
LARTTREA

29. fTHEEMT A

Group Company
FEE AT

2011 2010 2011 2010
g EEILL —= = ELILL:
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000

BETT ke BETT Bk

Commodity future contracts ~ HAE

2,311 — = —

2,311 — = —
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For the year ended 30 June 2011
EFE2011F6 30 HILFE

29. Derivative Financial
Instruments (continued)

The Group has entered into various commodity future
contracts to manage its price exposures in future
purchases or sales of soybean oil and wheat. Net loss on
derivative financial instruments of HK$3,383,000 (2010:
nil) was charged to the profit or loss during the year
ended 30 June 2011.

30. Other Current Liabilities

29, TSR TR »

AEBEITYZEERBESR  UE
BREEEZ AN/ NERFEHNE
BRK AEETESBIAENFEESE
3,383,000 T (2010F : &) > ER
—E-—FRA=ZTHWEBRBNER -

30. HitRBEHE

Group Company
FEEH AT

2011 2010 2011 2010

T bl —T——F mklgelid
HK$°000 HK$'000 BELEH0) HK$'000

BETT ke BETT ke

Employee benefit obligations {EEEF AR 12 6,144 = -

Obligations under finance REHEMN
leases aE 270 244 = —
282 6,388 = —

The employee benefit obligations represent provision of
unclaimed annual leaves.

31. Other Non-current Liabilities

BERMNEER/GTRFRES -

31. HihERENAE

Group Company
FEEH AT

2011 2010 2011 2010

= PN -z S SR —z-gr
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000

EETT Bk EETr ke

Obligations under finance REREMN
leases payable =K
— After one year but — —F#ZE
within two years MEREE 241 232 - —
— After two years but — MERZE
within five years TFERER 180 395 - -
421 627 - —
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32. Share Capital

(a)

(b)

32. Ig&

Authorised and issued share capital (a) FEERBITERE
Number of
shares Nominal value
Eirg=E B EE
‘000 HK$’000
T BT T
Authorised: EERA
At 30 June 2010 and at R-ZB-FFRA=THRK
30 June 2011, ordinary —E-—FXA=+8H"
shares of HK$1 each BREBRBE 1T 300,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: BRITREBHERE :
At 30 June 2010 and at RIE-ZEFXA=+HRK
30 June 2011, ordinary —E—-—FXA=Z+8H"
shares of HK$1 each BREBRB®E 1T 243,354 243,354
As at 30 June 2011, there were 1,393,000 (2010: RZEBE——FXA=1+H K&
1,393,000) ordinary shares acquired and held by BT A 1,393,000 REER (=
the Group to reserve for the purpose of satisfying ZT—FF :1,393,0008) © Wim
the exercise of share options granted under the ERETFEEREEZRORE
Group’s share option scheme. 2T FRRERBTEZ
i o
Capital management (b) BEXEE

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products
and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable
cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

AEEEREANERARR
RIEEEENFTESE  tmi
BARREHRERR D E R
TEEAE R 5 DA B K F AR
BAEMRRBEE  URER
REERTESRE -

rEEEBRERHERERRE
M kEE  ULERsRERE
BERT TREFE2RSEEK
FHRHEFNERNRRTRNES
RREzEREFE  LEEE
BRENSCHERERBELR
o
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For the year ended 30 June 2011
EFE2011F6 30 HILFE

32. Share Capltal (continued)

(b) Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors its capital structure by
reviewing its equity-debt ratio and cashflow
requirements, taking into account of its future
financial obligations and commitments. For this
purpose, the Group defines equity-debt ratio as the
ratio of the equity attributable to shareholders of

32. &&=
b) BEEEE)

AEBUEAEBLE - RER
ERREZRSRNTBEEBERE
BFEHEREREARE - ER
b AEEKEFEBLRRE
RERTARREEEZEFERS
Mttx - FEERELAEREE

the Company to net debt. Net debt comprises total HENEHES
borrowing less cash and short term funds.

The equity-debt ratios at 30 June 2011 and 2010

are as follows:

RZFB-——R-Z-ZFXA

ZtHEZEXREBLRUT:
Group Company
G F48]

2011 2010 2011 2010
el TR -FE el D T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BHEFIT BT T EEFr BT T

Bank loans repayable —FREE
within 1 year HERITE R 228,000 65,459 - 2,500
Less: Cash and cash B BRER
equivalents REEHE (170,579)  (568,789) (6,815)  (151,003)
Net debt/(liquid funds) FE(REBESR) 57,421 (503,330) (6,815)  (148,503)
Equity attributable ¥ NN
to shareholders IR RAEM
of the Company prg 1,474,144 1,388,236 1,044,090 1,084,451
Equity-debt ratio ERAEE 96:4 100:0 100:0 100:0
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33. Equity Settled Share-Based

Transactions

The Company’s share option scheme (“Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted by the shareholders on 23 May
2003 and amended and approved by the shareholders
at the extraordinary general meeting on 18 April 2006
(“Date of Approval”). The amendments to the rules of the
Share Option Scheme on the Date of Approval by the
shareholders was to, among others, allow grant of options
over newly issued shares and/or transfer of existing
shares by the Trust of the Company and to align the rules
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to motivate
the employees and directors of the Group and the
employees of associated companies (“Eligible Employee”)
and to allow them to participate in the growth of the
Company.

The total number of shares which may be issued and/
or transferred by the Trust upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company at the Date of Approval of the Share
Option Scheme. The maximum entitlement for any Eligible
Employee in respect of the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of options granted and to
be granted in any 12 months period does not exceed 1%
of the shares in issue.

The option price per share upon exercise of any share
option will be determined by the directors upon the grant
of share option. It will not be less than the greatest of (a)
the average closing price of a share as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the day of offer
of such a share option; (b) the closing price of a share as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on
the day of offer of such a share option, which must be a
business day; and (c) the nominal value of a share.

33. %H&ﬁ%E%%EZK

)

RO ZBRESTE(TBRESE DR
—EE=-FERA-+=HRERFMER
R-ZEERFONA+NB(HUEBRHE D
MRS RS EEREAEBST - B
HEBHE  MBRESTERAZZEE
SIEERRHE  (HPEE) SR
ESRAEAABHBITROR,HEBH
EREZERERMZBRE  URRE
FHRAIE 17 ZERAMELISET o

ZBRETISENBEEN ZEEM
EFURBENAZ2RBRE(EERKE
8] ERETSREAQFZERE -

REBRESAETETTREZAES
PRFER - WETR, RBEBHRETER
ZROBE  EHFEEHBRE
BMERMALNTAEBITROBLHE 2
10% ° PMEM+ =@ A BEEFMEER
BEERTHEERERS FRE ZBRE
ZEBITRETRTROZAE &
TRBBCRITRBZ1% -

RITEEFABRE  SERRODBEH
EZERRERBET  BEETIR
(LBEEERE) o BRERBZBREZ
AR EEXABIMzE ARERR
BR28REBOFHEIETE S b)KHZ
BREER(LAREXRRBX2E
BHRERFABERZERROWTERC)
BREE -
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For the year ended 30 June 2011
BiF20116 530 H1LFE

33. Equity Settled Share-Based

Transactions (continuea)

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on
acceptance of the shares option within 21 days inclusive
of, and from the date of making such offer.

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period
of 10 years commencing on 23 May 2003.

During the year, 19,000,000 options were granted to the
Group Managing Director and certain eligible employees
of the Group pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.
850,000 options granted to employees were lapsed during
the year. Accordingly, the number of outstanding options
was 18,150,000 as at 30 June 2011.

The Board of Remuneration Committee of the Company
shall determine at its discretion, the extent of achievement
of the performance targets and contribution criteria set
out for that period, and decide on the vesting of the
Options and the number of Shares comprised in the
vested Options.

33. LIRITARREEFZX

(#4&)

HEHABEF =+ —AR  EARG
BREAXNRERE 1T -

BREFEEXH+E BIEE=
BERA=-t+=H#EM -

FR - RIBBEREST SR L 19,000,000
BEFEEALEREMES  EHiR
FEE 850,000 BRELE LM Fit
R-ZB——FXA=1H  MATE=
AR EEE A 18,150,000 ©

ExEVNZEERERZMBARE
RzRERRBEERER  REBRE
ZEBRERBEBREEBS 2RO
H o
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EE2011F6 30 HILFE

33. Equity Settled Share-Based
Transactions (continueq)

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants

are as follows:

33. LK AEREHR 23

(%)

(a) REZERFEGDT -

Number of Contractual life
instruments Vesting conditions of options
BREHE EBER RBRIES L
Options granted to a director:
BREET-SES
— 26 August 2010 2,430,000 (i) 40% — Within 6 months 3.85 years
— RZE-FENA=+XH from vesting date on 3.85%F
30 June 2014
() EZZE-—WmFEAB=1+H
WEBABAEAR
(i) 40% — Within 6 months 4.85 years
after 1 year from 4.85%F
vesting date on
30 June 2014
(i) EZE—WmFEAA=1H
MERE B & —FERE
AR
(i) 20% — Within 6 months 5.85 years
after 2 years from 5.85%F
vesting date on
30 June 2014
(i) E=E—MEAA
=+HMNEER®
—FEXEARN
— 16 November 2010 3,170,000 (i) 40% — Within 6 months 3.62 years
- RZIE—ZEF+—A+X<H from vesting date on 3.62%
30 June 2014
() E=Z—WEASA=1+H
WEBAEAEAR
(i) 40% — Within 6 months 4.62 years
after 1 year from 4.62F
vesting date on
30 June 2014
(i) E=F—MFERA
=+HMNEBR%E
—FRAEAR
(i) 20% — Within 6 months 5.62 years
after 2 years from 5.62F

(i)

vesting date on

30 June 2014
E-E-MFEARA=+H

NEBRE-FE

~MEA R
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BiZ 201146530 HILFE
33. Equity Settled Share-Based 33. LRI BEBEE 23
Transactions (ontinveq) 2 (&)
(@) The terms and conditions of the grants (a) BHZERFESFDT :
are as follows:
Number of Contractual life
instruments Vesting conditions of options
MR tEs e mEER fERE &4
Options granted to employees:
BRERTETL :
— 26 August 2010 18,400,000 () 40% — Within 6 months 3.85 years
- RZZE-—ZFFNA=+7H from vesting date on 3.85%
30 June 2014
() E=E—MNFEXA=T1H
HEBRAEREAR
(i) 40% — Within 6 months 4.85 years
after 1 year from 4.85%F
vesting date on
30 June 2014
(i) E=ZF—MFXRA=+H
156 MEBRE-—FiE
ANMEAR
(i) 20% — Within 6 months 5.85 years
after 2 years from 5.85%F
vesting date on
30 June 2014
(i) E=ZF—MFRA=+H
NWEBHE-FE
ANMEAR
Total share options granted 19,000,000
R BRERTRAH
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EE2011F6 30 HILFE

33. Equity Settled Share-Based
Transactions (continueq)

(b)

(c)

The number and weighted average
exercise prices of share options are as
follows:

33. UIRM BEREF 2R

2011
2%

Weighted

Outstanding at the beginning of RE 1 K KT

average
exercise
price
Moty
TERE
HKS$
EH

(b)

(#)

Bz ER R HERI B B RN HE
BITHEENT :

2010
—2-%F

Weighted

average
Number of exercise Number of
options price options
R FEF B
BB 7@ # A
’000 HK$ '000
¥ B F

the year - - - -
Granted during the year REARH 6.86 19,000 - -
Lapsed during the year RER KK 6.86 (850) - -
Outstanding at the end RELR i

of the year AT 6.86 18,150 - -
Exercisable at the end NELBTTE

of the year - - - -

The options outstanding at 30 June 2011 had
an exercise price of HK$6.86 (2010: nil) and a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 3.8
years (2010: nil).

Fair value of share options and
assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for
share options granted is measured by reference
to the fair value of share options granted. The
estimate of the fair value of the share options
granted is measured based on Black-Scholes
model. The contractual life of the share option is
used as an input into this model.

(c)

REZB-——FXAZ=Z+THERT
EHBERETEERBHGCS6
(ZZ2—FF ) RINEFIEH
BRENBMAZMNF(ZZ2-F%
FE) -

Rz 3 B R HERY 2 At (B F0 R

BEBRRTHBREERAREN
REERSEZMRTHEND
BEE  EREROBERE
AENEFRREMENR -
FE IR - HBRENSH
HIRAEZELNRAZE -

OS5 D
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For the year ended 30 June 2011
EFE2011F6 30 HILFE

33. Equity Settled Share-Based
Transactions (continueq)

(c)

Fair value of share options and
assumptions (continued)

Fair value of share options and assumptions:

33. LIRITARREEFZX

(#4&)

(c) KRHBIRENQRENRR

(&)

RUBRED DERBRR :

2011 2010
—g——% —z-2%

Fair value at measurement date RFEHABZAAE

Share price &

Exercise price TEE

Expected volatility FTEHRR iR

Option life BE ¥ 4F B

Expected dividend yield FEHEIR B %

Risk free rate (based on EERE(RE
Exchange Fund Note) HNEESEE)

The expected volatility is based on the historic
volatility (calculated based on the weighted average
remaining life of the share options), adjusted for
any expected changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information. Expected dividends
are based on historical dividends. Changes in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect
the fair value estimate.

HK$0.711 - —
0.809
¥ 0.711 -
0.809
HK$ ~#&%6.7 —
HK$ ~#%:6.86 —
19.16% -
3.62 - -
5.85 years
3.62 -
5.854F
2.4% -

0.76% —

FEHRIE TR BB KR MEE (FTENRER
10 B8 IR A B9 DN AE SS9 RIBRER) - FERAAR KR AY
SEFERBEAMREHNEN - AHSRKRETS
REBEREMEE - EX@WARBRRAH
DAEMBTERNEATE -
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For the year ended 30 June 2011
EE2011F6 30 HILFE

34. Reserves

34. #iE

(@ Company (a) &EAT
Investment Share
Share  revaluation option General Revenue
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
Rtk REEAHE  RRERE —fhikfE Wi %
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETR BETR BETR BETR Vil b
At 1 July 2009 ZEZNELA-H 429,423 79 - 50,000 397,704 877,206
Change in fair value ~ TfiHENTEEEZ
of available-for-sale  AfEEZE
financial assets - 130 - - - 130
Transfer to profit or HETHEER
loss on disposal of BHEEM
available-for-sale E)\ER
financial assets - (192) - - - (192)
Profit for the year REERR - - - - 456 456
2008/09 final H=22N/BhE
dividend paid FERE - - - - (21,902) (21,902)
Current year interim AREEPERE
dividend paid - - - - (14,601) (14,601)
At 30 June 2010 = e 429,423 17 — 50000 361657 841,007
At 1 July 2010 ZE-EFtA-H 429,423 17 - 50,000 361,657 841,097
Change in fair value  TfiHENNKEEL
of available-for-sale  AAEEZH
financial assets - 1 - - - 1
Equity settled share-  LRABEREE, %5
based transactions - - 2,685 - - 2,685
Released on lapsed BREXNMER
of share option — — (117) — 117 -
Loss for the year REEFE - - - - (4,111) (4,111)
2009/10 final f1-%%)/-%%
dividend paid AERE - - - - (24,335)  (24,335)
Current year interim NREERHRE
dividend paid - - - - (14,601) (14,601)
At 30 June 2011 —§-—-£RA=+H 429,423 18 2,568 50,000 318,727 800,736

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited

Annual Report 2011 | —E2——5 5% mMIE(FE)EBRAF

159



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bf¥3R RMisE

160

For the year ended 30 June 2011
BiE20114¥6 530 HILFEZE

34. Reserves (continued)

(b)

Nature and purpose of reserves:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium

The application of the share premium
account is governed by Sections 48B of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Surplus reserves

Surplus reserves include statutory surplus
reserve and statutory public welfare fund.

In accordance with Accounting Regulations
for Business Enterprises, foreign investment
enterprises in Mainland China are required
to transfer at least 10% of their profit after
taxation, as determined under accounting
principles generally accepted in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC GAAP”) to the
statutory surplus reserve until the balance
of the reserve is equal to 50% of their

registered capital.

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve
comprises the cumulative net change in the
fair value of the available-for-sale financial
assets held at the end of the reporting
period and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies in note 2(1).

ESOP reserve

The ESOP reserve represents the purchase
consideration for issued shares of the
Company acquired for the purpose of
satisfying the exercise of share options
granted under the Company’s Share Option
Scheme. The application of the ESOP
reserve is governed by Section 49H of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

34. {#E =

(b)

REzHERRAR -

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

R aEE

BROBRERZEANZEE
B BME G ) 55 48B IR FT

B

BERER

BRHEREEIERRKD
BEREERHES -

REB(EESTHHE) &
FEAREMNIIERERE
HAER(PEARKNE
B ERB R DK 10%
KRB ERNBALER
BTG BERRMHENE
R E R E AR 50%
AlE o

REEMLHE

RESHBHECENEE
AiISEN 4 EEN T K
BEEZAAEBEEENR
FHOFEE 0 AR VBB EE2()
Bzt BRMERE -

ETI/BRETERE

ETRRELRFHHEERE
ARMERERET > T{T
ERm IR RAE R AES =
BAXQACBTROZ
BERE - ZRBEZEA
2582 FRPI DS 49H

1RFTEEE -
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For the year ended 30 June 2011
BiE20114¥6 530 HILFE

34. Reserves (continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves:
(continued)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Share option reserve

Share option reserve comprises the
fair value of equity settled share based
transactions and is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies in note 2(s)(ii).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies
set out in note 2(d).

General reserve

The general reserve has been set up by
transfer of revenue reserve in pervious years
according to resolutions of the Board of
directors.

Revenue reserve

The distributable
Company at 30 June 2011 amounted to
HK$318,727,000 (2010: HK$361,657,000).
After the end of the reporting period,

reserve of the

the directors proposed a final dividend
of HK$0.10 per ordinary share (2010:
HK$0.10 per ordinary share), amounting to
HK$24,335,000 (2010: HK$24,335,000).
The dividend has not been recognised as a
liability at the end of the reporting period.

34. {#E =

(b)

HiBzHERRAR :
(v) ERERGE
BREKZBEERTFET

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

ZEREAEE &
BARB I EE2(s)() Pr#L 2
SETBORTEHE

B

ERREEEETESN
EBHMBHREMELEZ
ERERE - ZREBREM
H2d) Bz g BEM
BRI o

—RE

—RFEFRRHESSHNUA
FERBZNRSFER
A o

W 72 1

KATBR=-E——F XA
=StHEzKhERERAEBY
318,727,000t(= & —
T F: % ¥361,657,000
) REIR®B EEE
BRZEZRABREAER
ETERBEOIOT(ZE
—ZF SREBRE
¥010m) BeEAE
#524,335,000 0 (= & —
Z F . B #24,335,000
JC) o R BRI R A HA R
BRAEEE -
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For the year ended 30 June 2011
EFE2011F6 30 HILFE

35. Capital Commitments

(a) The Group had the following commitments not
provided for in the financial statements at the end
of the reporting period:

35.

Authorised capital expenditure ~ B#tEI BTN 2 ER

RiEIEH

(@  AKEREREUTEEERE K
RARFEBA FEER R

Group

3
2011 2010
—E——% —E-TfF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BETT

and contracted for B 42,804 19,552
Authorised capital expenditure ~ BHL/EERFTH 2 ER
but not contracted for a3 150,397 5,307

(b) At 30 June 2011, the Group has several
non-cancelable purchase orders for certain
materials with its suppliers with an amount of
HK$327,161,000 (2010: HK$328,280,000).

36. Contingent Liabilities

The Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department (the “IRD”)
has initiated a tax audit on certain group companies
and the Group had paid a total of HK$7,908,000 to the
IRD under the protective assessments against certain
subsidiaries for the year of assessments 2002/03,
2003/04 and 2004/05 pending the outcome of the tax
audit.

After taking professional advice from its tax adviser,
the Group has submitted a settlement proposal for
the consideration by the IRD in February 2010. In
January 2011, the IRD also issued additional protective
assessments to certain group companies in respect of the
year of assessment 2004/05. The Group has objected to
these protective assessments.

by R-ZE——FX<A=+H XK
SEEMER LE RS ITHR
HWERBIIE 2EAEY
327,161,000 L (ZE—F : B
328,280,000 7T) °

ARG

ERARERIBERNEAKEEETA
FETHEEES - A BEERERU
Bl AEER-—TT= B=F .-
= /ENER-_ZTN " THEZF
REENREETFEORBHRMS T B
7,908,000 Tt °

HREZEVBERANEXSREK  A5H
E-R-ZEHE_REXT—EANBLTE
HBREE - E-ZE——H—8 ¥
BTN ZAFHNRBFE  HAE
SEET A BB HBEIMREEITMG - K
SECHERREMFAEABEREER
o
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For the year ended 30 June 2011
EE2011F6 30 HILFE

37. Related Party Transactions 37. BRAEANLIHRS

The Group had the following material transactions with its
related parties during the year:

Related party Nature of transactions Notes
ARAEAL X5ME Bt
Jointly controlled entity Purchases of small package oil
HEZEFERE BENEERM (i)

Sales of aroma oil

B HEE (i)

Bottling and refinery income
for small package oil

MMEERMEERBREA (i)

Management fee income

EEBWA (i)

Royalties received for the use
of trademarks

BEERAMREERA (iv)
Sales of cleaning products
BERREE (v)
GOMC/GGMC Management fee expenses
EEEL N (vi)
Hong Leong Insurance Insurance fee expenses
(Asia) Ltd.
LERRGEONAERRXE REEXH (vii)

FEERAKERUTEEZENEREAL
M5 :

2011 2010
—E——f —z-zE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BEFT

2,872 6,684
24,943 28,795
55,743 40,414
2,000 2,000
12,417 11,919

40 1,914
3,999 4,890

781 747

Other related party transactions are also disclosed in
Notes 11 and 22.

Notes:

(i) Purchases of small package oil from a jointly controlled
entity were at cost plus a percentage of profit mark-up.

(i) Sales of aroma oil to a jointly controlled entity were made
with reference to the market price.

(iii) Bottling and refinery income for small package oil and
management fee income from a jointly controlled entity
were determined by reference to the cost and the amount
of services performed by the Group.

a1 R M B E A BEA L
SEER

wizz -

() WENEEAHEUEANREE 6
EEEET o

(ii BHORHEES —HEZGERZRR
MISERET ©

(iii) NEERBERREREAREESE
WA AR R AR A EE AT
REMEE -
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For the year ended 30 June 2011
BiE20114¥6 530 HILFEZE

37. Related Party Transactions

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

Under the trademark license agreement, the royalties
received from a jointly controlled entity for the use of the
trademarks are calculated based on a percentage, as
may be agreed between the parties from time to time, of
the gross sales value of licensed products sold by jointly
controlled entity within Hong Kong and Macau.

Sales of cleaning products to a jointly controlled entity
were made with reference to the market price.

A master service agreement (the “Master Services
Agreement”) was entered into between the Company
and Guoline Group Management Co. Limited (“GGMC”)
together with GOMC Limited (“GOMC”) (collectively
known as the “Service Providers”), subsidiaries of Hong
Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM”), on 30 June
2008 for the provision of management services to the
Group by the Service Providers for a term of three years
from 1 July 2008. The agreement expired on 30 June
2011.

A master service agreement (the “Master Services
Agreement”) was entered into between the Company
and Guoline Group Management Co. Limited (“GGMC”)
together with GOMC Limited (“GOMC”) (collectively
known as the “Service Providers”), subsidiaries of Hong
Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM”), on 30 June
2011 for the provision of management services to the
Group by the Service Providers for a term of three years
from 1 July 2011.

In the event that the aggregate service fees payable by
the Company to the Service Providers and any of the
subsidiaries and associated companies of HLCM for the
provision of similar services, if any, exceeds the annual
cap of HK$22,000,000 during any of the three financial
years ending 30 June 2012, 30 June 2013 and 30 June
2014, the Company would be required to re-comply with
the Listing Rules as appropriate.

Details of the Master Services Agreement were disclosed
in the announcement dated 4 July 2011.

Insurances paid to a fellow subsidiary were made
with reference to the cost and the amount of services
performed to the Group.

38. Ultimate Holding Company

The directors consider the ultimate holding company as

at 30 June 2011 to be Hong Leong Company (Malaysia)

Berhad, a company incorporated in Malaysia.

37.

38.

EHEEATHRES @

MiE - ()

vy PEEEAREERARREREER
BE UEEEREEEERIEMH
ETRAAREMNAEESHERET
BORBW - LERTADRAHEER
EETEHENR -

(v) BEARBEER - HEESERRE

RIS ERET -

(vi) RZEBEENFERA=Z+TH &2
& B W ZXHong Leong Company
(Malaysia) Berhad ([HLCMJ) KT
‘~|] » Guoline Group Management
Co. Limited ([GGMCJ) & GOMC
Limited (GOMC) ([HR # it f&
Bl BREHER®-SENEL
B—HARATEEREAB=F2%
BERFE o 5T — 10 BRI 1 & ([ BR A% 15
ZE c ARBHBRZER=ZZ——F X
B=+RZH -

R-ZZE——FX"A=1+H > A2QF
EZRZR Hong Leong Company (Malaysia)
Berhad (THLCM]) ®) BKf B 2 A
GuoLine Group Management Co. Limited
(TGGMC )’ GOMC Limited ([GOMC )
(THRASALRER ) » RBRISMHIER R
BRMHH-Z——FtA—BRAH=
F2EBRY - 51— IREHE R
& o

HERAIANBE-ZS—=—FXA
=t -ZE—=F~"A=+HRKZ=
Z-MERA=ZTHE=ZEAMREFE
WEM—F BREEEEREM
HLCM K B A B R B & ) B HLAE
RIEMSIE 2 Rt A RIS EAEB
£ L RB %22 000,000 A2
S FEEHETHBA LR -

ERERBHEFBARN =T ——F
TAMENDER -

(vii) RBRESZHA —RRNBARZER
BRARAEBFFIRENREMETE -

RZZERAT

EEERAN-E——FRB=1THE
KR N T B Hong Leong Company
(Malaysia) Berhad @ —RR SR AR
MR 2T o
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SUBSIDIARIES [t[B2AE]

At 30 June 2011
R2011%#6F30H

The following list contains particulars of principal subsidiaries at

REZB-——FAB=THEZENBLARE

30 June 2011: JA1 I N
Place of
incorporation/ Effective
Issued and fully establishment percentage of
Name of company paid up capital and operation equity holding Principal activity Notes
AEER ERTRARZRE MR EEE RiggEEst  TEEH i+
Group  Company
1558 *4q
Asian Dragon Limited HK$2 Hong Kong 100 — Licensee of factory canteen
BT B IHREHREE
Bio Trading Limited US$1 British Virgin Islands 100 — Bulk trading of edible oils
E ABERREE ARRARES
Gladko Industries Limited HK$2 Hong Kong 100 — Investment holding
EREXERAT BT B REER
Global Flour Trader Limited HK$10,000 Hong Kong 100 — Trading of flour products
RRERESERLA 710,000 7T B BRERES
Guangzhou Lam Soon Homecare  HK$21,000,000 People’s Republic of China 100 —  Manufacturing and trading N1
Products Limited %#21,000,0007 PEARLAE of cleaning products
ENEESZRRERAR HEREREMES
Hong Kong Flourtech Limited HK$1,000,000 Hong Kong 100 — Trading of flour and agency
EERAARLT 7% 1,000,000 7T i products
BHEZRERRE
Hong Kong Flour Mills Limited Ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 — Trading of bran, provision
ERANEERLR HK$100,000 B of trucks rental service and
Deferred shares investment holding
HK$10,000,000 ERE5  SEHERRE
EBMRB% 100,000 7T &
SRR 10,000,000 7T
Jiangsu Lam Soon Flour Mills US$5,000,000 People’s Republic of China 100 —  Manufacturing and trading N1
Company Limited 5,000,000 %7 HEARLNE of flour products
THEIEENERAT BRERLEERES
Jiangsu Lam Soon Food 1S$10,000,000 People’s Republic of China 100 —  Manufacturing and trading N1
Company Limited 10,000,000% ¢ PEARANE of flour products
THEERRERLT BHERLERES
Lam Soon (China) Holdings US$1 British Virgin Islands/ 100 — Investment holding
Company Limited 1% Hong Kong RERR
ABAEREE/BE
Lam Soon Cleaning & Caring HK$2 Hong Kong 100 — Trading of cleaning products
Laboratories (Hong Kong) BT BB BRERES

Company Limited
HIEEZERRE (FB)ERAT
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At 30 June 2011
R2011F6H30H
Place of
incorporation/ Effective
Issued and fully establishment percentage of
Name of company paid up capital and operation equity holding Principal activity Notes
AEER ERTREEZRE df REEHE REFFTHIL TEEH i3
Group  Company
-y 1] Z4q
Lam Soon Edible QOils USS1 British Virgin Islands 100 —  Investment holding
Company Limited 127 EBSRANE REZR
Lam Soon Food Industries (BVI) ~ HK$11,858,415 British Virgin Islands 100 — Investment holding
Limited 11,858,415 T ABEBRES REER
Lam Soon Food Industries Limited Ordinary shares Bermuda/Hong Kong 100 100 Investment holding
HK83,228,315 BRE/ER REER
Convertible preference
shares HK$25,000,000
LERB% 832283157
TRRELR
78 % 25,000,000 7T
Lam Soon Food Supply Ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 —  Provision of warehousing and
Company Limited HK$1,000 5E logistics services
HERRUEERAR Deferred shares RERHERMTRE
HK$500,000
ERRER 1,000
IBAE IR % 500,000 T
Lam Soon Food Supply (Macau) — MOP$25,000 Macau 100 — Trading of flour, oils and
Company Limited RP# 25,000 7T il cleaning products
HIERmAE(RM) BRAR B RRRREZERES
Lam Soon International Limited ~ US$1 British Virgin Islands 100 - Investment holding
Y ABERRHE REER
Lam Soon (Pan Yu) Industries HK$2 Hong Kong 100 —  Investment holding
Company Limited BT O REER
HIE(BE)I£ERAT
Lam Soon Realty Limited HK$2 Hong Kong 100 —  Property holding
HIERERRAR BT B NERE
Lam Soon (Shandong) Food US$10,113,100 People’s Republic of China 100 —  Manufacturing and trading N1
Company Limited 10,113,100 %t mEARLAE of flour products
BIR(LR) RRERAR BRERLERES
Lam Soon (Sichuan) Food US$7,000,000 People’s Republic of China 100 —  Manufacturing and trading N1
Company Limited 7,000,000 7 mEARLAE of flour products
(Incorporated on 11/3/2011) HREREERES
MIE(E)IDRAERAR
(RIR=2--%Z8+-A)
Lam Soon Silos Investments HK$2 Hong Kong 100 —  Investment holding
Limited L B RERES

HERRREARLA
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SUBSIDIARIES [l B2 ]

At 30 June 2011
R20114F6H30H
Place of
incorporation/ Effective
Issued and fully establishment percentage of
Name of company paid up capital and operation equity holding Principal activity Notes
AEER ERTREEZRE A REEHE RiEREE L TEEH Wit
Group  Company
-y 1] Z4q
Lam Soon Systems Limited HK$2 Hong Kong 100 — Provision of internet marketing
HIERABRAR BT BB services
REEHARY
Lam Soon Trademark Limited Us$2 Cook Islands/ 100 — Trademark holding
2ET Hong Kong BERE
NRBE/ B
LS Golden Oils & Fats Limited “A” ordinary shares British Virgin Islands 100 — Investment holding
HK$185,000,000 ABEARNE REER
“B” ordinary shares
HK$9,900,000
“C” ordinary shares
HK$5,100,000
[AJEER
78#185,000,000 7
[BIERER
759,900,000
[CIEER
785,100,000
Richly Choice Development (PTC)  US$1 British Virgin Islands 100 100  Provision of trustee services
Limited 127 ABEBARES RIVETRY
Shekou Lam Soon Flour Mills US$27,500,000 People’s Republic of China 100 —  Manufacturing and trading N1
Company Limited 27,500,000% 7 mEARLAE of flour products
®OEIEENERAR BREREERES
Shekou Lam Soon Silo Company  US$9,500,000 People’s Republic of China 100 —  Provision of silo facilities N1
Limited 9,500,000 % PEARLNE RIEERRY
BOEEEEERAR
Shenzhen Lam Soon Edible Oils ~ US$12,000,000 People’s Republic of China 100 —  Manufacturing and trading N1
Company, Limited 12,000,000 % HEARLNE of edible oils
AYEIEREERA T RREERES
Swamex Food Service Limited HK$400,000 Hong Kong 100 100  Trading of edible oils products
BXRRARAF ¥ 400,000 7T £ RHERES
Notes: Mt
N1 The subsidiaries are registered as wholly-owned-foreign N1 ZELREPEARLMBEEEUZE B

companies under PRC Laws.

Mt~ B B &AL o
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5-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY AFEMBEHE

The summaries of results, assets and liabilities of the Group and AEEBTHEFBREENEE SEENERE
equity attributable to shareholders of the Company for the last RAABIRREGERBZNT ¢
five financial years are as follows:

2009 2008 2007
“ETAE —BT\F -—BBLH
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M

BEEET EBEEET EEEET

Results ES

Turnover B 2,510 2,193 2,072 2,578 2,298

Operating profit before FABRAEZH

interest, taxation, HE - FER
depreciation BN E
and amortisation piy 167 185 133 175 171
Profit attributable to [
168 equity shareholders FE(R SR
of the Company 91 122 79 118 110

Assets and liabilities EEREE

Non-current assets FRBEE 757 733 634 645 847
Net current assets FRBEE 729 667 674 629 362
Non-controlling interests kiR (11) (11) (1) (7 (86)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (1) (1) (1) (2) (11)
Equity attributable to PN

shareholders of the IR R

Company HE# 1,474 1,388 1,296 1,255 1,112
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